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COMPANY PROFILE
REIEIT

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1871)
is an investment holding company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability. The Company’s shares have been
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 24 October 2019.

We are a provider of driving training service based in Zhumadian
city, Henan province, the PRC. We engage in the provision
of driving training services through our two major operating
subsidiaries, namely Shun Da School and Tong Tai School.
Shun Da School is a qualified level Il driving school established
and commenced operation in 2012 which offers driving training
services for preparation for driving tests of Small Vehicles. Tong
Tai School is a qualified level | driving school established and
commenced operation in 2014 which offers driving training
services for preparation for driving tests of both Large Vehicles
and Small Vehicles. In November 2024, we acquired Kai Yuan
School, a qualified level II driving school in Zhumadian City. The
acquisition did not constitute a notifiable transaction under the
Listing Rules. Kai Yuan School was established in 2016 and
currently offers driving training services for preparation for driving
tests of Small Vehicles and certain types of Large Vehicles.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

Tough challenges have continued to pose shadows over the
business environment of the driving training industry throughout
the year 2024, however, our Group still persist in exploring new
sources of course enrollments as our core of work, as well as
strengthening internal control and management as our basic
principle, carefully analysing and judging the current situation and
disciplines of the driving training services market, and adopting
all possible methods and measures to increase the number of
course enrollments to stabilise our economic income and ensure
a rational market operation.

The Group believes that the major reasons for encountering
difficulties in exploring new sources of course enrollments in the
year 2024 are:

Regulatory changes were introduced by the PRC government
relating to the setting-up of driving schools in the PRC since the
third quarter of 2021, which lowered the threshold for existing
Small Vehicles driving schools to enter into the sector of driving
training services offering Large Vehicles which intensified the keen
competition in the driving training services market. The number
of driving schools has been increasing constantly since the third
quarter of 2021, and the number of driving schools operating
training and examination sites for Large Vehicles and Small
Vehicles also increased at the same time, putting further pressure
on Tong Tai School and Shun Da School. Under such an intense
competitive environment, the number of course enroliments
are progressively dispersed across various provinces. At the
same time, some schools resorted to adopting disorderly price
reduction measures to sustain the operation, thereby seriously
disrupting the normal driving training services market and leading
to an overall reduction in economic benefits in the driving training
industry. Furthermore, large-scale private enterprises in the
industry continued to step into the driving training services market,
adopting vicious and capital-intensive competitive measures, and
has directly led to the closure of certain small and medium-sized
driving schools with relatively weak sources of funds.

In facing the news changes of the driving training services
market, the Group has to adjust course fees through promotion
to maintain market shares as well as to lower operating costs to
maintain gross profit margin, which have resulted in a continuous
decrease in revenues in the year 2024 as compared to the year
2023 while the number of course enrollments has remained
stable.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ETREHS (8]

We anticipate that due to the survival of a significant number
of non-traditional driving schools in 2025, competition in the
driving training industry will become more intensive. The limited
availability of high-quality resources and trainees will inevitably
lead to frequent price war. Traditional driving schools are facing
shortages of resources and aging teaching facilities, while
emerging internet-based and intelligent driving training schools
are gaining prominence with advantages such as online and
personalised training. Additionally, with the increasing popularity of
new energy vehicles, the driving training industry needs to adapt
to the driving characteristics of these vehicles and adjust course
training curriculum and methods. Driving schools must offer
diversified training courses and models to meet the personalised
needs of different trainees.

To overcome the challenging environment, we will analyse
the current situation and trends of the driving training market,
persistently focus on course enrollments and exploring new
sources as our core tasks. We will strengthen our internal control
management, actively embrace new technologies, expand
online business, and adopt all effective methods and measures
to continuously increase the number of course enroliments,
stabilise economic income, and ensure the reasonable operation
of the market. We will be adopting the following overall strategies
throughout the year 2025 to improve our business and operational
performance:

Adapt to industry needs and cultivate a sales and marketing
team

We plan to cultivate an online sales and marketing team by
leveraging internet live streaming and social media platform
such as TikTok to promote the Group’s enrollment policies
and educational advantages, thereby laying the publicity and
brand building groundwork for increasing the number of course
enrolliments.

Increase capital investment and upgrade teaching facilities

We have acquired unique teaching simulators for subject 2 and
subject 3 and plan to acquire new energy vehicles, which will
help saving costs for driving training, mitigate the impact of price
reductions on profit margin and improve the quality of the Group’s
driving training services. To address the diversified competitive
landscape, we will boost our competitiveness through introducing
new technologies and enhancing teaching quality.
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Actively expand the market and increase potential revenue

Apart from focusing on the local market in Zhumadian City,
we will also adopt approaches such as potential acquisitions,
cooperations, and joint ventures to expand the course enroliment
business. Tong Tai School has already negotiated cooperative
operations with local driving schools and training institutions
in Gansu and Xinjiang provinces. We will also complete the
acquisition of some small-scale driving schools in the other
counties to continuously expand our market share.

Leverage vocational training foundation to expand business
training

Leveraging advantages of the vocational training focus on training
senior technicians in the year 2025, we will organise specialised
vocational training programs to increase the number of technician
trainees aiming for annual growth in vocational training income so
as to boost economic income.

Acquisition of parcel of land and construction of training
fields

The Company will continue to actively locate a suitable land
parcel and construct training fields in accordance with the future
plans and use of proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus. While
it is our current intention to acquire a parcel of land and construct
training fields, we will closely monitor the changing business
environment faced by the Company and will consider other
alternative uses if they would allow the Company to deploy its
financial resources more effectively and to achieve better business
performance.

In the year 2025, we will adopt flexible strategies to actively
respond to the differentiated development and diversified
competitive landscape of the driving training market, striving to
achieve ideal economic results.

Qi Xiangzhong
Chairman and Executive Director
29 April 2025
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEES AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are a provider of driving training service based in Zhumadian
city, Henan province, the PRC. We engage in the provision
of driving training services through our two major operating
subsidiaries, namely Shun Da School and Tong Tai School.
Shun Da School is a qualified level Il driving school established
and commenced operation in 2012 which offers driving training
services for preparation for driving tests of Small Vehicles. Tong
Tai School is a qualified level | driving school established and
commenced operation in 2014 which offers driving training
services for preparation for driving tests of both Large Vehicles
and Small Vehicles. In November 2024, we acquired Kai Yuan
School, a qualified level II driving school in Zhumadian City. The
acquisition did not constitute a notifiable transaction under the
Listing Rules. Kai Yuan School was established in 2016 and
currently offers driving training services for preparation for driving
tests of Small Vehicles and certain types of Large Vehicles.

Tong Tai School, Shun Da School and Kai Yuan School are
currently offering two types of driving training courses for our
trainees, namely standard courses and premium COuUrses.
Standard courses are designed for trainees who wish to complete
only part of the minimum training hours requirements with lower
course fees and less training hours. Trainees, who have enrolled
in our standard courses, wish to fulfil the minimum training hours
requirements, or for other reasons wish to have further training,
may subscribe from the respective school for additional training
services on an hourly basis. Premium courses offer to trainees
driving training for a number of training hours that is equal to the
minimum training hours requirements specified in the Driving
Training Curriculum. Our premium courses comprised holidays
and weekends courses, economy courses and VIP courses. Our
VIP courses for Large Vehicles provide different complimentary
supporting services including pick-up services and/or
accommodation services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2024, our overall
number of course enrollments and number of trainees attended
our driving courses declined mainly due to the continuous decline
in the number of course enrollments for our driving courses of
Large Vehicles. We recorded an overall negative growth for both
the total number of course enrollment for, and the total number
of trainees attended on, our driving courses for the year ended
31 December 2024, as comparing to that for the corresponding
period in 2023. This overall deterioration in our business
performance is the effect of decrease in the actual number of
training hours provided by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2024 due to the decrease in the demand for driving
courses, which had a significant impact on the number of course
enrollments of Large Vehicles especially, due to the continuing
deterioration of the market conditions of the logistics industry
as a result of the continuous US-China trade tensions and the
lower threshold for existing Small Vehicles driving schools to enter
into the sector of driving training services offering Large Vehicles
driving courses which intensified the keen competition in the
driving training services market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEE R R (E)

Our total number of course enrollments recorded an overall
decrease of 7.0% from 9,304 for the year ended 31 December
2023 to 8,646 for the year ended 31 December 2024. Both
Tong Tai School and Shun Da School marked negative growth
in the overall number of course enrollments for the year ended
31 December 2024, as comparing to that for the year ended 31
December 2023. The total number of course enrollments of Shun
Da School amounted to 846 (year ended 31 December 2023:
1,368), representing a significant decrease of approximately
38.2% due to the transfer of course enrollments and driving
training from Shun Da School to Tong Tai School. The total
number of course enrollments of Tong Tai School amounted
to 7,800 (year ended 31 December 2023: 7,936), representing
a slight decrease of approximately 1.7%. The overall decrease
in the number of course enrollments is mainly attributable to
the significant decrease in the demand for driving courses of
Large Vehicles especially, which has been our primary source of
revenue accounting for approximately 69.1% of our total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2024, due to the continuing
deterioration of the market conditions of the logistics industry
as a result of the continuous US-China trade tensions and the
lower threshold for existing Small Vehicles driving schools to
enter into the sector of driving training services offering Large
Vehicles driving courses which intensified the keen competition
in the driving training services market. The number of course
enrollments of Large Vehicles recorded a significant decrease of
18.7% from 4,035 for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 3,279
for the year ended 31 December 2024 which has offset the slight
increase of the number of course enrolliments of Small Vehicles of
1.9% from 5,269 for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 5,367
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The overall number of course enrollments for standard
courses of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles increased
by approximately 130.0% from 3,046 for the year ended 31
December 2023 to 7,006 for the year ended 31 December 2024
due to our newly designed driving courses of both Large Vehicles
and Small Vehicles with lower course fee providing less or without
training hours has captured the market share resulting from our
sales and marketing and promotion activities throughout the year
2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE @RI ()

TREFEHE2024F12831HIEFER
BENREREIONREERBE AHHA
0 BEREEZE2023F12831HIEEER
EEEE T :

The following table sets out a breakdown of the number of course
enrollments by our trainees and by types of courses for the year
ended 31 December 2024, together with the comparative figures
for the year ended 31 December 2023:

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A31ALEE
2024 2023
20244 20234
Number Number
of course of course
enroliments % enrollments %
FEREAH % HFEAREAH %
Tong Tai School BRER
Large Vehicles KB ES
— Standard courses —R2AERFE 3,271 37.8 977 10.5
— Premium courses — S ARERR2 8 0.1 3,058 32.9
Small Vehicles /N ES R
— Standard courses —IZAERFE 3,019 34.9 928 9.9
— Premium courses — = AERAE 1,502 17.4 2,973 32.0
Shun Da School IB3EEE R
Small Vehicles /NBYES R
— Standard courses —IZAERFE 716 8.3 1,141 12.3
— Premium courses — S ARERA2 130 1.5 227 2.4
Total 4Bt 8,646 100.0 9,304 100.0
Course S
Total standard courses ~ 1ZZEZRIZ48Et 7,006 81.0 3,046 8.7
Total premium courses S ARERIZARET 1,640 19.0 6,258 67.3
Total 4Bzt 8,646 100.0 9,304 100.0
Driving school BEEK
Tong Tai School BRER 7,800 90.2 7,936 85.3
Shun Da School |BRZEEER 846 9.8 1,368 14.7
Total 4Bt 8,646 100.0 9,304 100.0
Driving course BEtaRE
Large Vehicles KB ES 3,279 37.9 4,035 43.4
Small Vehicles I\BY S 5,367 62.1 5,269 56.6
Total 4Bt 8,646 100.0 9,304 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEE R R (E)

We recorded an overall decrease in both the number of trainees
attended our driving courses and total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2024. The overall number of trainees who
attended our driving courses for the year ended 31 December
2024 amounted to 10,450 (year ended 31 December 2023:
10,832), representing a slight decrease of approximately 3.5%.
The total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 amounted to approximately RMB32.3 million (year ended
31 December 2023: approximately RMB39.9 million), also
representing a decrease of approximately 19.0%. The overall
decrease in revenue was attributable to a decrease in each of
the number of trainees who attended our driving courses and the
actual number of training hours of our trainees for the year ended
31 December 2024 which offset the positive effect from the
overall increase in the average course fees per hour for our driving
courses as a result of the higher average course fees per hour for
our standard courses with less training hours provided recognised
as revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024. Our provision
of driving training services for Large Vehicles continued to be our
primary source of revenue, accounting for approximately 69.1%
of our total revenue (year ended 31 December 2023: 74.2%).
Revenue generated from premium courses of Large Vehicles
contributed to approximately 15.4% of our total revenue (year
ended 31 December 2023: 69.0%) and revenue generated from
standard courses of Large Vehicles contributed to approximately
53.0% of our total revenue (year ended 31 December 2023:
4.6%).
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The following table sets out a breakdown of the number of
trainees attended our driving courses, as well as our revenue by
types of vehicles and types of driving courses for the year ended
31 December 2024, together with the comparative figures for the

year ended 31 December 2023:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE R R (])

For the year ended 31 December

TREFEHE2024F12831HILEFES
MMEFERRENEE A B IzEHER
NEREHRULE DN EM > ERE
F2023F 12831 HILFEELEEREF !

HE12B31BLEE
2024 2023
2024 20235
Number Number
of trainees of trainees
attended RMB’000 % attended RMB’000 %
22m B2
BB EAH AREFT % ENEEAH AREFT %
Large Vehicles LT
- Standard courses —12ERR 2,921 17,126 53.0 410 1,848 46
— Premium courses — SR 838 4,972 15.4 3,932 27,518 69.0
~ Additional training services —BIMENIRT N/A RER 223 0.7 N/A ~EH 222 06
Sub-total 15t 3,759 22,321 69.1 4,342 29,588 74.2
Small Vehicles (NBUERE
~ Standard courses —IRHERE 3,607 3,174 9.9 2,042 976 2.4
- Premium courses — SRR 3,084 6,087 18.8 4,448 9,141 22.9
~ Additional training services —EBIMEHBRT N/A REF 715 2.2 N/A FEH 179 0.5
Sub-total INEF 6,691 9,976 30.9 6,490 10,296 25.8
Total fEst 10,450 32,297 100.0 10,832 39,884 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEE R R (E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

1.

Overview

We recorded a decline in total revenue by RMB7.6 million
(or approximately 19.0%) from RMB39.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to RMB32.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024. Our gross profit has decreased
by RMB4.6 million (or approximately 54.1%) from RMB8.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB3.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2024. Gross profit
margin has also decreased by 9.3 percentage points from
21.5% for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 12.2% for
the year ended 31 December 2024,

The abovementioned decreases were offset by the income
tax credit of approximately RMB5.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024 as compared to the income tax
credit of approximately RMB1.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 mainly due to the overprovision of income
tax in prior years. As such, our overall financial performance
for the year ended 31 December 2024 has slightly improved
as compared to that for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The net loss attributable to the owners of the Company
remains stable at approximately RMB8.4 million for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2024. We also recorded a
net loss margin attributable to the owners of the Company of
21.2% and 25.9% for years ended 31 December 2023 and
2024, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Revenue

Our revenue decreased by approximately RMB7.6 million,
or approximately 19.0% from RMB39.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB32.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024. This decrease was
mainly attributable to the significant decrease in revenue
generated from the provision of driving training services for
Large Vehicles of approximately RMB7.3 million and the
slight decrease in revenue generated from the provision of
driving training services for Small Vehicles of approximately
RMBO0.3 million. This decline in revenue is mainly attributable
to the overall decrease in each of the number of trainees
who attended our driving courses and the actual number
of training hours for Large Vehicles provided by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 due to the
decrease in the demand for driving courses, which had
a significant impact on the number of course enroliments
of Large Vehicles especially, which has been our primary
source of revenue accounting for approximately 69.1% of
our total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024, due
to the continuing deterioration of the market conditions of
the logistics industry as a result of the continuous US-China
trade tensions and the lower threshold for existing Small
Vehicles driving schools to enter into the sector of driving
training services offering Large Vehicles driving courses
which intensified the keen competition in the driving training
services market.

The revenue generated from the provision of driving training
services for Large Vehicles decreased by approximately
RMB7.3 million, or approximately 24.6%, from approximately
RMB29.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately RMB22.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2024. The overall decrease was mainly
attributable to the effect of the decrease in each of the
number of trainees who attended our driving courses of
Large Vehicles and the actual number of training hours of
our trainees of Large Vehicles from 4,342 and 257,796,
respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 3,759
and 157,603, respectively, for the year ended 31 December
2024 which offset the positive effect from the increase in
the average course fees per hour for our standard courses
of Large Vehicles recognised as revenue during the year
ended 31 December 2024 as a result of the increase in the
number of trainees attended our standard courses of Large
Vehicles with less training hours provided from 410 for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to 2,921 for the year ended
31 December 2024 despite the number of trainees attended
our premium courses of Large Vehicles decreased from
3,932 for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 838 for the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEE R R (E)

The revenue generated from the provision of driving
training services for Small Vehicles has slightly decreased
by approximately RMBO0.3 million, or approximately 3.1%,
from approximately RMB10.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 to approximately RMB10.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024. Such decrease was
mainly attributable to the lower average course fees per
hour recognised as revenue during the year ended 31
December 2024 due to the lower average course fees per
hour contributed from additional training hours of our unique
teaching simulators despite the increase in each of the
number of trainees who attended our standard courses of
Small Vehicles which contributed a higher gross profit margin
and the actual number of training hours of our trainees of
Small Vehicles. The overall number of trainees who attended
our driving courses of Small Vehicles increased from 6,490
for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 6,691 for the year
ended 31 December 2024 and the actual number of training
hours of our trainees of Small Vehicles increased from
127,783 for the year ended 31 December 2023 to 128,585
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Cost of services rendered

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
our Group’s cost of services rendered amounted to
approximately RMB28.4 million and RMB31.3 million,
respectively. Our cost of services rendered mainly comprises
employee benefit expenses paid to our driving instructors
and other supporting staff, depreciation on property, plant
and equipment and rights-of-use assets and fuel expenses.
Our cost of services rendered decreased by approximately
RMBS3.0 million, or approximately 9.4%, from approximately
RMB31.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately RMB28.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Employee benefit expenses decreased by approximately
RMB2.4 million, or approximately 22.4%, from approximately
RMB10.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately RMB8.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2024 which was mainly attributable to the
decrease in salaries paid to our driving instructors and
other supporting staff in line with the decrease in the actual
number of training hours of our trainees and the actual
number of driving instructors. Our fuel expenses decreased
by approximately RMB2.5 million, or approximately 34.3%,
from approximately RMB7.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 to approximately RMB4.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024, in line with the decrease
in the actual number of training hours of our trainees and
the decrease in the occupation of training motor vehicles
after introducing our new equipment of teaching simulators
for subject 2 and subject 3. Our depreciation on property,
plant and equipment and rights-of-use assets increased
by approximately RMB1.5 million, or approximately 13.6%,
from approximately RMB10.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 to approximately RMB12.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024 as a result of the increase in
fixed depreciation charges of our training field and training
motor vehicles and the amortisation charges of right-of-use
assets.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our overall gross profit from the provision of driving training
services significantly decreased by approximately RMB4.6
million, or approximately 54.1%, from approximately
RMB8.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately RMB3.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2024 in line with the decrease in the revenue.
Our gross profit margin from the provision of driving training
services decreased by approximately 9.3 percentage
points from approximately 21.5% for the year ended 31
December 2023 to approximately 12.2% for the year ended
31 December 2024. Our overall decrease in gross profit and
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to (i) the overall
decrease in each of the number of trainees who attended
our driving courses and the actual number of training hours
and (i) the fixed depreciation charges of our training field and
training motor vehicles and amortization charges of right-of-
use assets which offset the positive effect from the overall
increase in the average course fees per hour for our driving
courses due to the increased number of trainees attended
our standard courses of Large Vehicles.

EEEF R R (8)

EERFBXZHEE2023F12H31
BIEFEEYAREI1058BTRIL
AR 4B TTHN22 A% ERE
2024F12B31HIEFEEHARKES.2
BET TERRSZNFRMANESR
RN HMEEE THEFHSREERM
RIER BB IS IREUR D MmAE TR
Do MMBAR B B BREE2023F
12831 HIEFENARKE7 488 T
D ARE2 5EETE434.3%
FEHFE2024F12B31HLEEELH A
Ris4.08 8T BHRMEBENER
AR EUR D — B A B IS | AR
B2 BRI IRERIEER o 3
PR ~ B NMREUNGERES
EMITEREHE2023F12H31HLE
FEHARK10.98BTIZIMNOAR
1 5EBTEA13.6% EE F 2024
F12H31HEFENARK12.48
BT 0 ThER RIS A 5l 4R
EENECIhEERNNEREESEN
HIHE RIEINFTER o

ENREFRZE

IR EE BRI EEER B
HZE2023F12H31HIEFEEN AR
t8.6E BT ARBIVIARKLCE
BTidA54. 1% 28 E2024F 128
STHLEFENOARKIIOAE T > H
W B —ER o R E SR
RFEBIEFEREE2023F12 531
BIEFEEL21.5% /P 89.3B B 7
LEHE2024F12831HIEEEL
12.2% o HFIER N EF)HEEFET
FREZHROSMENZFENZEE A
BN B IR RF B R B R D LA K (i) 1
SIEH KB IAR B SR B E T EE B F M
FREEESIEER » HIRHERNR
NS/ N FEREERRSMmAR
BHIRIZERENEE A B InmEEsE
AR -

mREEERERAT
T T EFR

L5



16

A O O O O O O O O N\

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEE R R (E)

Our gross profit for provision of driving training services for
Large Vehicles decreased by approximately RMB3.3 million,
or approximately 63.9%, from approximately RMB5.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
RMB1.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2024. Our
gross profit margin from the provision of driving training
services for Large Vehicles decreased by approximately
9.0 percentage points from approximately 17.3% for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately 8.3% for
the year ended 31 December 2024. The decrease in both
gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly attributable
to (i) the overall decrease in each of the number of trainees
who attended our driving courses and the actual number
of training hours and (ii) the increase in fixed depreciation
charges of our training field and training motor vehicles and
the amortisation charges of right-of-use assets.

Our gross profit for provision of driving training services for
Small Vehicle decreased by approximately RMB1.4 million,
or approximately 39.6%, from approximately RMB3.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
RMB2.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2024. Our
gross profit margin from the provision of driving training
services for Small Vehicles decreased by approximately 12.6
percentage points from approximately 33.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to approximately 20.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2024. The decrease in both gross
profit and gross profit margin was mainly attributable to (i)
the lower average course fees per hour from the revenue
contributed from additional training hours of our unique
teaching simulators and (i) the increase in fixed depreciation
charges of our training field, training motor vehicles and
leasehold improvement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Other income and losses, net

Our other income and losses, net decreased by
approximately RMBO0.2 million, or approximately 15.8%,
from approximately RMB1.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 to approximately RMB1.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024 which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in income from issuance of
certificate of qualification validation from approximately
RMBO0.4 million received for the year ended 31 December
2023 to nil for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
the decrease in income on expiry of driving courses from
approximately RMBO.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 to approximately RMBO0.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024 which was offset by the
increase in government subsidies received from several local
government authorities for skills training and the Group’s
contribution to local economies, of which the entitlement
was unconditional and under the discretion of the relevant
authorities, from approximately RMB39,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB436,000
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Selling and marketing expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses increased by
approximately RMBO.1 million, or approximately 6.2%,
from approximately RMB1.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 to approximately RMB1.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024 which was mainly attributable to
the increase in sales and marketing and promotion activities
to capture the market share.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by approximately
RMBO.1 million, or approximately 0.5%, from approximately
RMB13.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately RMB13.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2024 which was mainly attributable to the
decrease in employees benefit expenses for administrative
staff.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEE R R (E)

10.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by approximately RMB1.0
million, or approximately 22.5%, from approximately
RMB4.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately RMB3.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2024 which was mainly attributable to the
repayment of a bank borrowing during the period.

Income tax credit

We recorded an income tax credit for the year ended
31 December 2024 of approximately RMB5.3 million as
compared to our income tax credit for the year ended 31
December 2023 of approximately RMB1.3 million, which
was mainly attributable to the overprovision of income tax in
prior years and the increase in deferred tax credit recognised
for the tax loss and difference on depreciation of property,
plant and equipment of our subsidiaries.

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year

As a result of the above factors, we recorded the net loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
RMB8.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2024 as
compared to the net loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately RMB8.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 which was mainly attributable to
(i) the overall decrease in each of the number of trainees who
attended our driving courses as well as the actual number
of training hours; and (ii) the lower gross profit margin
of Large Vehicles due to the fixed depreciation charges
of our training field and training motor vehicles and the
amortization charges of right-of-use assets, which was offset
by the income tax credit recognised for the year ended 31
December 2024. Accordingly, we recorded a net loss margin
attributable to the owners of the Company of 25.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2024 as compared to the net loss
margin attributable to the owners of the Company of 21.2%
for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

The Group’s bank balances and cash decreased from
approximately RMB152.4 million as at 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB120.9 million as at 31 December 2024, which
was mainly attributable to the overall increase in cash outflows
from the operating, investing and financing activities. The Group
has concentration of credit risk arising from bank balances as
there was a bank which individually contributed an amount of
approximately RMB101.8 million (2023: RMB124.8 million),
representing 84.2% (2023: 81.9%) of the Group’s bank balances
as at 31 December 2024. The management considers that the
credit risk on liquid funds is low as counterparties are financial
institutions with good reputation and have provided financing
amounted to approximately RMB26.7 million (2023: RMB26.7
million) to the Group.

As at 31 December 2024, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB122.5 million, including
approximately RMB120.9 million in bank balances and cash, and
approximately RMB1.6 million in trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments. The current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB75.2 million, including
approximately RMB15.6 million in trade and other payables and
accruals, approximately RMB12.7 million in contract liabilities,
approximately RMB45.2 million in borrowings and approximately
RMB1.6 million in lease liabilities. As at 31 December 2024, the
current ratio of the Group, which is equivalent to the current assets
divided by the current liabilities, was 1.63 (31 December 2023:
1.93).

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had aggregate interest-
bearing borrowings of approximately RMB45.2 million which
are repayable within one year as compared to approximately
RMB45.2 million which are repayable within one year and
approximately RMB9.0 million which are repayable within a period
of more than one year but not exceeding two years as of 31
December 2023. The decrease in borrowings is mainly due to the
repayment of a bank loan in June 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEE R R (E)

As at 31 December 2024, the gearing ratio of the Group, which
was calculated based on total debt, including all interest-
bearing loans and lease liabilities divided by total equity, was
approximately 0.26 times (31 December 2023: 0.30 times).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 16 January 2024, the Company proposed to conduct the
Rights Issue on the basis of one (1) Rights Share for every two (2)
Shares held at the subscription price of HK$0.2 per Rights Share,
to raise gross proceeds of up to approximately HK$40.0 million
before expenses, by way of the Rights Issue of up to 200,000,000
Rights Shares. On 20 March 2024, a total of 35,958,192 Rights
Shares were issued and allotted at HK$0.20 per Rights Share
pursuant to the Rights Issue. Upon completion of the Rights
Issue, the issued share capital of the Company comprises
435,958,192 Shares of HK$0.01 each and the total amount of
paid-up share capital became approximately HK$4.4 million. The
gross proceeds raised from the Rights Issue were approximately
HK$7.2 million and the net proceeds from the Rights Issue after
deducting the relevant expenses were approximately HK$6.1
million. As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 20
February 2024, the Company intends to apply the net proceeds
from the Rights Issue for the partial repayment of the outstanding
bank borrowings of the Group.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s total number of issued
Shares was 435,958,192 of HK$0.01 each. On 23 October 2019,
the Company issued 100,000,000 ordinary shares at HKD1.28
per offer share from the share offer. The use of proceeds from
the share offer was for business expansion and general working
capital.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not make any material investments, acquisitions
and disposals during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had aggregate interest-
bearing borrowings of approximately RMB45.2 million as
compared to approximately RMB54.2 million as of 31 December
2023. The borrowings of RMB45.2 million are repayable within
one year.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB45.2 million were at fixed interest rates. As of
31 December 2024, the current portion borrowings of the Group
amounting to approximately RMB45.2 million were guaranteed
and pledged by certain prepaid land lease payments/rights-of-
use assets, office buildings and the operation rights of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, our Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees and no member of our Group
was involved in any claim, litigation or arbitration of material
importance and no claim, litigation or arbitration of material
importance is known to our Directors to be pending or threatened
against any member of our Group. Accordingly, no provision for
the contingent liabilities in respect of litigation is necessary.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk related primarily to certain bank balances and other
payables denominated in HK$. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEE R R (E)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2024, we had 158 employees, representing
a decrease from that of 210 employees as at 31 December
2023. The number of employees employed by the Group varies
from time to time depending on need. Employees’ remuneration
is determined in accordance with prevailing industry practice
and employees’ working experiences and performance. The
remuneration policy and package of the Group’s employees
are periodically reviewed. As required by the PRC laws and
regulations, the Company participates in various employee social
security plans for its employees that are administered by local
governments, including among others, housing provident funds,
pensions, medical insurance, social insurance and unemployment
insurance.

Compensation of key executives of the Group is determined
by the Company’s remuneration committee which reviews
and recommends to the Board of Directors the executives’
compensation based on the Group’s performance and the
executives’ respective contributions to the Group.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme. For
details, please refer to the section headed “Statutory and General
Information — D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the
Prospectus.

The total employees benefit expenses incurred by the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2024 was approximately RMB10.7
million (for the year ended 31 December 2023: approximately
RMB13.3 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The following table sets forth the total number of Directors and
employees by function as at 31 December 2024

EEEF R R (8)

TREYK2024F 12831 BILEaEEH
NESENESEH

Number of %
employees of the total
EE A LB B
Function HREBE
Directors ) 6 3.7
Driving instructors B HR 77 48.7
Sale and marketing HENMTIGHEE 21 13.3
Finance and accounting Mgt 5 3.2
Teaching affair office ES6 Y 12 7.6
Administration T 32 20.3
Vehicle management BT 5 3.2
Total 4t 158 100.0
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS HitR =18

There are no material events subsequent to 31 December
2024 which would materially affect the operating and financial
performance of the Group as of the date of this annual report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from those disclosed in this annual report, there were no
material investments or additions of capital assets authorised by
the Board at the date of this annual report. Please also refer to
the paragraph headed “Use of Proceeds” under the Report of
the Directors below from pages 112 to 114 of this annual report
for the expected source and allocation of funding for the Group’s
material investment.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERRS

INTRODUCTION

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high corporate
governance standard to enhance the transparency, accountability
and corporate value of the Company and safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders. Since the Listing Date, the Company has
adopted the principles and code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code as fundamental guidelines for the corporate
governance practices of the Company. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code. The
Company will continue to review and monitor the corporate
governance practices of the Company to ensure compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and maintain high standard of
corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, all the Directors
have confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code regarding securities transactions by the
Directors and there have been no incidents of non-compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong (Chairman)
Ms. Zhao Yuxia (Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Siu Wah

Mr. Wan San Fai, Vincent

Mr. Xu Jianpo

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” from pages 98 to 106 of this annual report. None
of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships) with any
other Directors or any chief executive of the Company.

Meetings of the Board

The Corporate Governance Code states that meetings of the
board of directors of a listed issuer should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, four Board meetings
were held. The Board will continue to make arrangements for
holding at least four meetings for every subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the Directors, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Meetings of the Board
and Board Committees” below on page 40 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXREARS ()

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Accordingly, to ensure a balance of power and authority, the
positions of the Chairman and the chief executive officer are held
separately by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong and Ms. Zhao Yuxia respectively,
where Mr. Qi Xiangzhong as the Chairman is responsible for
major decision-making, overall strategic planning and determining
corporate policies and general management of the Group, and
Ms. Zhao Yuxia as the chief executive officer is responsible for
the overall management of the business operation and financial
planning of operations of the Group.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board at all times
met with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors, representing
at least one-third of the Board, and with at least one possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of their respective
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents
of such confirmation, the Company considers each of them to be
independent.

Meetings with the Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Corporate Governance Code states that the chairman of the
board of directors of a listed issuer should hold meetings with the
independent non-executive directors at least annually without the
presence of other directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, one meeting was
held between the Chairman and the independent non- executive
Directors, with each of the independent non- executive Directors
present. The Chairman will continue to make arrangements for
holding at least one meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors for every subsequent year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment with
Directors

The Company had entered the service contract with each of
the executive Directors (namely Mr. Qi Xiangzhong and Ms.
Zhao Yuxia) in respect of his/her appointment as an executive
Director for a fixed term of three years commenced from 24
October 2022 which shall be renewed automatically, unless and
until terminated by either the executive Director or the Company
by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing at any
time, subject to retirement by rotation and re- election at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. Each of the executive
Directors is entitled to an annual emolument of RMB240,000 for
acting as an executive Director. Such annual emolument may be
reviewed annually after each year of service during the term of
the service contract by the Remuneration Committee. Each of the
executive Directors is also entitled to a discretionary bonus, if so
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved
by the Board, having regard to the operating results of the Group
and the individual performance of the executive Director.

The Company had entered the letter of appointment with the non-
executive Director (namely Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong) in respect
of his appointment as a non-executive Director for a fixed term
of three years commenced from 24 October 2022 which shall be
renewed automatically, unless and until terminated by either the
non-executive Director or the Company by giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing at any time, subject to retirement
by rotation and re- election at the annual general meetings of
the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company. The non-executive Director is entitled to an
annual emolument of RMB120,000 for acting as a non-executive
Director. Such annual salary may be reviewed annually after each
year of service during the term of the letter of appointment by the
Remuneration Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXREARS ()

For the independent non-executive Directors, the Company had
entered the letter of appointment with Mr. Chan Siu Wah (“Mr.
Chan”) in respect of his appointment as an independent non-
executive Director for a fixed term of three years commenced
from 24 October 2022 which shall be renewed automatically,
unless and until terminated by either Mr. Chan or the Company
by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing at any time,
subject to retirement by rotation and re- election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles
of Association of the Company. Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent (“Mr.
Wan”) had been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director effective from 1 March 2023 and had entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of three
years commenced on the same date which shall be renewed
automatically, unless and until terminated by either Mr. Wan or the
Company by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing
at any time, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. Mr. Xu Jianpo
(“Mr. Xu”) had been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director effective from 20 April 2023 and had entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term of three
years commenced on the same date which shall be renewed
automatically, unless and until terminated by either Mr. Xu or the
Company by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing at
any time, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. Mr. Chan and Mr. Wan
are entitled to an annual emolument of RMB120,000 for acting as
an independent non-executive Director and Mr. Xu is entitled to
an annual emolument of RMB60,000 for acting as an independent
non- executive Director, respectively. Such annual salary may be
reviewed annually after each year of service during the term of the
letter of appointment by the Remuneration Committee.

For further details of the emoluments of the Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2024, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Emoluments of Directors and Senior Management” under
the Report of the Directors on page 123 of this annual report, and
Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for, among other things,
the leadership and control of the Company and the business,
strategic decisions and financial performance of the Group. Each
of the Directors takes decisions objectively in the best interests
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

To ensure a sound framework of responsibilities and accountabilities,
the Board is scheduled to meet for at least four times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of the Group
provides the Directors with information on a timely basis on the
activities and development in the businesses of the Group and
when required, additional Board meetings are held. Alongside
having meetings, the Directors would also approve various
matters by way of passing written resolutions.

The Company Secretary would assist in preparing the agenda
for the Board meeting and ensure that all the applicable laws
and regulations regarding meetings of the Board, as well as the
Articles of Association are complied with. Minutes of the meeting
of the Board and Board Committees are kept by the Company
Secretary and are available to all the Directors for inspection.

All the Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company as well as the services and advice from the
Company Secretary and senior management. The Directors
may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances and at the Company’s expenses, for
discharging their duties to the Company.

Each of the Directors would also disclose to the Company details
of other offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his or her
responsibilities to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXREARS ()

The Board reserves its decision on all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated by the Board to the
senior management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Under the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. Accordingly, each of the
Directors has received formal and comprehensive induction tailor-
made by the legal advisers of the Company as to Hong Kong
law on the first occasion of his or her appointment to ensure full
awareness of the responsibilities and obligations as a Director
under the Listing Rules and the relevant laws and regulations.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, relevant reading
materials, including regulatory updates, seminar handouts and
briefings, have also been provided to the Directors for their
reference and studying to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of possible legal action against its Directors and senior
officers.

Please also refer to the paragraph headed “Permitted Indemnity
Provision” under the Report of the Directors on page 122 of this
annual report for the permitted indemnity provisions in force and
in place under the Directors and officers insurance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is primarily responsible for determining the policy
for the corporate governance of the Company and performing
the corporate governance duties and functions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code, including, among other things,
reviewing the policies and practices of the Company on corporate
governance; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the
Company on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of
this annual report, the following work, among other things, have
been performed by the Board:

— directed the Board Committees to review the existing
policies and procedures of the Board and the Board
Committees;

— engaged Hong Kong legal advisers to provide corporate
secretarial and compliance services to the Company with
reference to the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations;

— engaged an external professional consultant to conduct
a review and further enhance the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group;

- reviewed the level of compliance of the Company with the
Corporate Governance Code; and

—  reviewed the disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance practices,
the Board had established three Board Committees on 19
September 2019, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the affairs of the Group. Each of these
Board Committees comprises mostly independent non-executive
Directors who have been invited to serve as members. The Board
Committees are governed by the respective terms of reference
that are in compliance with the applicable rules in Listing Rules
and principles and code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code and were approved by the Board. The terms of reference of
each of the Board Committees are published on the websites of
the Company (www.china-oriented.com) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Wan San Fai Vincent (as the chairman), Mr. Chan Siu Wah and
Mr. Xu Jianpo, all being independent non-executive Directors.
The duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
reviewing the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
overseeing financial reporting, financial control, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group, and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal
of the external auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, two meetings of the
Audit Committee were held. The Audit Committee will continue
to make arrangements for holding at least two meetings for every
subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the members of the Audit
Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed “Attendance
Record at Meetings of the Board and Board Committees” below
on page 40 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Audit Committee had performed, among
other things, the following work:

—  recommended the re-appointment of Moore CPA Limited
(formerly known as Moore Stephens CPA Limited) as the
external auditor of the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2024;

- reviewed and commented on the unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2024
and the interim report for the six months ended 30 June
2024;

- reviewed and commented on the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
and the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2024;

— engaged and coordinated with an external professional
consultant to review the financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems of the Company;

- discussed and reviewed the need for an internal audit
function; and

—  reviewed the financial and accounting policies and practices
of the Group.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2024, including the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the Company’s
external auditor and recommended to the Board the same for
approval of the Shareholders at the AGM.

The Board agreed with the proposal of the Audit Committee
on the re-appointment of Moore CPA Limited (formerly known
as Moore Stephens CPA Limited) as the external auditor of
the Company for the year ending 31 December 2025. The
recommendation will be put forward for the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.
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For an analysis of remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by Moore CPA Limited (formerly known as Moore
Stephens CPA Limited) during the year ended 31 December
2024, please refer to the paragraph headed “Auditor’s
Remuneration” below on page 44 of this annual report.

For the review on the internal control and risk management
systems of the Company, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Risk Management and Internal Control System” below from
pages 40 to 42 of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong (as the chairman), Mr. Chan Siu Wah, and
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent. Save for Mr. Qi Xiangzhong, who is an
executive Director, all the members of the Nomination Committee
are independent non- executive Directors. The duties of the
Nomination Committee include, among other things, reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, establishing
and reviewing the policies and procedures on the selection,
appointment and reappointment of Directors, reviewing the policy
on diversity of the Board and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee were held. The Nomination Committee will
continue to make arrangements for holding at least one meeting
for every subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the members of the Nomination
Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed “Attendance
Record at Meetings of the Board and Board Committees” below
on page 40 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Nomination Committee had performed,
among other things, the following work:

—  reviewed the structure and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

- reviewed the nomination policy on the identification,
selection, appointment and re-appointment of individual as
Directors and succession planning for Directors;
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- made recommendations to the Board on the re-election of
Directors in the AGM;

— reviewed the board diversity policy of the Company,
in particular the progress on achieving the measurable
objectives as set out in the policy; and

— assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and made recommendations to the
Board on their respective re-elections.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has developed a nomination policy
which has been adopted by the Board on 27 March 2020. The
nomination policy is established with the aims of ensuring the
Board maintains a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business of
the Group.

To assess and evaluate whether an individual candidate is suitably
qualified to be appointed as a Director, the Nomination Committee
shall take into account, among other things:

- the qualifications, skills, knowledge, ability and experience of
the individual candidate;

—  the potential time commitment and attention to perform
duties as a director under the Listing Rules and the
applicable laws and regulations;

—  the potential contributions that the individual candidate
can make to the diversity of the Board, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

—  the personal ethics, integrity and reputation of the individual
candidate (and where appropriate, adequate background
checks and other verification processes shall be conducted
against the individual candidate);
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—  the current structure, size and composition of the Board and
the Company’s corporate strategy;

- Board succession planning considerations and the long term
needs of the Company;

— (in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
Director), the independence of such candidate with reference
to, among other things, the independence criteria as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and the guidance and
requirements relating to independent non-executive directors
set out in the Corporate Governance Code; and

— any other factors and matters as the Nomination Committee
may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy at
least annually and discuss any revisions and updates that may be
required, and recommend the same to the Board for approval.

Board Independence

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. The Board ensures the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
and at least one-third of its members being independent non-
executive Directors. Further, independent non-executive Directors
will be appointed to Board Committees as required under the
Listing Rules and as far as practicable to ensure independent
views and input are available. The Nomination Committee strictly
adheres to the independence assessment criteria as set out in
the Listing Rules with regard to the nomination and appointment
of independent non-executive Directors, and is mandated to
assess annually the independence of independent non- executive
Directors to ensure that they can continually exercise independent
judgement. No equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements will be granted to independent non-executive
Directors as this may lead to bias in their decision-making and
compromise their objectivity and independence. Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are entitled to
seek further information from the management on the matters
to be discussed at Board meetings and, where necessary,
independent advice from external professional advisers at the
Company’s expense. A Director (including independent non-
executive Director) who has a material interest in a contract or
arrangement shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any
Board resolution approving the same.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In compliance with
Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, a policy concerning diversity of
the members of the Board were adopted by the Company on 19
September 2019 and applied and reviewed by the Nomination
Committee at least annually.

In assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various measurable
objectives as set out in the board diversity policy, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider measurable
objectives including the candidate’s character, qualifications,
experience, independence and other relevant criteria necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve board diversity,
where appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.
The ultimate decision will be based on merits and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy
at least annually and discuss any revisions and updates that may
be required, and recommend the same to the Board for approval.

The Company’s diversity philosophy including the gender diversity
was generally followed in the workforce throughout the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2024. As of the date of this annual
report, approximately 83.3% of Directors and approximately
83.3% of total workforce (including senior management) were
male. The Company will continue to take steps to promote
diversity, including gender diversity, at workforce levels.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the board diversity policy during the year and considered it was
appropriate and effective.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chan Siu Wah (as the chairman), Mr. Qi Xiangzhong,
and Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent. Save for Mr. Qi Xiangzhong, who
is an executive Director, all the members of the Remuneration
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The duties
of the Remuneration Committee include, among other things,
reviewing and approving the remuneration proposals of the
management with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
of the Board, reviewing the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management and developing
policy and structure on remuneration of all directors and senior
management.

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code and under the terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, one meeting of
the Remuneration Committee were held. The Remuneration
Committee will continue to make arrangements for holding at
least one meeting for every subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the members of the
Remuneration Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Attendance Record at the Meetings of the Board and Board
Committees” below on page 40 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Remuneration Committee had performed,
among other things, the following work:

—  reviewed the policy on the remuneration structure of all
Directors and senior management;

— assessed the performance of the executive Directors;
—  reviewed and approved the remuneration proposals by the

management of the Group with reference to corporate goals
and objectives; and
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—  recommended on the remuneration packages of all Directors
for the financial year ending 31 December 2025.

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than Directors) by
band for the year ended 31 December 2024 is as follows:
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For further details in respect of the emoluments of the Directors
and senior management for the year ended 31 December 2024,
please refer to the paragraph headed “Emoluments of Directors
and Senior Management” under the Report of the Directors on
page 123 of this annual report and Note 12 of the consolidated
financial statement.

Policy on the Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Remuneration Committee has developed a remuneration
policy which has been adopted by the Board on 27 March 2020.
The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the principles that
the remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management of the Company should be reviewed annually
and determined by the Remuneration Committee based on
the duties, responsibilities of each individual executive Director
and senior management staff, performance of the Group and
the remuneration packages paid by comparable companies in
the same industry based on the prevailing market conditions.
No Director or any of his/her associates should be involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee will review the remuneration policy
at least annually and discuss any revisions and updates that may
be required, and recommend the same to the Board for approval.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS OF
THE BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

The attendance of each Director at Board and Board Committees
meetings of the Company, whether in person or by means of
electronic communication, is detailed in the table below:

ERENESZEETEENLE
E{ufiig
REEZHREFEEESFEASRNBREEAR
BEEENESZZESETENBEROTE
Frsfatt

Attendance/number of meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2023

FHEZE2023E 12831 AL EEHE / BTEEHE

Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director Bty g ERZEE iMESE RAZEE
Executive Directors PiTER
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong TTRASE 4/4 - 17 17
Ms. Zhao Yuxia HEELT 4/4 = = =
Non-executive Director FHTER
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong RENEL 4/4 - - -
Independent non-executive Directors  BiFH{TES
Mr. Chan Siu Wah BNERE 4/4 2/2 11 11
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent Pk )i 4/4 2/2 11 11
Mr. Xu Jianpo rRgEE 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board is primarily responsible for maintaining and overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
on an on-going basis. Reviews on the systems are conducted
at least annually. The scope of review, which is determined
and recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by
the Board annually, covers all material controls, including but
not limited to financial, operational and compliance controls;
risk management functions; and the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in connection with the
accounting and financial reporting function of the Group and their
training programmes and relevant budget.
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The Board, having considered the nature of business and
the organisation structure of the Group, designed the risk
management and internal control systems with the aims of:

safeguarding the assets of the Group;

— maintaining appropriate accounting records and financial
reporting;

— achieving efficiency of operations; and

— ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has continued to engage an external professional
consultant to conduct a review and further enhance on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2024. The overall control environment of the Group, including,
among other things, the organisational structure of the Group,
the effectiveness of the Board and the Board Committees and
the division of responsibilities among the management of the
Group, were reviewed. An assessment of the principal risks
and uncertainties faced by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2024 was also conducted by the external professional
consultant. The categories, extent, consequences, seriousness,
and probability of such risks and uncertainties were identified in
the assessment. The Board has also assigned relevant person-in-
charge to develop, implement and review appropriate measures
in connection with the potential risks and uncertainties. The
external professional consultant is of the view that the current
risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.
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The Corporate Governance Code provides that a listed issuer
should have an internal audit function. Currently, the Group does
not have an internal audit function. Having assessed the scale,
nature and complexity of the business of the Group, the Board
is of the view that it would be more cost effective to appoint an
external professional consultant to perform the internal audit
functions for the Group should the need arises. The Board will
continue to review the need for an internal audit function on an
annual basis.

To enhance the system of the Group on handling and
disseminating inside information, and to ensure timely and
accurate disclosure of such information pursuant to the relevant
provisions under the SFO and the Listing Rules, the Group has
also formulated and adopted an inside information policy on 27
March 2020. Certain measures and procedures that have been
implemented are as follows:

—  the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published
by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in
June 2012;

— the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

—  the Group regularly reminds the Directors and the employees
about due compliance with all policies regarding inside
information, as well as keeps them appraised of the latest
regulatory updates.

The Board will review the inside information from time to time and
may make any amendments and/or modifications that it deems
necessary or desirable.

Overall, the Board is of the view that the current risk management
and internal control system is effective and adequate.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 27 March 2020.
Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may consider
whether to propose a dividend out of its distributable profits and
reserves and determine the amount of dividend by taking into
account the following factors, including but not limited to:

(i)  the general financial condition of the Group;
(i) the earnings and cash flow of the Group;
(i) the expected working capital requirement of the Group;

(iv) the statutory fund reserve requirements of the operating
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC; and

(vy any other factors that the Board deems relevant and
appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company may be limited
under the financing agreements that the Group currently has
or that it may enter into in the future. It is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the
laws of Hong Kong, the Articles of Association of the Company,
and any other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any predetermined dividend
distribution ratio. The Board will review the dividend policy from
time to time and may make any amendments and/or modifications
that it deems necessary or desirable. There is no assurance that a
dividend will be proposed or declared in any particular amount for
any specific period.

The dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally-binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at
any time or from time to time.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group engaged
Moore CPA Limited (formerly known as Moore Stephens CPA
Limited) as the external auditor of the Company and to hold office
until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The remuneration paid or payable to Moore CPA Limited in
respect of their audit services and non- audit services during the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set out as follows:

22 S GIE

HREZE2024F 128318 LEFE » Z&EH
REAREENEENERERABE
AN T B INERZ BN (T R A 1T
HIRERBEARNGERALE o FLEIE20245F
12B31BLEFE > siAEEMEZHENE
BT AR QB MNZEBIRE MIEZEBRBEE
SN EZ)I T ¢

RMB’000

ARETT

Audit services — Annual audit ZHAR—FEZE 1,203
Proposed right issue EEMR 72

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Chi Hon (“Mr. Tsang”), the Company Secretary, plays
an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that the Board policies and
procedures are duly followed. To assist the Board in functioning
effectively and efficiently, the Company Secretary reports to the
Board through the Chairman and is responsible for advising the
Board on governance matters and facilitates the induction and
professional development of Directors. All Directors may call upon
the Company Secretary for advice and assistance at any time in
respect to their duties and the effective operation of the Board
and the Board Committees.

To uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and the applicable Hong Kong laws, the
Company also engages an external service provider to assist
the Company Secretary to discharge his duties as the Company
Secretary. Mr. Tsang is the primary corporate contact person of
the Company in respect of the engagement.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
Secretary took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company strives to provide ready, fair, regular and
timely disclosure of information that is material to the investor
community. Therefore, the Company works to maintain an on-
going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meeting and other general meetings or other proper
means. The Chairman, all other members of the Board including
independent non-executive Directors and the chairmen of all
Board committees will attend the forthcoming AGM to meet with
the Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

In addition, the Company has developed a shareholder
communication policy with the objective of maintaining effective
and timely dissemination of the Company’s information
to its Shareholders and the market, including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments
and governance, in order to enable Shareholders to exercise
their rights in a timely and informed manner, and to allow
Shareholders and the investment community to engage actively
with the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Board has maintained and regularly reviewed the policy in
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code to ensure its
effectiveness. Reference has also been made to the shareholders’
communication policy of other listed issuers in Hong Kong to
ensure the Company’s shareholders’ communication policy is on
par with market standard.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) may be convened by the
Board on requisition of Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company at the date of deposit
of the requisition.

The requisitionists must state the objects clearly in the requisition,
sign the requisition and deposit the same to the Board or
Company Secretary.
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If the requisition is found to be proper and in order, the EGM shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

If the Board fails to proceed to convene such EGM within 21 days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s)
himself/herself/itself/themselves may proceed to convene the
EGM in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures to put forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board. Such
enquiries can be addressed to the Company Secretary in
writing by post to the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Rooms 1508-1513, Nan Fung Tower, 88
Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or by email to
calvintsang@zmdttjx.cn.

Procedures to put forward proposals at shareholders’
meeting

Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general
meetings may achieve so by means of convening an EGM
following the procedures as set out in the paragraph above.
As regards to the procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director, Shareholders may refer to the
“Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as
a Director of the Company” which is available on the website of
the Company (www.china-oriented.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Upon the Shareholders’ approval by way of a special resolution at
the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2022, the Company
has adopted the second amended and restated articles of
association. Details of the changes made in the document can be
found in the Shareholders’ Circular dated 22 April 2022. An up-to-
date consolidated version of the Company’s Articles of Association
has been posted on both the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024 which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval.

The Company has provided all members of the Board with
regular updates on the Company’s performance, positions and
prospects.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor regarding its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report from
pages 131 to 139 of this annual report.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(ESG Report) of China Oriented International Holdings Limited
(“the Company” or “China Oriented”) along with its subsidiaries
(collectively, “the Group” or “we”). Based on the principles of
openness and transparency, we report to all stakeholders on
the Group’s ESG performance in 2024 in a comprehensive and
objective manner. For corporate governance, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 24 to 47 of the Annual
Report.

The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility to ensure
the integrity and truthfulness of the report and confirms that
to the best of its knowledge, this report addresses all material
topics related to the Group and fairly presents the Group’s ESG
performance and environmental impacts. The Board of Directors
has reviewed and approved this report.

Reporting Standard

This report has been prepared in accordance with the latest
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out
in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”) and the actual situation of the
Group. Data is analysed and presented such that a year-on-year
comparison is easy for the reader. During the preparation for
this ESG Report, the Group has applied the reporting principles
stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide as follows:

° “Materiality” — The materiality assessment was conducted
to identify material issues, thereby adopting the confirmed
material issues as the focus for the preparation of the
ESG Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed and
confirmed by the Board and various departments. Please
refer to the sections headed “Identification of Material
Topics” for further details.

o “Quantitative” — Supplementary notes are added along with
quantitative data disclosed in the ESG Report to explain
any standards, methodologies, and source of conversion
factors used during the calculation of emissions and energy
consumption.

o “Consistency” — The preparation approach of this ESG
Report was substantially consistent with the previous year,
and explanations were provided regarding data with changes
in the scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Reporting Period and Boundary

The reporting period is the fiscal year from 1 January to 31
December 2024. The Group’s business focus on the driving
training operation. Unless otherwise specified, this report covers
operations of the driving training service of our two driving
schools, which are Shun Da School and Tong Tai School located
in Zhumadian City, Henan Province, China.

Feedback

This report is published in both Chinese and English. In case of
any discrepancy between the two versions, the Chinese version
shall prevail. We are committed to providing more comprehensive
and accurate ESG information to our stakeholders and welcome
your comments and suggestions on this report. You may provide
your valuable comments by telephone or email:

Telephone: +852-53136535
Email: calvintsang@zmdttjx.cn
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BRE-HEghERKS (B)

MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN

Dear stakeholders:

| hereby present the fifth ESG Report to all stakeholders. | believe
the world faced unprecedented challenges due to continuous
US-China trade tensions, nevertheless, the Group exerts the
greatest effort and work hand-in-hand to fight against this. We
continue to fulfilling our corporate social responsibility by assisting
the society. Corporate social responsibility is embedded deeply
into our business. A total of RMB5,000 is donated, and volunteer
works are conducted as a return to the society via various social
welfare activities. With actively donating of goods, the stress on
material shortage of the needy shall be relieved. On the other
hand, we recognize the looming crisis of climate change. We have
identified the potential climate risks and developed mitigation
plans accordingly.

People-oriented

To pave a way towards sustainable development, it is crucial to
ensure the retention and satisfaction of employees which are the
foundation of the Group. During the year, we continued to carry
forward talent training from three aspects, including orientation
training, corporate training, and professional training. The trainings
are capable to improve the quality of instruction and training
for driving instructors and strengthen the professionalism of
employees meticulously, contributing to overall upgrade of the
Group’s operation. We also organized various employee activities
during the year to enhance the relationship among the teams and
promote their sense of belonging.

The Group prioritise employees’ occupational health and safety at
all times. Road safety inspections, safety education and training
seminars, safety education, and mental health and emotion
management activities are arranged regularly to ensure correct
driving practices, enhance employees’ safety awareness, and
promote consciousness of physical and mental conditions. A
vehicle management team is also set up to regularly maintain,
inspect and repair vehicles in order to lower the risk of car
accident. It is our conviction that with well-managed health of
employees and training vehicles, the performance of the business
operation can be taken to the next level. Moreover, mitigation
plans are established to ensure the minimization of physical risk
that could threaten employees’ safety.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Giving Back to Society

During the year, the Group donated RMB5,000 to alleviate the
pressure on the society by participating social welfare activities,
such as providing convoy for the examination candidates, and
visiting Fire Rescue Department, with a total of 1,990 hours
volunteer working. Simultaneously, training was offered to
individuals in need, equipping them with the skills to drive and
work.

Sustainability is a material issue with growing attention around
the globe. It has always been a significant part of the Group’s
business operation that accompanies with notable environmental
and social impacts. To attain the vision of sustainable operation
and fulfill stakeholders’ expectations, we will keep on reviewing
and revising the management, policies and measures, and
tracking of activities. The Group is committed to endeavour better
environmental and social performances and create value in the
coming future.

Qi Xiangzhong

Chairman and Executive Director

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
29 April 2025
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BRE-HEghERKS (B)

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

Sustainability is the goal of the Group. Combining the concept
of sustainability and the Group’s development strategy, we
manage and supervise sustainability-related matters through
multi-department collaboration.

Sustainability Management Structure

The Board of Directors has the ultimate responsibility of
overseeing and setting out ESG management approach and
strategy for the Group with the assistance of various departments.
The sustainability-related matters of the Group are handled by
functional departments, including business operations, logistics
support, teaching affairs office, the office, the vehicle management
team, etc. The performance of each department is reported to the
Board of Directors on a regular basis, and the Board of Directors
continuously monitors sustainability related information, such
as trainee satisfaction and energy consumption. The functional
departments also review the Group’s ESG performance through
key performance indicators (“KPIs”) from various ESG aspects,
in order to review progress made against ESG-related goals and
targets. By conducting regular materiality assessment, they assist
the Board of Directors to evaluate, prioritise and manage material
ESG-related issues. In the future, we will continue to improve the
sustainability management structure of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Identification of Material Topics

In order to understand the concerns of various stakeholders
of the Group and identify material topics that have a significant
impact on its operations, the Group has complied with the “ESG
Reporting Guide” of HKEx to conduct survey to identify material
topics through four steps, namely Identification, Prioritisation,
Verification and Review. The six material topics are “Customer
health and safety”, “Product and service quality”, “Occupational
safety and health”, “Employee training and development”, “Anti-
corruption” and “Exhaust emissions management”. During the
year, after review, these six material topics were found closely

linked with the Group’s operations.

We actively responded to concerns of stakeholders, disclosed the
Group’s performance and impact on material topics in detail, and
took corresponding measures to further improve the sustainability
management during the year.

‘ﬁ Identification

"‘{ 7

Commissioned a third-party independent
consultancy to conduct materiality
assessment of the Group by referring

to the HKEx ESG Reporting Guide.

LHAEF=SBUBBANE BBE2E
BRPT(ESGREIES| ) HALBETE

R E R iE

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

A E E I EE

=T REEF m RS HAEERIE 2R
N AAEEEEELEEATENEY
MR - AEBBTBRPI(ESGRETSE
510 » BITHE > KBER - BiF - R
MR IE D B R B B M » /<@
BEEMEZENIATERREREARZE)
TEMMIRGEE) « THRZ2EEE)
TETHEIIHEERE - TREE) ~ TERE
B FR BFRR > BEEMR
BIRRRAERES S BMHEE o

IR O] ER) e AR R 75 RYRRE RS - 554
MREAEBRBEEZENRERY
> TRFEANREEBERE— P TER

SERAFEEIETIE -
L
Prioritisation E

7353

Invited stakeholders and the management of the Group to
participate in survey to gauge their views on the significance

of potential material topics. Prioritised and confirmed the material
topics based on two dimensions, namely “singnificance of
economic, environmental and social impacts” and “influence

on stakeholders’ assessments and decision making”.

MR BEAL RAEEESRES MRS » KEEY

BESEMEAAESENES o RIE TOF R

RENETIE R THFEERS R RIARNEE

» B » EATHF IR R B MR o
N

M) Review
o
l::l'mm

Reviewed possible improvements in
the materiality assessment process,
and identify areas for improvement.

RRBEH L EETGBRED A REARE
BB E R o
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Verification Ev

R

The management of the Group closely monitored and confirmed
the assessment results of material topics, and they

will be disclosed in this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE-HEghERKS (B)

Responding to Stakeholders’ Concerns

[E]FEF e AERA 7S

The table below summarises the actions taken by the Group in  FXFIFT FRARGE A E BT F 2 BRI 5 B+
respect of the topics that stakeholders concerned about during %78 FFrEvER Y1 TE) ©

the year.

Stakeholders Topics of concern

AR RR 75 R R

FztERATS

EE Quality
Em&RGEE

Safety
ERREHELE

BERREE

e Customer Privacy
Protection
B R ERARE

Customers e Product and Service

e (Customer Health and

e (Customer Satisfaction

Actions taken

FR%EREY{TED

e Detail the relevant regulations on the
process of appointment, training, and exams
participation for trainees
BRMESR E1RAE ~ #RIEIINR2EHEHSE

e Set up a supervision centre to manage the
teaching work and the training progress
REBRERL > BEIEHGEHETENEEE
AIEE

e Train and assess driving instructors and
logistics personnel irregularly
NEHRHE RGN B E A BEITIEIIREZ

e Standardise trainee complaint procedures and
establish complaints management measures
RBEERTOMIZE » RIUBERFEEIE

e (Conduct trainee satisfaction survey
MEZ2EmEERAE

e Take corresponding measures to improve
service quality at registration centre, training
centre and recruitment office
BRERG AL ~ SR OB A iR EARRE
iR A RBES

e Establish trainees’ personal information files
and assign special personnel to protect their
privacy
RUBEEAEEER  KREAGTER
RES BT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Topics of concern

)z ERR 73 R R

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

Actions taken

FREREXBY1TEN

Employees e Occupational Health and e Establish internal talent management system
8T Safety RIAIAALBIEFIE
BEfERENTe * Provide high-quality remuneration and benefits,
e Training and Development and salary adjustment plan
=3B R RIEBEFHFTEEN > DUGFHBEE S R
e Employee Retention and e Regular team building activities
Benefits TR E PR RS
BT B NEF * Regular employee trainings
e Employee Communication ERRETETIEI
Channels e Set up various employee communication
BT /E@EE channels and carry out improvement work
based on suggestions
R ZEELBBRE » Wit HERETHE
TfE
e Prevent child and forced labour
HABE T Kol TRITT#
e |dentify health risks faced by employees and
implement preventive measures
5l B T EERA 25 B bR 12 I B s E T
e Provide safety training and mental health
education
RETRMEZ2EIIROIBRRAB
e Strengthen pandemic prevention and control
measures to ensure employee safety
MmagziErhE » (REEETZ 2
Suppliers e Supplier Management e Pre-procurement supplier assessment
HFEE Mg SR s AT

e Annual supplier rating record
EITFEEMEE T D4R

Shareholders and
investors

RERRIKEE

Company Operation
REES

Corporate Governance
TEER

Risk Management

R EE

e Regular employee training
EHRETE TIE:

e Strengthen anti-corruption work
INs&f SER T 1

e Compliance with laws and regulations

BTRERER

mREEERERAT
—TNFEFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-HERERKRS ()

Stakeholders Topics of concern Actions taken
SRR FZEMERA S R RE FRIREXRITTEN
Government e  Company Operation e Require all employees to comply with laws and
BT REESE regulations
e Environmental Compliance EREBETETERER
RREH e The inspection team regularly checks the work
e Anti-corruption system and effectiveness of each department
REE every month regularly
BE VRS A A S EFT T IEHIE R A RCE
TieE
e Encourage employees to report violations
SRS TRRERTH

e Establish relevant systems to regulate
employee behaviour
FIHRAGIERELE TITH

Communities e FEducation e Actively respond to the national call for poverty
HE HE alleviation and assist in poverty alleviation
e Poverty Alleviation BIRERREZIAERE > HEIRE T
®a ¢ Organise activities to help with exams
AEBEOBIZ EE)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE CARE

The overall quality of the training team is crucial to the Group’s
operational efficiency and service quality. The Group is committed
to creating a warm, harmonious, and humanised working
environment with room for employees’ growth and striving to
build a high-quality team of driving instructors.

Talent Management

We are committed to building a dynamic and competent team.
We strictly implement the employment standards, recruitment
methods, selection methods, trial requirements and employment
principles for new employees in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations' and the Group’s internal “Employment
Management Methods”. At the end of each year, each
department determines employment needs for the upcoming
year and reports it to the office for recruitment applications. We
conduct recruitment through various channels, such as internal
referrals, government agencies and public recruitment. The
candidates are required to pass at least one written test and
two interviews before they are eligible for appointment. New
employees are subject to a probation period of 1 to 6 months,
and those who are excellent performers may apply for formal
offer, which is reviewed and confirmed by the office and a formal
labour contract is signed.

Remuneration and Benefits

Since employees are the greatest force for the Group’s long
term development, the Group is committed to maximizing
employee satisfaction by providing them with competitive
remuneration. We have established a standardised remuneration
management system. Employees are not only entitled to statutory
benefits according to the law, such as reasonable leave, five
social insurances and one housing fund, but also receive life
insurance and other additional benefits purchased by the Group
for employees, such as free lunches, staff dormitory and holiday
benefits.

U Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for talent management
related laws and regulations

RIE-HEghERKS (B)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE-HEghERKS (B)

In order to embrace the development of the Group, give full
play to the incentive role of remuneration and benefits, and
provide competitive remuneration and benefits for employees,
Tong Tai School updated its remuneration management system
during the year, which is relatively closed, revolving, scientific,
and reasonable. Tong Tai School established a remuneration
management committee with the General Manager acting as
the chairman, members of which comprise of the Assistant
General Manager, the Vice President-in-charge, the Chief
Financial Officer and the head of the administration and human
resources department. Remuneration management committee is
responsible for reviewing the remuneration adjustment strategies
and other forms of incentives (such as year-end bonus, patent
award, innovation award, improvement proposal recommendation
award, etc.) proposed by the administration and human resources
department, as well as individual remuneration adjustment, overall
remuneration adjustment plans, recommendations and exercising
the right of determination.

Training and Development

The Group has formulated the “Employee Training Management
Policy” internally. Each department determines the training
needs according to its own business development needs and the
ability of the personnel for the position. The training can be divided
into internal and external training according to the organisation. It
can also be separated into orientation training, corporate culture
training and professional skills training according to training
objectives.
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Orientation
training

MARE T

Introduction employees to
the basic information

of the Group, personal
performance evaluation
process, attendance system,
job responsibilities, work
regulations as well as safety
production system, etc.
REINBAEENERE
B NBERE ZHEE T8
HIE - EARE s TIERER
F-ZEEEFES

Development pathway,
strategic planning of the
Group, etc.
NABAREBBE E B - BB
RE%F
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Employee training category

B THEaIER

2
o\
258

Corporate culture
training

L

e Help employees understand
the history of the Group,
development outlines and
strategies, goals, recreational
activities, employee
development channels, etc.
EMET THRASENESE »
TERAZNRER -BE -EEH
XL ES BTHREBES

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

Top instructors training,
driving skill training
REHTBHZEEIN B
BB £

Strengthen employees’
professional skills, such as
accounting, audit, statistics,
human resource management,
sales, networking, etc.
HOHMBETIRSE =
KE BHNBOERH B
e HEt s ASVBEREE 1
E-RES
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE-HEghERKS (B)

During the year, a total of 160 employees received training with
total 229 hours of training and a training rate of 98%. For details
of employee training data, please refer to the “Performance Data
Summary”.

FR > FFELE160RETEZE
H4EBEE 229/ By » 12 )H%%KL98%
S B T3l 8RR 2 B T8RRI
HE|FKo

success.

HEEBMREETIE

Various training activities organised for the employees to enhance their
performance, align skills with business goals, and drive organizational

3l LURERERIER » REEREBERRE—

o WHEEHEBART o

Professional training

Digital marketing has become an integral part of modern business
strategies. To respond to this trend, the Group introduced Douyin
training last year which is to enhance digital marketing skills of
the employee and offers diverse career opportunities to them.
With positive feedback received from this training, the Group is
expected to organise similar training in the near future.

Health and Safety

The Group has been providing driving training services for many
years with a certain scale and position in the industry and is well
aware of the occupational health and safety risks faced by the
instructors. The Group attaches great importance to physical
and mental health and safety of the employees, and strives to
provide a healthy, safe, and comfortable working environment
for the employees, so as to ensure a smooth running of teaching
activities and daily operations under safe and controllable
conditions. Throughout this year, there is no report of any staff
involved in work-related injuries.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Road and vehicle safety

As a driving training service provider, road and vehicle safety are
the keys to safety at driving schools. We organise road safety
inspections once a month and require our drivers to strictly
comply with traffic regulations and safe driving practices. We also
arrange for driving instructors to participate in safety education
and training seminars on a regular basis. In addition, the Group
has set up a vehicle management team to regularly maintain,
inspect and repair vehicles. We also require driving instructors to
consciously take care of vehicles in daily teaching work, not to
lend vehicles to personnel of external units, and strictly record and
manage each vehicle in use to ensure the normal and safe use of
training vehicles.

AN

Safety Training

In order to enhance employees’ awareness of occupational
health and safety, enhance their ability to respond to safety
incidents and reduce the occurrence of occupational hazards
and accidents, we regularly organise various safety education
activities.

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

BERETLEE

TR ERIRIIIRTS R - ERNEWMZEE
BRZE2TFRRRE - IR EM—X
BRZERE  BEREREBRRETE
ERM L 2 ERIR RS - FfIFRTRE
BERBRSRLE2HBIEIIEE - It
Sh > AEBRBEWEIR/VE 0 EHRHE
WIRE © BEMNEE > WEREREEH
ENHRBTEHERERER LB
BWEINEUAE B8 —aEREWHE
B ERE > REEIJEWAEHNERENE
2 -

<«

Regular professional training
for the driving instructors and
administrative staff
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE-HEghERKS (B)

Safeguarding Employees’ Health

We are aware of the potential health risks of our driving instructors
and other employees during their normal work and have
implemented certain protective measures against these risks.

RIES TS RERFE

T RBIRE R EAME T/ TR L
BYRTREHIRAYRER AR - W H BB AR
R T —ERIBHEEENE ©

Health risks of employees

BT #ERERE

Driving instructors

/ e | ong-term fatigue can easily lead to °
Liver-Qi stagnation
RIS ZREFRES

e | aryngitis caused by excessive use of °
the throat
Health MRIREE AR R 5] 3 MR K
Risks e |umbar disc protrusion caused by
(EEEN long-term work in the car .

RAEREAE FT/EM S| & B ERRZE Y

e |ong-term exposure to car exhaust may
cause lung disease and anemia
RSB R R A BB Em - &M

.

Back pain caused by long-term sitting \
and standing

RIS IMBEREE

Working on the computer for a long time

can easily cause eye disease and eye

fatigue

REEHER S 5| RR > RERS

Using mouse for a long term can easily

lead to ankylosis
RGERBREZ S A B

/

/ e Combine on-board and off-board e Encourage employees to move their \
teaching cervical spine, legs and wrists in real time
. B FHSEMBETNHBES B8 TEREENTEM « BREPA B
Protective e Provide tea and throat lozenges for e Sit upright, drink plenty of water, and
Mef_sir?f driving instructors wash hands frequently
ok 21y FEUR B H R KA MR = A I IE A ZIFK > BT
e Purchase accident insurance for driving
instructors
\_ ABEEBERING
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Employee Composition

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

BT

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 160 #{E2024F12831H » AEEHEHF160
employees, with 113 male employees, accounting for %ETI > BEMETH113% > LHh71%
approximately 71%. About 59% of the employees were between  #959% MY 8 T EEH<30-505% 2 5 « &EE
30 and 50 years old. The Group had 8 management employees, HAEEBEBHSA » 49155% c FIEET
accounting for approximately 5% of total number of employees. IFAHE o £ » ZEBMWE TREAEXRS
All employees were located in China. During the year, the 37.2%°

employee turnover rate of the Group was 37.2%.

Gender Profile

P32 e

71%

@ Mae Female
2 %

Turnover Rates by Age

BREREISHREER

70

469
- 59.46%

49.85%
50
42.62%
40—
31.25%
30—
20—
o}
10 9.52%
0 .
<30 30-50 >50
2023 ® 2024

Age Profile
FW oM
6%
34%
60%
30 or below ® 31-50 51 or above
30 BT 31-50%% 515 E

Turnover Rates by Gender

BRI B 57 BR R E

60

50 46.78%

2023 2024
Male @® Female
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE-HEghERKS (B)

Employee Communication

We attach great importance to the quality of employees’ work
and therefore have established a comprehensive feedback
and communication system to actively listen to employees’
suggestions and opinions on the Group’s internal operations and
adjust operational measures to improve employees’ satisfaction.
The Group has established an internal review team for reasonable
suggestions. If an unreasonable situation is found in daily work,
employees can report to the department head every Friday, and
the person-in-charge screens and reports to the review team. The
team reviews and approves implementation of specific plans to
improve internal operations after discussion.

Employee Activities

The Group organized various activities for employees ever year
to enhance their value, build stronger bonds, and promote
their overall well-being. This year, a team-building activity was
organized with the theme of “Adhering to Party Discipline,
Commemorating Martyrs, and Supporting the Driver Training
Industry.”, offering key takeaways such as understanding and
upholding organizational values, historical and cultural awareness,
teamwork and collaboration and civic and social Responsibility.

BT
HNEEE TN IFESE BT —ExE
B BB ﬁﬁ%mézﬁmﬁi

AEPEZNEZNRR > (EMARESIE
MUIREEETHMRE ° $$.W‘n‘|§u
BIEEETS/)E > ABETWERS
TERERASIEERESER FIREFT
%EA > B AEFER LFRETE /A > )

AT mEEERAER S ZBUNESNES
@M ®

= MrT )
rEBSFAETHAMLIEESD » LUEFH
BTEE X BUERENEF > HEES

E%?E?Jt RE > HPAEB T U BT

A MRS BINEBEERIAEE
E’Jl%ﬁ%k mE o RMHIERRA R EE
B8« BEEMXEEH - BERSIFENTG
F ~ ARMU G SEFRARUGE -

On the other hand, the Group also held the 2024
Driving Instructor Professional Skills Competition,
which is designed to enhance the quality and
professionalism of driving instructors, particularly
in the context of driver training.

B—FHE > AEBTEM 72024 FREHRE
HERERE > STRAEMBANIEMNELE
KA THZREEREEIIAE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with national laws? and SA8000
standards and prohibits child and forced labour. To ensure
compliance, all candidates are required to fill in the Group’s
“Entry Registration Form” and the personnel department
reviews their identity cards and health certificates. The office
staff checks whether the content filled is consistent with the
submitted certificates. If any problems are found, they are rectified
accordingly. In the event that child labour is found to have been
negligently employed, the child worker is suspended immediately,
and health checks are arranged after which he/she is returned
to his/her parents or guardian as soon as possible. In addition,
we maintain contact with the parents or guardians of the child to
ensure that the child will return to the school for education.

Compliance with laws

We strictly comply with laws and regulations and have established
effective policies and procedures to ensure that the Group’s
business is in compliance with laws and regulations in all
aspects. The management of the Group closely monitors the
latest regulatory developments and provides necessary training
to relevant personnel. Same as 2023 year, during the year, the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, anti-discrimination,
other benefits and welfare, prevention of child and forced labour,
provision of a safe working environment and protection of
employees from occupational hazards; and there were no cases
of work-related fatalities or occupational diseases or incidents of
material penalties due to violation of labour-related laws.

2 Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for child labour and forced
labour-related laws and regulations

RIE-HEghERKS (B)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE-HEghERKS (B)

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Compliance is essential for the Group’s smooth operations.
In order to continuously promote excellence in operations and
management, we have implemented various measures in multiple
aspects such as service quality, supply chain management,
information security and intellectual property protection.

Service Quality

The Group is committed to continuously improve service quality,
trainee satisfaction, and strictly comply with the laws and
regulations® related to training services of driving schools. To
ensure compliance, we set out in the “Management Approach of
the Teaching Affairs Office” about the relevant requirements for
the process of pre-training, training, and examination participation
of trainees, and clarify the responsibilities of each department to
ensure the implementation of professional and compliant teaching
services. Due to the Group’s business nature, disclosure on
product recall procedures and number of products recalled are
not applicable.

& Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for driving training quality-
related laws and regulations
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Teaching Quality Management

In order to ensure the quality of driving training, standardise
teaching behaviours, and provide first-class teaching services
for trainees, we adhere to the training concept of “people-
oriented and warm service”, and continuously improve interna
systems and policies, strengthen the team management of driving
instructors, and improve teaching level.

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

HEHEEE

PHIREERIEINEE > RBBBTH > UL
M2 8 RE—RNBERS - HAIRK
TUARZ ~ BMEIRTS) BULERIRES »
STEENBHEBR > NRERBREKE
B RBEBKT o

Internal policy
improvement

TERIBEER

Management
of driving
instructors team

HREEZFEE

Establish and improve various rules and regulations of the Group to provide system
guarantee for effective management of teaching and training, and all tasks have rules
and laws to follow

BIURSAEEZEREGNE #BNEBHSEIIREFERE EELFEHRIIEE
BI1E > BIERIK

Set up a supervision centre, which is mainly responsible for the management of
instructors’ teaching arrangements and the situation of trainees

HSHMRUBET L TEASEERREHAZZH THENZEBR

Strengthen the construction and assessment of instructors’ business ethics, supervise
and inspect coaches’ teaching conditions

BIEBREREEREREAETR HHRHBERETEERE

Instructors must have the appropriate qualifications, and regularly review the teaching
level and business ethics, and publish the teaching quality rankings of the instructors
HREBEABHEED I FEARBMRENBB KN EEEETTIE AHHERE
NHEESBHTIBR

We will not tolerate behaviours that harm the interests of trainees. Those who violate
business ethics will be punished or expelled from the driving school
HRBEEBEANRNTA BFAEE HHERBEEENAE  BER—BHATHEER
SRR

Implement the academic affairs, timely disclosing the issues and major issues that
instructors and trainees are concerned about

ETRBAR BERENBERONHENERSZERFRESF ME A
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BRE-HEghERKS (B)

In addition, we hold regular trainee seminars, administer surveys
and organise online exchanges to understand their opinions and
suggestions on training, education, teaching and management
services, and make timely adjustments to continuously improve
the level of teaching services.

Improve Trainee Satisfaction

The Board of Directors pays high attention to our trainees’
satisfaction, therefore closely monitors the complaints handling
and passing rate performance. The Group regulates the complaint
handling mechanism through the “Complaint Management
Methods” and the “Complaint Process” to ensure that
issues raised by the trainees can be responded to and properly
handled in a timely manner. Upon receipt of complaints from
trainees, the relevant employees solve the problems of trainees
timely in accordance with the principle of “rapid, efficient and
satisfactory” to improve their satisfaction.

tesh > HFIBBERCREEENE - [
BRHENE LIRS » THRESHIEIIIR
BHENEERFHENERMER I
MEEHAAEE » TERAEBIRFS KT -

lEHAEEREE
EFRsEERSENREE > Rite®
PR ERFRIENBBERNRIER - £5H
wiB (K EEE) M (KFmiz) R
REFBRIERS] - RSP E R ERBIFIRERE
FrSEIRIE % ERIE - ERWEIEER
FEER  HEALFASKRIRE -5
M mR ) NIRB R A2 EFORRE
RABENMEE -

Complaint handling process

KR EERE

Receive complaint
Analyse reasons

information
=y 5 [
N e * ARE *
* Analyse the issues, confirm e The responsible department e Follow up the process

whether it is possible

DRFEN BREERE

analyse the cause and
propose a solution

BIEE BEEBPID T R A R R T 1 .

BRERDZR
e Determine the responsible

department e The supervisors approve the
T S EERF solution
FEEEMTEELZR

To enhance trainees’ sense of identity, apart from training and
assessment of driving instructors and logistics staff from time to
time, the registration centre, training centre and recruitment office
of the Group have taken the required improvement measures to
improve service quality.
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RIERIRAE

Summarise complaints to
improve service levels, and
reduce the occurrence of
customers’ complaints
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P—

& =
Registration centre 3 g ce
T g

e Adopt a reasonable division of o
labour, improve the efficiency
and quality of registration
work, and flexibly arrange the
examination time
KINGED T RE B TIEN
XEES BETHE ARG .

for trainees

BEE

and solve the problems
e (Clarify the refund system,
reduce disputes due to refunds
AR EGIE RO RERE L
REA 4

soon as possible

28 Rk BREE

Information Security and Intellectual Property Protection

The Group attaches great importance to information security
and intellectual property protection. To this end, the Group has
established relevant management procedures and systems
such as the “Security System” and the “Intellectual Property
Management System”. All employees are required to comply
with relevant systems, laws and regulations*, strictly control
internal management, ensure information security and protect
intellectual property rights.

We have set out in the “Security System” measures in relation
to the Group’s internal information such as financial statements,
payroll tables and market research reports, requiring employees
not to disclose major events and important information of the
Group. We strictly prohibit any leakage of confidential documents,
and effectively protect internal information. The “Intellectual
Property Management System” provides guidance for the Group
to manage intellectual property related matters, effectively protect
the Group’s intellectual property rights from infringement, and
encourage employees’ enthusiasm for invention and creation.
We organise relevant training activities to popularise the legal
knowledge of intellectual property to employees, and strictly
combat any infringement of intellectual property rights. We
encourage our employees to innovate and reward employees who
have made outstanding contributions to technology transfer and
intellectual property protection.

& Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for intellectual property
rights-related laws and regulations

Inform the examination and
appointment related matters

~BEENE S REIRE

reported by the trainees as

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

e Make a return visit to the
trainees, and report the return
visit questions to the training
centre in time
HyF 2 8Bl 0 I & 5§ [El 55
7B PE 4R 3R 5 S Al AR R

Speed up problem handling,

PR RE AR IR IR B IRAE IR

SERERAHEERE
FEBSEEREEXRERNHAMEER
& 0 IR (REHE) B(NBERE
BfE) SHREERERFE  FIEE
TRBT RIS ELERER  BRIRICE
RNHEE > REEELENMMERE

I (REFIE) PIIBHEREY RS
THEK MHASRESSEAERERNTEN
WREHN » EXRXRETIAEERESEEN
EXFRNEBHERER » BEINRE
AREXMF > YERERNBEERZE °
(I EREESE) A RSB EENH
ERERSERMES  BRRESER
MBEETZRIE » SB 8 THERIEN
BB - JFIBHFRRAREINEE > [
BT ENRABERSEERENR BB
FTEERRICAHMEERNTTS o ISR
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BRE-HEghERKS (B)

Privacy Protection

We attach great importance to protection of trainees’ personal
information. The Group has set up separate personal information
files for all trainees, which are managed by special personnel. In
general, we seldom make personnel changes except for special
reasons to protect the privacy of trainees. If reviewing is needful,
the borrowing registration procedures and the approval of the
director of the training centre must be completed before the
access of the trainee information.

Anti-corruption

Business integrity is highly valued. The Group strictly abides
by the relevant national laws and regulations®, regulates the
behaviours of relevant functional departments and employees,
and prevents the occurrence of fraud. We have established a
series of internal anti-fraud systems and monitoring policies that
define non-compliance that may cause damage to the Group’s
economic interests, the purpose being to safeguard the Group’s
reputation and interests. We require each employee to sign the
“Corrupt Practices Commitment”, and employees are required
to ensure that disclosure of the Group’s trade secrets and the
use of trade secrets to make profits for themselves or others is
prohibited. They need to strictly comply with national laws and the
Group’s rules and regulations and the promote individual private
interests under the guise of serving the public is prohibited.

In order to further strengthen the integrity of the Group and
supervision and management of school-level practices, we have
set up an inspection team system to regularly investigate the
working system and implementation of each department on a
monthly basis.

Whistleblowing mechanism

The Group has established an “Anti-fraud (Reporting) System”,
and we encourage employees to report violations, disciplinary
violations, illegality, fraud and acts that are detrimental to the
interests and image of the Group through various channels. If the
reported incident is verified after investigation, the whistle-blower is
rewarded accordingly.

J Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for anti-corruption related
laws and regulations
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The inspection team, as a standing body for anti-fraud work
of the Group, is responsible for accepting complaints and
reports, formulating investigation plans, and conducting relevant
investigation. After the investigation, the inspection team prepares
an investigation report for the relevant departments.

If the report finds the accusation wrong, punishment is awarded
to the whistle-blower according to the Group’s rules and
regulations, and the responsibility of the relevant person is
seriously investigated. For general complaints such as adverse
comments and unconscionable behaviours, the inspection team
should interview relevant personnel and give warning reminders.
For suspected illegality, we promptly transfer them to the judicial
authority for handling.

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

EENMEFATERREETFEREE
BERERFER > FIERAES RILET
HERAE - FEERRES/VEHERRH
BREWAEEEER °

EZBENERER  HEREAEENSR
SHEHRRHRAGTRENBR » L&
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Whistle-blowing and handling procedures

RHAE

The inspection
team accept
and confirm the
information
B R/NVAZ IR FERR
BRER

Employee

report cases
B TH8%

Penalise who
violates the

regulations or laws

BREERNEZEZAR

e Employees can
report the cases to
their supervisors
rank by rank or to
the inspection team
directly
BT AZKR AR
BRIE S TR B M
E&/NERR

Accept the reported
information
RIBRBER

Record reported
content

SERBEHREAR

Judgment of the type
of report: major report
at the Group level,
report from senior
audit managers, and
general report
MERRELY  EH
BEEARRR F5t
SEEEASER.
—AR R

Develop and
implement the
investigation plan

T E FEE R ET
HE

Complete the
investigation report
and report to the
management
MERTRSILER

EEERE

Determine the
solutions

TRIE B R FE T

Interview persons
involved in
noncompliance and
issue warning
KBOF R —RRERT
ROAB B TET
el

Compensate for the
Group’s economic
losses or refund the
economic benefits
obtained
BEREERNEASE
BRBBLRIRER
BHRENNKEN &

Transfer suspected
offenders to judicial
authorities
KBS S REEN B
BREBEKRIEIER
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BRE-HEghERKS (B)

In addition, we have also established systems to protect the
privacy and security of whistle-blowers by keeping their personal
information confidential and prohibiting any kind of retaliation.
The inspection team and the relevant departments involved in
the investigation keep the personal information confidential, such
as the name and phone number of the whistle-blower and the
contents of the report. When accepting a report or verifying the
situation with the whistle-blower, it is ensured that the identity
of the whistle-blower is not exposed. The identity information of
the whistle-blower is kept strictly confidential when publicizing,
reporting and awarding the whistle-blower. We strictly prohibit
any retaliation, and those who violate the rules and disclose the
information of the whistle-blower or retaliate against the whistle-
blower are dismissed and the labour contract is terminated.
Cases of any violation of the law are transferred to the judicial
authority.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are our close partners and the foundation for us to
maintain a stable supply chain. The Group’s suppliers mainly
consist of fuel suppliers, suppliers for training and test vehicles,
suppliers for on-board equipment and monitoring equipment, and
suppliers for construction works. During the year, we had a total
of more than 12 suppliers.

Selection and evaluation of suppliers

The Group has formulated the “Supplier Evaluation Process”,
the “Procurement Management Measures” and other system
documents to regulate the procurement process and ensure
that the products and services provided by suppliers meet
our requirements. The Group selects suppliers based on the
cooperating principles of high-quality, low-price, contract-
emphasis, honesty and trustworthiness, effective management
and close range. Before procurement, we evaluate suppliers
through interviews, on-site visits, and background checks, and
record the evaluation information in the “Supplier Information
Survey Form”, which is reviewed and approved by the director
of the procurement department before purchase.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE-HgRER®RE ()

Supplier assessment criteria

{4 FE o T Mk R 1
Litigation incident
AR
Mortgage and pledge of assets
BEREFRR

Inquiries, comparisons and bargains
HE LLBAEE
Visit suppliers’ plants or warehouses if necessary

WERESHER IRAEE

Procurement amount
REBREE
Payment methods

ARAER

Obtain the information from its cooperators about the cooperation model, shipments,
reputation, etc. if the supplier is an agency

AERANER REHEENSEAREREERFEAENSGFERX - HEE EEF

In addition, we also conduct annual assessment on all suppliers  th9h » FRPITRE B A B R ETE E T
to ensure the quality of products and services provided by them, & > UMREERFTIREN ER MRS E
which in turn ensures the quality and safety of the Group’s training £ > EMRBAERIZIIEBHNRENL

business.
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BRE-HEghERKS (B)

Green procurement

To fulfill the aim of environmental sustainability in supply chain
management, procurement of eco-friendly products is given
priority where possible and economically viable. The Group
has been closely working with our suppliers to strengthen our
sustainability portfolio and minimise risks throughout the supply
chain and is committed to promoting sustainable and responsible
operational standards. Despite that we consider the environmental
impact on our supply chain is insignificant, the Group prefers local
suppliers whenever possible to reduce carbon emissions from
transportation and to support the local economy. During the year,
all suppliers of the Group were located in China.

Compliance with laws

As mentioned in previous sections, we understand the importance
of compliance with laws and regulations and have formulated
corresponding prevention, supervision and detection measures to
ensure obeying laws and regulations related to bribery, extortion,
fraud and laundering. During the year, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to advertising, privacy
matters, health and safety of services provided; nor was it aware
of any non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud, and laundering; nor any concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or our employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We are committed to striking a balance between business
operations and environmental protection, contributing to a
greener environment through energy conservation and emissions
reduction. In the future, we will continue to improve our
environmental management approach, optimise environmental
performance and achieve sustainable operations of the Group.
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Environmental Management

The Group recognizes its social corporate responsibility in
environmental protection and commits to promoting responsible
operation in its business. The Group has established the Green
Office Policy with an aim of creating a green working environment
and raising our employee’s awareness. The policy focuses
on relevant environmental aspects to the Group’s business
including energy saving practices, paper-free office, water
conservation, and good indoor air quality. Also, the Group has
established Environmental Protection Policy to delegate the
responsibility of consumption monitoring and promotion to
different functional departments. We strictly abide by national
environmental laws and regulations®, continuously establish and
improve various energy conservation and environmental protection
systems and strive to reduce the impact of our operations on the
ecological environment. The environmental management of the
Group is led by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, while the
business department and the logistics support department guide
and supervise the relevant work of the teaching affairs office,
office, and vehicle management room respectively, and report to
the Board of Directors on a regular basis. Due to the nature of the
Group’s business, we do not consume any packaging materials
in our daily operations, and the impact on the environment mainly
comes from fuel consumption and emissions of the vehicles.

g Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for environment-related laws
and regulations
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BRE-HtEghERRS (&

Organisational structure of environmental management
IRIFEIRAMEEE

Chairman

EER

(

Business Department

E3 3

Teaching Affair Office
5§07

Resources Conservation

Total Energy Consumption and Intensity
RERHEAEREE
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Consumption (‘000 kWh)
HIEE (FTRE)

2,000 ——

2023 2024

@ Indirect Energy e—e Intensity
SRS BE

Direct Energy
BHREBER

For details of environmental data, please refer to the “Performance

Data Summary”.
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Energy Management

Energy consumption in the Group’s daily operations mainly
includes petrol, diesel (direct energy) and purchased electricity
(indirect energy). During the year, the Group’s total energy
consumption was 8.278.29 thousand kWh, with an energy
consumption intensity of 0.26 thousand kWh per thousand
RMB revenue. Among them, the direct energy consumption was
7,301.29 thousand kWh, and indirect energy consumption was
977 thousand kWh.

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions generated by the Group
include direct emissions from fuel combustion of vehicles (Scope
1) and energy indirect emissions from the use of electricity (Scope
2). During the year, the Group’s total GHG emissions amounted
to 2,445.76 tCO2e, which consisted of 1,849.69 tCO2e direct
GHG emissions (Scope 1) and 596.07 tCO2e energy indirect
GHG emissions (Scope 2).

Compared with prior year, the GHG emission generated from
the Group was lower than 2023. Both direct GHG emissions
(Scope 1) and indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) were lower as
the Group had a smaller energy consumption in diesel, gasoline
and purchased electricity during the Year. The lower energy
consumption was mainly due to efficient energy policy. As the
energy consumption varies with the business activities of the
Group’s vehicles, the Group targets to maintain the energy
consumption intensity and GHG emissions intensity not higher
than 5% of the level during the year (FY2024) in the coming 5
years. We aim to achieve such targets through the measures
below.

Fuel consumption of vehicles is a major component of the
Group’s energy consumption. We have continued to adopt
various measures to save energy and improve efficiency. We
carry out training, publicity and education activities related to
energy conservation and emission reduction from time to time to
enhance the awareness of all employees and encourage energy
conservation and emission reduction in day-to-day operations. At
the same time, we strive to create a green, environment-friendly,
low-carbon and energy-saving office environment, practice
green office culture, start with details, saving electricity and office
supplies.
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=

Driving training

BRI
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Electricity
saving
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Brcm RR R ERNIRE BRRMEE

Prioritise to use water-saving appliances
B AEKERA

Restrict training vehicles from driving on the road

Use customised versions of driving school training vehicles

Turn off lights, computers and other electrical appliances in time

Use natural light to illuminate when sufficient to avoid turning on electric lights

Check whether the faucets are closed from time to time to avoid leaking water

REHKGE KERZR TR BRRK

Check that all taps are fastened before knocking off

THRIBEMAEKEBRRESTEER
Repair or replace the valve in time
R B 32 5% S A R P

é

Office supplies
saving

ERAIH 2 A

EENRBIRERY &

Water Conservation

The Group is well aware that water shortage is an increasingly
serious challenge and therefore we have implemented a series
of water-saving measures in our daily operations and continue
to cultivate employees’ awareness of the need for water
conservation. We post “Water Conservation” signs at water
taps in the office and require employees to turn off the water
taps immediately after use. During the year, the total water
consumption of the Group was 14,301.00 tonnes and the water
consumption intensity was 0.44 tonnes per thousand RMB
revenue. The Group did not have any issue in sourcing water fit
for the purpose.

The water consumption intensity is higher than last year. The
Group targets to maintain the water consumption intensity at the
level during the year (FY2024) in the coming 5 years to ensure the
effectiveness of the above water saving measures.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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Advocate paperless office, double-sided printing, or handing around the documents to
reduce paper use, and encouraging the use of renewable paper

REERCHA SEITENSUERXARNER BB TR B £ H 7] B £
Use recyclable items such as refill pens, toner cartridges and rechargeable batteries
FERITERATHNE - BM N ZTEENE I RIRERNY @

Encourage to purchase environmentally friendly items

BIEKkEIR

FRRAKBESKEAS - AEERAKE
IRAE A H m BRIE APk E > FIRAEE
EREH—RIEKER > TREEES
THVERMIER - PN AERKEEER
SRAG TENAAR/K &R hE - WESRBTHEF
R KEET R - AEBBBFEKESR
14,3010 » FKBESESTTARBER
§R0.44M8 o A& E I EAFERGE A KR
EAYRERE o

RKZEEBSIRESF - EEHBZERITKR
RO FASFEKE E MR AEE (20245
WEE) KT > R EAEKERTZ
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Emissions Management

Exhaust Emissions Management

The major exhaust emissions generated from the Group’s daily
operations are nitrogen oxides (NOXx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and
particulate matter (PM) emitted from vehicles. During the year,
we generated 12.89 tonnes of nitrogen oxides, 0.01 tonnes of
sulphur oxides and 1.26 tonnes of particulate matter from vehicle

fuel consumption.

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

BN ER
EREE

WERRE LY K21 . 26MASE I ©

FEBHEEEELNBERSRYEER
RSB RALYINOX) ~ HRAL)
(SOXNUKFRFRIF(PM) o A » FFIEIE
A HFEE S 12.89MER AL ~ 0.01

Exhaust emissions Unit

BEREFNE 1y 2024 2023
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) tonnes 12.89 18.21
aaty) U

Sulphur Oxides (SOx) tonnes 0.01 0.02
ekl ) MR

Particulate Matter (PM) tonnes 1.26 1.78
TR F U

We continue to adopt a series of measures to reduce emissions

and to protect the environment.

3

R > (REEIRIR ©

Emission reduction measures

RS

Formulate emission management rules
and strictly manage vehicle and canteen
soot emissions to reduce the impact on
the environment

HIERE R EIRMA] > B E IR EmWE RBF
B BEHERR UREHRRENTE

Motor vehicles shall undergo annual
inspections in accordance with
regulations to ensure that emissions meet
national requirements
HENB IR EETER BERRFERRT
SEIREK

Use clean energy in the canteen, as well
as the soot separation equipment to
control air pollution caused by the soot in
the canteen

REEHRABRER WA REDBE
B UEHIEERMES RN ER TR

‘Y‘

&=

Regularly conduct vehicle evaluation and
maintenance, and promptly replace vehicle
environmental protection equipment, such as air
filters, diesel filters, etc., to avoid unnecessary
emissions due to the aging of the equipment,
and gradually eliminate the vehicles with heavy
fuel consumption and emissions
EHTEEMEABLLEMRRE  REER
BRRARHZE WERES S HESE B
HAEmEEREECEETHENERBER
WELAAFEHEN BEREFMEANET

mREEERERAT
—TNFEFR

BB RERTIETR LU D B RS RY)
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BRE-HEghERKS (B)

Wastewater Management

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, our daily operations
do not involve industrial wastewater discharge. The wastewater
generated by the Group is mainly domestic wastewater from
office and cleaning areas. The canteen wastewater and toilet
wastewater generated by us are transferred to the sedimentation
tank and septic tank respectively through the sewage pipe
network, and the relevant local departments are responsible for
recycling and treatment. During the year, all domestic wastewater
generated by the Group was treated and discharged in
accordance with the requirements of the laws and regulations of
the places where it operates. The data for wastewater discharge
was not available.

Waste Management

Food waste generated from the Group’s canteen is the major
non-hazardous waste disposal of the Group. To mitigate the
disposal, the Group has adopted various measures in the canteen
area, including delegate supervision in the canteen and prohibit
food wastage, thus closely monitor the effectiveness of the
measures.

The Group regulates the waste discharge procedures by setting
up a fixed waste collection and storage point in the waste-
generating departments to collect recyclable and nonrecyclable
waste separately. For general wastes that cannot be handled
timely, protective measures such as anti-diffusion and anti-
blowing are taken to prevent secondary pollution during storage.
When the amount of recyclable waste is accumulated to a certain
level, the logistics support department is responsible for handing
it over to qualified waste disposal companies for recycling.

Hazardous waste such as waste engine oil is generated during the
Group’s vehicle maintenance process. As vehicle maintenance
work is undertaken by third-party service providers, hazardous
waste generated is not included in the Group’s waste data. The
remaining Group’s daily operations do not generate hazardous
waste. During the year, the Group produced a total of 111.54
tonnes of non-hazardous waste, including general office waste
and food waste generated from office and canteen areas, with
waste intensity of 3.45 kg of waste generated per thousand RMB
revenue.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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BEERE  RILRERY) > KMEVER
EHEATRIR o

AERRLERYBIER - RELER
¥ BYBRFIER 1L B FE BUBE SRR SR 17 IR
DHEWE R BRI AR EERY) - B
REM SRR IR —ARBEZEY) - ISR IR
BB h BN B s E B L BE ) — R 5%
BYpIEEFEN - EFRINERERDERE—E
HER > RYPEENEERTAEERNE
RN CUREERY)

NEE R BB BTE N BEE L U B H
LZEEEREY) c HFVREEEBITEHEARSE
= HIRBHERES » BUREEBEEN
BEBEEY A NANEBNEEYEIER
TR o BN AREEEHE111.54NEEEEE
24 GERAMBE & EE R
NHIR BRI » BEBREYREAS
T AR ESEREELES.45T RREEY) ©



V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4 4

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

While the waste intensity slightly increased over the year, by
implementing the aforesaid measure, the Group has confident to
maintain the non-hazardous waste disposal intensity at the level
during the year (FY2024) in the coming 5 years to ensure the
effectiveness of the above waste reduction measures.

Climate Change

The Group recognizes the importance of the identification and
mitigation of significant climate-related issues, therefore closely
monitors the potential impact of climate change on our business
and operations. In accordance with the reporting framework
developed by the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures, there are two major categories of climate-related
risks, physical and transition risks.

The Group is well noted of the implementation of the updated
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Code that
will be effective since the Financial Year of 2025. The Group is
prepared to follow and comply in the coming years.

Physical Risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather events
such as typhoons, storms, heavy rainfalls, and extreme cold
or heat bring acute and chronic physical risks to the Group’s
business. The Group’s capacity and productivity will be reduced
under extreme weather events as the safety of our employees is
threatened and the operational sites might be damaged, which
exposes the Group to risks associated with non-performance and
delayed performance, leading to direct negative impact on the
Group’s revenue.

To minimize the potential risks and hazards, the Group
has established mitigation plans, including flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad or extreme
weather conditions such as typhoon and black rainstorm.
The Group will explore emergency plan to further reduce the
vulnerability of our installations to extreme weather events in order
to enhance business stability.

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

HABERYEERFERNBEEN - BEB
B EHER 0 AEEBE OEARKLE
NKEEERREYRETERFEILREE
(2024BA M ) BIKTF » DAREGR LRI BE
EHEAIRLRL ©

SRS
AEERRE - WA E A FIRAAR
ME+HEE  RiERTaEey
RPLHEREENEELE - RIERIEH
RIBITS 15 BB TIRARSIE R REIES -
FREMERS A YRR EERAA

Ho

AEEHEHENGRE - B RERR
ST HNERRTEZRE » &Ii551#
FR20268 B EREER - FEECEMET
TERREF BB T o

I EE

BeE ~ BT~ R~ BRIHE SR IAF K
IWRREHEREERNBEERELEAR
1 BAEENRBHER T R RRERN
YRR ER - EBHERAEHRT » EH
WEEREENSETE > ARETIHNE
EREWE  BEMRAERIR B
AEREERENEQNMEEBEAERYE
% M EEENWRAEREREER
%= o

i BERRNREERERK  AEEE
HIs]iEfEstE) B ERAKRBEREDTER
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BRE-HEghERKS (B)

Transition Risks

According to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(“IPCC”) special report, a more aggressive greenhouse gas
reduction target is needed to address the increasing threat from
climate change. To achieve the global vision on carbon neutrality,
the Group expects evolution of the regulatory, technological
and market landscape due to climate change, including the
tightening of national policies and listing rules and the emergence
of environmentally related taxes. Stricter environmental laws and
regulations may expose enterprises to higher risks of claims and
lawsuits, which might incur additional compliance costs and affect
the reputation of the Group.

In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation
risks, the Group constantly monitors any changes in laws or
regulations and global trends on climate change to avoid cost
increments, non-compliance fines or reputational risks due
to delayed response. In addition, the Group has been taking
comprehensive environmental protection measures, including
GHG reduction measures, has set targets to gradually reduce the
Group’s energy consumption and GHG emissions in the future.

Compliance with laws

As mentioned in previous sections, we understand the importance
of compliance with laws and regulations and have formulated
the corresponding prevention, supervision, and detection
measures to ensure compliance with laws and regulations on
environmental protection. During the year, the Group was not
aware of any non-compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

As an enterprise with a strong sense of social responsibility,
the Group remains committed to giving back to the society and
pursuing the common development of the enterprise and the
society. During the year, we actively participated in social welfare
activities, such as convoy for the examination candidates, and
visiting Fire and Recuse Department. The Group donated a
total of RMB5,000 in social welfare activities, and employees
participated in public welfare activities for approximately 1,990
hours with a total of 860 volunteers from our employees.

The Group fully aware of providing support to the needy and the
hands-on contribution of employees to the society. The Group
organized a number of welfare activities, mainly donations and
volunteer work.

Donations and Volunteer

Our employees actively participated in supporting the high
school entry examination by providing essential supplies to duty
officers and assisting with operations. Additionally, the Group has
been providing free transportation services for high school entry
students taking the exam to the examination halls, demonstrating
our commitment to supporting education and our community.

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

HESH

ERAEHEEERNER  AEE—H
BN EIEHE - BREXNHEEHIHE
BE o AFR  BARB2ELET @)
g - MEBLBE ~ HehREDE B RIEEEF]
% FR - FEEHIBRARES,0007T
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Visit to the Fire and Recuse
Department
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RE-HERERKRS ()

Employees providing transportation to
the students during the high school entry
examination

EPERE > BIATERMHTETA

Our social engagement is highly recognized by various RKfIFE2EEE T IEERARNS
organisations, and we will continue our contribution to the society.  Ezin] » HFIFEESTZMHEER ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Volunteer training

The Group has also utilized the specialty of the business and
provide volunteer training to furnish the needy with the capability
to drive and obtain employment opportunities. We aim to enhance
with awareness of our employees on community involvement and
promote the spirit of contributing to our society.

Social Recognition

In view of the Group’s effort in promoting road and vehicle safety,
we are awarded as The 2024 Outstanding Member Unit by the
Driving Training Branch of the China Transportation Association.

RIE-HEghERKS (B)

E5E

AEBTHMAEEBHNER » BHEFE
Il REREANTRURREE R ER
T RMEARSEIHHEZEMNE
s W EE BRI E RV o

L ETA

MR AEE AR EEREERL LS EN
77 HARPEIR B E w7 & B BE
NEBET024FEBHEEEEN

Over the year, the Group has continued to lifting our ethical and
safety standard. Our awards demonstrated our effort in
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RE-HERERKRS ()

LAWS AND REGULATIONS EREGER
The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations,  EEEBRIRETERBAER AR » BB
including but not limited to the following: FERIEUTREA -
Aspects Applicable Laws and Regulations Corresponding Chapter
B BERRERRER HEZH
A1 Emissions e Environmental Protection Law of the People’s | Environmental Protection —
A1BERD Republic of China Emissions Management

(PEE AN REMBIRIZREE) IRIG(RoE —HIERE

e [aw of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution
(PEAREMBEARRSREEE)

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
(PEEAREMBEACTRELAZED

e [aw of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
by Solid Waste
(PEE N REMNBEEIREEEY) S RIRIR T /ATE)

B1 Employment e Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China Employee Care —
B1{&f& (R \RHEMBESEE) Talent Management)
e Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of | ETRAIE— AAEIE
China

(PZEAREMESHEREE)

e Provisions on the Administration of Road Transport
Employees
(ERE@NEASEIERTE)

e Special Rules on Labour Protection of Female
Employees

(BT HBRERFRIRED
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B2 Health and Safety
Bof@Eii% e

Applicable Laws and Regulations Corresponding Chapter
BERANERRER HESE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE-HgRER®RE ()

Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China

(PEAREMBLEEEZE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Road
Traffic Safety

(PEAREMBEERIIBLZEIE)

V 4V 4V V4V 4V 4 4V 4 4 4

Employee Care — Health
and Safety
BTRR-—RREHEZE

B4 Labour Standard

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the

Employee Care —

B455 T %8 Protection of Minors Prevention of Child and
(PEEARHMBIRMEAREED Forced Labour
* Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour | B TRR—HBET &
(BILERETHRE) sz T
B6 Product e Regulation on the Implementation of Road Traffic | Operational Excellence —
Responsibility Safety of the People’s Republic of China Service Quality
B6EmEE (PEAREMBEEREZ 2 ENMEA) SHEE-RFEE

Regulations of the People’s Republic of China on
Road Transport
(PEE N RHEMBEPEEERIEG)

B7 Anti-corruption
BTR&ES

Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China

(PEARHEMBER AEEHRFE)

Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARIMEMNZE)

Operational Excellence —
Anti-corruption
SHE-RES

B EEIERER AT
_E_NEER
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BRE-HEghERKS (B)

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

FIERFRHE

Environmental Data IRIBEUE
2024 2023
Greenhouse Gas Emissions' BERBEHME
Scope 1 Direct emissions (tCO.e) SEN B
(E-E IR ES) 1,849.69 2,777.35
Scope 2 Indirect emissions (tCO,e) E 2B IFHE
(ME—E(c i EE 596.07 639.43
Total GHG emissions (tCO.e) mERSBEARE
(ME_EEE) 2,445.76 3,416.79
Emission intensity PR E (Bt EE
(tCO.e per RMB1,000 revenue)? BT T ARKEEX£RE)? 0.08 0.09
Sulphur oxides (SO,) (Tonnes) & L(SOx) (ME) 0.01 0.02
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) (Tonnes) K E1t¥YI(NOX) (HB) 12.89 18.21
Particulate matter (PM) (Tonnes) BT FERL(PM) () 1.26 1.78
Food waste production (Tonnes) RIeRE £ = (MF) 73.25 65
Waste cooking oil production (Tonnes) EEEMESS (W) - -
Office waste generation (Tonnes) WAEEEYESS (W) 38.29 26.17
Total non-hazardous waste disposal EEEEYEEHEE ()
(Tonnes) 111.54 91.17
Waste intensity BEEMZE (T7,/ 8Tt
(kg per RMB1,000 revenue) ANRMEEZER) 3.45 2.28
Diesel (Litres) 5l (R F) 510,957.23 | 815,631.17
Petrol (Litres) B (AF) 189,074.27 | 235,530.59
Electricity (kWh) B (FEE) 977,000 1,048,076
Total energy consumption (‘000 KWh) ARBETREAE (TET R 8,278.29 12,060.59
Energy intensity BERERE (TETRE
(000 kWh per RMB1,000 revenue) ST ARESER) 0.26 0.30
Water (Tonnes) FEk 2 (ME) 14,301.00 11,499.82
Water intensity FEKEE (WE,
(Tonnes per RMB1,000 revenue) STTAREESER) 0.44 0.29
Notes: 5T
1. GHG emissions are calculated with reference to the Greenhouse Gas 1. SAERBHRIHEH 2T AERERE

Protocol. The emission factors for the calculation of GHG emissions are
referenced from the “China Regional Grid Baseline Emission Factors for
the 2019 Emission Reduction Project” and the HKEx “How to Prepare an
Environmental, Social and Governance Report — Appendix II: Environmental

Key Performance Indicators Reporting Guidelines”.

2. The total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2024 2.
and 2023 amounted to approximately 32,297 thousand and RMB39,900
thousand, respectively. The data is also used for calculating other intensity

data.
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T Z(Greenhouse Gas Protocol) ° SR =R
BER s B A T 2% B8R (£
HBIRE B REARE iR | IRIZRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE-HgRER®RE ()

Social Data HEH8E

2024 2023

Total Headcount BTHEAH 160 209
By Gender %5153
Male B 113 167
Female gegis 47 42
By Function BkBES R
Management E1EB 8 8
General staff —MRAER 152 201
By Age Fhe
<30 <30 10 9
30-50 30-50 95 131
>50 >50 55 69
By Geographical Distributions & 5315
Mainland China Pt 160 209
Hong Kong 55 0 0
By Employment Type EEEE 9
Full-time e 160 209
Part-time R 0 0
Employee Turnover - By Age BITRKER — HEH
Number of Employees Lost mEANE
<30 <30 1 11
30-50 30-50 52 82
>50 >50 20 23
Turnover Rate MARE
<30 <30 9.52% 59.46%
30-50 30-50 42.62% 49.85%
>50 >50 31.25% 34.59%
Employee Turnover - By Gender BTRKER — %145
Number of Employees Lost BT REAE
Male Bt 69 106
Female % 4 42
Turnover Rate MARE
Male B 46.78% 42.48%
Female pegs 8.16% 21.05%

mREEERERAT el
“ECNEER
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BRE-HEghERKS (B)

2024 2023

Employee Training Performance - By
Function

B TIEFIER — 1RIEE

The Percentage of Employees Trained

B ER

Management EIBE 100% 100%

General employee —MRAB 98.03% 100%
Average Training Hours Per Employee | A9iZ:/IBFEL

Management EIBE 2 16.00

General employee —mmAB 1.52 16.79
Employee Training Performance B TSR — 145

- By Gender
The Percentage of Employees Trained  iZiIBER

Male B4 97.35% 100%

Female og 100% 100%
Average Training Hours Per Employee | A19ig/lIBFEL

Male B 1.92 16.80

Female pegi 0.38 16.57
Performance of Occupational Safety BERZ2RREN

and Health

Number of work-related injuries ATITZEAE 0 0

Lost days due to work-related injury ATEEELTIERH 0 0

Number of work-related fatalities AT A 0 0

Rate of work-related fatalities AT TEEE 0% 0%
Public Welfare (RMB) RERA (ARHE) 5,000 45,000

Hours participating in social welfare ZEN T REREL

activities 1,990 1,568
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-HERERKRS ()

CONTENT INDEX

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED

b

HERAMEXZHMAEIRE « 1t
R ERREIESIRAR RS

Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs
IEBR - -EE- =i/ 85
—fRiRE R
REMIER
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 : ik
General Disclosure | Information on: Environmental Protection -
—RRiRE (@) the policies; and Emission Management
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact | B 157 — HEE IR
on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BREBRMEE RN » RKRLHEEES - BERBEESEEMNELSH
(8) BUR; &
(b) BTHETAGEAZENEREELRAINER o
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Environmental Protection -
MRENISIEA. | HIRYBEER S Emission Management
R RE —HIEE
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in | Performance Data Summary
RRSRAEMIEIEAL.2 | tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | BiERERHE
facility).
Bz (BE1) RatREE GE2) RERBHmME WMt E) & (NER) 2 @
BESE  BERMHE)
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity. The Group’s vehicle
MREWIEEA.3 | FIELEEEEENEE CUEHE) MEE o maintenance process which
may involve the generation of
hazardous waste is handled by
third-party service, while other
daily operations do not involve
the generation of hazardous
waste
KEEPIRESNEERENE
ENEFHEETERAE=A
FREmEE  AtEEEEL
TENBEREENEL
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity. Performance Data Summary
MRENIEEALY | FIELEEEENAE WEHE) REE HERREE

R E R ZERERA S
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-HERERKRS ()

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPls

IEHE BE
—RIEER

SR EIEIE

Description

Section/Declaration

&t/ B0

WREREREEERYNG L M LR HEE Rk AENELRR
FEREREVZ B o

KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Environmental Protection -

MREMIEIEAS | T I INHIE R R AR EL BRI &R o Emission Management
BRitRE—HHERE

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a | Environmental Protection -

FAREIEIZA1.6 | description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Emission Management

RiRRE - EE

[EHA2 : EiRfER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

General Disclosure

—HRiKE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BERERER (BT « AREME ) BYBCR ©

Environmental Protection —
Resources Conservation

RIERE - ENER

BE PR A BT R VAR B (DUBSH ) RS £ EB(I(GE -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. Environmental Protection -
RENIEIEA2l  RERESNERL TEBEREEERTE o Resources Conservation
R RE—HNER
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Performance Data Summary
PENIEIEA22 | BIEKENEE HERREE
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. | Environmental Protection —
MRENIEIEA2.3 | B AT I RERE R MG B RN AR R L BRI F R o Resources Conservation
R fRE—HNER
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, | Environmental Protection -
RARAEMISIEA24 | water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Resources Conservation
KB R KR LB ERIREE » WRPETINAKNGEERRAEIELE | REFRE - HNER
BRI S8R o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and with reference | The Group’s daily operations
RIBEMISIZA2.5 | to per unit produced. do not involve in use of

packaging materials
AEENHBEERN I A
MEIATHRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-HERERKRS ()

Description

it

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3 : RIERKRER

Section/Declaration

&t/ B0

General Disclosure

—HRiKE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

REETABRERAREREMEAT EHIR

Environmental Protection
IRIGRE

KPI A3.1
RARAMIEITAS

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.
R RRHRERRAGRNEAY BRI EEERAr 210173 o

Environmental Protection

BRI RE

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BEA4 . RIZE(

General Disclosure

—HRiKE

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
HAREHEERIIEEHETNELY ENEAREERETOHR

Environmental Protection —
Climate Change
RIGRE—REEL

KPI A4.1
RARRMIEITAL.1

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

HHEERIEEHETAELY ENEARBEEREE » MEHTH -

Environmental Protection —
Climate Change
RIERE-RFEY

Aspect B1: Employment

EEB1 : {&f&

General Disclosure

—RiE

Information on;

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRAFMRE  BRREF  TEEH - B8 TSRS St RIERMU

REMEBRAENE -

(8) BR; &

(b) BFHETANGEAT ENERERRROAINER

Employee Care - Talent
Management
ETRE-ATEE

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age | Performance Data Summary
PIBEMISIEB1.1 | group and geographical region. YERERE

iR~ BERE 2B « FRANRE N NEEEE -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Performance Data Summary
MRENIEEB1.2 | RI45 - FERARINNER DIREMALE o YERFRE

R E R ZERERA S
“ENEER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-HERERKRS ()

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPls

IEHE BE
—RIEER

SR EIEIE

EBEB2 : BEHZ2

Description

it

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

Section/Declaration

&t/ B0

General Disclosure

—HRiKE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

BRREZ2 TR REREESBCHEELEN

(8) B, &

b) BFHETANGEAT ENERERRRAINER

Employee Care - Talent
Management
ETRE-ATEE

HIPTRARNBR RRERL 2 - URERTRER S

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years | Performance Data Summary
PIBEMISIEB2.1 including the reporting year. YERERE

BE=F (OEEREE) SERTUHMABRILE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Performance Data Summary
MEMIEEB2.2 | AIBEBATERH - YERFRE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are | Employee Care - Health and
M4ENIEIEB2.3 | implemented and monitored. Safety

ETRE-RREARE

[EEB3 : #RERIE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

General Disclosure

—RiNE

Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities.

BRI EE BT LERIE AR S AERBIER © FRHIES) -

Employee Care - Training and
Development
BTRE-HFEER

BRI EERRIED  BREETHRIBI TR o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. | Performance Data Summary
RIBEMISIER3.1 | senior management, middle management). YERAEE

U ESER MERERE « PRABIRES) ANNZEEENLE o
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee | Performance Data Summary
PIBENIEIER3.2 | category. BERERE
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Annual Report 2024




V 4V 4V V4V 4V 4 4V 4 4 4

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-#HERERARS (&

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
(G

IEHE BE
—RIEER

SR EIEIE

Description

it

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[BTEB4 : TR

Section/Declaration

&t/ B0

General Disclosure

—RiKE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BREBIEET G5 T

(8) B M

b) BFHETANGEAT ENERERRRAINER

Employee Care - Prevention of
Child and Forced Labour
ETRE-HEE T REH
T

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced | Employee Care — Prevention of
FAREMISIEB4.1 | labour. Child and Forced Labour
R R RIS LB R E T N8kl % T o ETRE-HEET LRGN
T
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Employee Care - Prevention of
RBENIERB4.2  HHEERERB N ERE MBS B o Child and Forced Labour

ETRE-HEE TR
I

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EMEB5 : {HEHRER

General Disclosure

—RiNE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
BERUERNRIE R B RRER ©

Operational Excellence -
Supply Chain Management
SHEE-LEREE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Operational Excellence -
REWIEIERS.1 | BRI DIHERSE o Supply Chain Management
SHEE-HREEEE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers | Operational Excellence -
RASR4EIEIER5.2 | where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and | Supply Chain Management
monitored. SR - HEREE
AR AREENIEL  mERITERBANMREHE  LURERIEMN
RITRERAE
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the | Operational Excellence -
MAREISIZB5.3 | supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. Supply Chain Management
N ERHRHERESERENRELM SRRNER » UEBRTRERS | SHEE - HERER
e
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and | Operational Excellence -
FAREIEIEB5.4 | services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. | Supply Chain Management

B REREEREESRREERRRBNED  UEFRTRERES
% o

SHEE-HEREE

R E R ZERERA S
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-HERERKRS ()

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPls

IEHE BE
—REER

SR EIEIE

BEB6 : EmEE

Description

it

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

Section/Declaration

&t/ B0

General Disclosure

—HRiKE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods of redress.

BRFMREERNRBNEELESZS « BS  BERMWEZEEURERAZEN |

() BR; K&

() BFHETAEEAFENERERRRAER -

Operational Excellence -
Service Quality

SUEE-RFEE

HIUHEEBERRELARER » UWREFMTRERRE ©

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and | Operational Excellence -
FASREMISIEB6.1 | health reasons. Service Quality
BENRERERRHTRZ 2 BREERMALKNENLE FHEE-RHES
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are | Operational Excellence -
PIENISIZB6.2 | dealt with. Service Quality
RN ER X RBIE B E URES 7 o SHEE-RHES
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property | Operational Excellence -
RARENMIEIEB6.3 rights. Information Security and
iR EE N R ERERNIER o Intellectual Property Protection
SHEE-ERLENAHE
EiRE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Operational Excellence -
MENIEEB64 | HNEERTARRERENES o Service Quality
SHEE-RHES
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are | Operational Excellence -
RAREISIEB6.5 | implemented and monitored. Information Security and

Intellectual Property Protection
SHEE-ERZERAHE
Rk
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE-HERERKRS ()

Description

it

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EBEB7 : RES

Section/Declaration

&t/ B0

General Disclosure

—HRiKE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRAPLLAREE ~ B ~ MEFR R

(8) BER; &

(b) BTHETAGERXENEREERAGNNES

Operational Excellence — Anti-
corruption
SHEE-RES

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the | Operational Excellence - Anti-

RARAEISIEBT.1 | issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. | corruption
RERANHETARHESRET EBENE S RYNYERTMER o | SUEE-RES

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how they are | Operational Excellence — Anti-

RIR4EMIEIEBT.2 implemented and monitored. corruption
TN R RIS USABRITRGER A © FHEE-RES

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Operational Excellence — Anti-

MREMIEIEBT.3  HImEERE TRENRESE corruption

SHEE-RES

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[ETEBS : #tERE

General Disclosure

—RiNE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.
BRMHESERTREEMTHERENRREER EHEE RHERNGNH
o

Community Engagement
i

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour | Community Engagement
MREENIEIEBS.1 | needs, health, culture, sport). HESHE

SRR AINHE R HIER  #E Xt EF) ©
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Performance Data Summary
MRENIEEBS.2 | IHEMBHAER GIMNEHENER) HERREE

R E R ZERERA S
“ENEER
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEASHNBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Qi Xiangzhong, aged 48, is the founder of the Group, the
Chairman, an executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee.
He served as a Director since 22 February 2017. He was then
redesignated as an executive Director and also served as the
Chairman since 22 May 2017. He is primarily responsible for
major decision-making, overall strategic planning and determining
corporate policies and general management of the Group.

In December 2012 and April 2014, Mr. Qi as a founder established
Shun Da School and Tong Tai School, respectively. He has
served as the executive director and legal representative of Tong
Tai School and Shun Da School and the executive director,
general manager and legal representative of Tongtai Cultural since
their respective establishments.

Mr. Qi was appointed as a member of the 3rd executive
committee of Zhumadian City Federation of Industry and
Commerce *(BEEEM IEBEASE)i n March 2016 and a
member, standing member and vice president of the 7th
executive committee of Suiping County Federation of Industry and
Commerce* GXFE TS =) in May 2016. Also, Mr. Qi was
appointed as the chairman of the Driver Training Service Industry
Council of the Zhumadian City Road Transport Association* (5t
BEMERERHBIEMBIZIITERE)In March 2017. In
addition, Mr. Qi is elected as a deputy to the 4th Zhumadian City
People’s Congress (Bt EEmEOEEARRFRAG LK) in April
2017.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. Zhao Yuxia, aged 54, is the chief executive officer and
chief financial officer of the Group and an executive Director.
She served as a Director since 22 May 2017. She was then
redesignated as an executive Director and also served as the
chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of the Group
since 22 May 2017. She is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the business operation as well as financial
planning of operations of the Group.

Ms. Zhao obtained a Diploma in Corporate Finance and
Accounting from Anyang City Accounting School* (Z Rz i1 & 2
) in July 1992. She further completed an Accounting Program
from Henan Province School of Economic* Gal &g 844822 65%) (now
known as Henan Province University of Economics and Law*
CAmEHEBUAEARE)) in June 1997 and obtained the Assistant
Accountant* (B1¥ & 51£M) Qualification from the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC* (FZE A RN EI RS ELER) in December 1997.

From December 1992 to July 2001, Ms. Zhao served as a financial
audit assistant, responsible for handling audit work and preparing
financial statements and audited reports, of Suiping County Audit
Firm* GX 8428 5HEMZE#5FR) , which is an accounting firm in the
PRC. From August 2001 to September 2009, Ms. Zhao served as
a financial audit assistant, responsible for handling audit work, of
Suiping County Yongxing Joint Audit Firm* (& F 8ok B & & 5
BMSEF5F) , which is an accounting firm in the PRC. From October
2009 to April 2014, Ms. Zhao was a finance manager, responsible
for overseeing the accounting and financial management, of
Zhumadian City Hongyuan Packing Company Limited* (5% & &
RiRBEFRAT), which is a company principally engaged in
the sales of cardboards and paper. In May 2014, she joined our
Group as the financial controller of Tong Tai School, and was
responsible for our Group’s financial management.

EEREREBEABNBESRE (R)

HEELT > 545% » AEREBITHAES
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEBEABNBESRE (R)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong, CFA, aged 62, is the non- executive
Director. He served as a Director since 8 June 2018 and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director since 19 September
2019. He is primarily responsible for advising on finance and
investor relationship of the Group.

Dr. Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has extensive experience and knowledge
in corporate finance, corporate governance and investment
in various asset classes, such as fixed income securities and
equities. From October 1995 to April 2000, Dr. Yeung served
as the executive director of Great Wall Electronic International
Limited (now known as EPI (Holdings) Limited) (Stock code: 689),
a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and was principally engaged in manufacture of
consumer electronic products. He was responsible for corporate
planning, business development, information technology strategy,
financing activities, accounting function and supervision. From
April 2000 to January 2010, Dr. Yeung was the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings
Limited (now known as Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited) (Stock
code: 332). He also served as the executive director of the said
company from April 2000 to February 2010. The said company
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and was
previously engaged in investment holding. Its subsidiaries were
principally engaged in design, manufacture and sales of electronic
products and sales of motorcycle parts. He oversaw the
finance and accounting, legal affairs, human resources, general
administration, information technology and corporate planning and
development. From January 2014 to July 2014, Dr. Yeung was
an adviser to China Caston and its subsidiaries. From July 2014
to October 2023, he served as the chief executive officer of China
Caston, the holding company of Greater Sino. China Caston is
principally engaged in investment in equity securities and debt
securities. He was responsible for the day-to-day management,
strategic planning and the execution of the strategic decisions.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Dr. Yeung was one of the licensed representatives of Silverstone
Investments Limited, a corporation licensed by the SFC to carry
on Type 9 (asset management) and Type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activities under the SFO for the period from February
2016 to January 2021. Dr. Yeung was one of the responsible
officers of Success Advance Investments Limited, for Type 9
(asset management) and Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activities under the SFO from 1 August 2022 to 9 November
2023. Success Advance Investments Limited is a corporation
licensed to carry on Type 9 (asset management) and Type 4
(advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO. He
was responsible for investment management advisory. Since
December 2017, Dr. Yeung has been appointed as the Adjunct
Professor of Zhongnan University of Economics and Law, the
PRC.

Dr. Yeung graduated with a Professional Diploma in Accountancy
with distinction from Hong Kong Polytechnic (how known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1986. He
further obtained a Bachelor degree of Science in Economics
from the University of London, the United Kingdom, in August
1990, a Master degree of Laws in Corporate and Financial Law
from The University of Hong Kong in November 2007, a Bachelor
degree of Law from The Manchester Metropolitan University,
the United Kingdom, in July 2008, a Master degree of Science
in Finance and a Doctor degree of Business Administration from
the City University of Hong Kong in October 2010 and July 2014,
respectively.

He was admitted as a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants (now known as Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountant) in January 1991.

Dr. Yeung is a CFA charterholder since February 2021.

Dr. Yeung has become a fellow member of the Hong Kong

Securities and Investment Institute since November 2021.

In January 2021, he was appointed as a pro-bono director of
Manchester Metropolitan University Chapter Hong Kong Limited.

EEREREBEABNBESRE (R)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEBEABNBESRE (R)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Siu Wah, aged 50, is an independent non-executive
Director. He served as an independent non-executive Director
since 19 September 2019 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board.
Mr. Chan is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a
member of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has over 20 years of experience in
accounting and finance. From August 1996 to April 2000, Mr,
Chan worked in W.M. Sum & Co., an accounting firm, as an
auditor and was responsible for performing audit and taxation
assignments. Mr. Chan then joined Arthur Andersen Hong
Kong as an experienced staff accountant in May 2000 and as
a senior in September 2001 in the Assurance and Business
Advisory Services Department. From July 2002, subsequent to
the combination of PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. and Arthur
Andersen Hong Kong practices, Mr. Chan was transferred
to PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. as a senior associate,
responsible for taking charge of a group of audits. Mr. Chan
left PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. in January 2003 as a senior
associate. From February 2003 to August 2007, Mr. Chan
joined Sunray Holdings Limited as a financial controller and was
responsible for taking charge of group accounting, financial
reporting and listing compliance matters. Sunray Holdings Limited
had been listed on the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited between November 2003 and March
2014, principally engaged in the development, manufacturing and
marketing of medical systems and consumables for the women’s
healthcare market in the PRC. From October 2007 to April 2012,
Mr. Chan served as the financial controller and joint company
secretary of Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited where he was
responsible for the financial reporting and company secretarial
matters. Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited has been listed on
the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited since September 2008, whose principal business is the
production and sales of Chinese white wine. From April 2012 to
August 2013, Mr. Chan served as an audit manager in S.W. Chan
& Co., an accounting firm, and was responsible for performing
audit, taxation and company secretarial services. Since July 2013,
Mr. Chan has served as a director and practicing certified public
accountant at Alliance Ascent CPA Limited and is responsible for
overseeing the development and operation of the accounting firm.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Chan graduated with a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Finance from The University
of Hong Kong in November 1996 and received the Master of
Corporate Governance degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in October 2011.

Mr. Chan was admitted as a member and was further admitted
as a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in October 1999 and October 2004 respectively. Mr.
Chan was admitted as an associate member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants (now known as the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants) in March 2000. Subsequently, Mr.
Chan was registered as a certified public accountant (practising) in
July 2013. Mr. Chan was also admitted as an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (now known
as the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute) in April 2012.

Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent, aged 51, is an independent non-
executive Director. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 March 2023 and is mainly responsible
for providing independent judgement and advising on the issue
of strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct of
the Group. Mr. Wan is also the chairman of the Audit Committee,
and a member of each of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Wan obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1996. He was admitted
as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 2002. Mr. Wan has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Tian Cheng Holdings
Limited KEIZERERAE] (formerly known as Yue Kan Holdings
Limited ®BENERREMRAE, Stock code: 02110. HK) on 1
November 2022. Since May 2022, Mr. Wan has been serving as
company secretary of Zhong Ji Longevity Science Group Limited.
He has been the chief financial officer and company secretary
of Pan Asia Environmental Protection Group Limited (Stock
code: 00556.HK) since 2007. Mr. Wan has more than 20 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.

EEREREBEABNBESRE (R)

PR R1996F 11 B EENEF B RS >

REETHEMTIEEE2 2840 N
2011&10@357%?5%@17: TEERS
B2 -

PRI D RIFT1999F 108 &2004FE 108
AT AR ATETENE—D

RAEREE © BRITEN2000F3H A4
Hong Kong Society of Accountants GR#&
BAGIIAE) B8 - HB > BREER
2013F7 A MAMEZ 5N o FRITATR
#5201 2fE4)§ AREARTME AT RE
BEBRAEREAE)BE °

AL  515% » REUIFRITES °
#72023F381H ﬁéfi%ﬁ%iﬂﬁiﬂﬁ%
S TEEENAEERE - RKE &
5}%&??%Z$E—EU$ET’E$§%I¥U%&%Lﬁ%ﬁ
BAETREZEEG T RUNIES
ﬁé\ﬁ&%@m;@%\ﬁ§§5/\]ﬁ§\ ®

BATEN1996FINERBIET KRB EE
BB o [WH2002EER ] AE ATt
BIAEEE - f52022F1181H » B&4E
ERTAKRXBIZERERLQE (RIFBRENEE
RERAE > BRHASE - 02110. HK) BY5E
TIEMITESE o B2022FE58FE 5 B
—HETHERSHEBLEEERLATNA
EIME o I B2007FE—EEEZRIRRE
SBEHRAE ERIDHSE : 00556.HK) AYEA
B NN B ME o BILEESE ~ BT
&WFAEEE%ﬁﬁNEM °

B EEERERAT
TETNEER

103



104

A O O O O O O O O N\
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EEREREEBEABNBESRE (R)

Mr. Xu Jianpo, aged 50, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 20 April 2023 and is mainly responsible for providing
independent judgement and advising on the issue of the strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct of the Group.
Mr. Xu is also a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Xu completed an undergraduate program in Accountancy
from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics* (Al &g B4 48 &2
B) (now known as Henan University of Economics and Law G
FEHEBUEARER)) in June 2002. He has been a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since September
2007. He obtained a Professional and Technical Personnel Title
Certificate of Henan Province* (AR & 2 £ 17 A EBfBEE) as
a senior accountant issued by Department of Human Resources
and Social Security of Henan Province CRIEE & A & R & 1R
FZEE) in December 2020.

Mr. Xu joined Henan Kunzheng Joint Accounting Firm (General
Partnership) * CAIFIRIER & B TEME ST (HEAE)) (formerly
known as Suiping County Yongxing Joint Accounting Firm
(General Partnership)* GXF &k B & Bt EHAT (BES
%))) in January 2000 as a project manager, responsible for audit
work, and is currently the principal partner. Since July 2020, he
has served as an independent director of Henan Huigiang New
Energy Material Technology Corp., Ltd.* CAlm B 3a#eE R kIR
RN ERAT]), a company principally engaged in high quality
lithium battery separator development, production and sales.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Changling (58 &%8), aged 69, joined the Group
as a vice principal and the head of administration department
of Tong Tai School in September 2014. He has been mainly
responsible for supervising our Group’s general logistics work and
administration work, vehicle maintenance and file management.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked at Suiping County
Waterworks * (84 E 2k/K k) a s a treasurer, responsible for
financial management, from December 1975 to December 1978.
He then worked for Suiping County Shenzhai Town Finance
Office* (B F 84D ZEIRRTBIFT) as a vice director (RBIFT &) between
December 1978 and December 1989 mainly responsible for
preparation of budget and final accounts. Mr. Zhang was then
transferred to Suiping County Quyang Road Finance Office* (3%
T ELERSATE I E R EFT) as a director (FT&) from December
1989 to December 2005 and responsible for business operations
management.

Mr. Zhang passed the National Civil Servant Training Course and
was granted a certificate by Personnel Department of Henan
Province* (AIE & A S5 EZ) in November 1994.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Chi Hon (B3E7%), aged 50, is the company secretary.
He served as the company secretary since 22 May 2017 and has
been mainly responsible for the company secretarial and related
matters of our Group. Mr. Tsang is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has more than 15
years of experience in audit and accounting. Mr. Tsang joined
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Business Services Limited as an auditor in
October 1999 and left the company as a senior auditor in February
2004. In March 2004, Mr. Tsang joined Grant Thornton Hong
Kong as a senior in the assurance division and was subsequently
promoted to supervising senior in October 2004 responsible for
supervising the field work staff and reviewing the working papers.
He was further promoted to supervisor in October 2005 and was
entrusted with a portfolio of the firm’s clients and also assisted the
audit manager in the review function. He held the same position
when he left the firm in March 2007. From May 2007 to July 2008,
Mr. Tsang joined Reyoung Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited, as a group financial controller mainly
responsible for the finance and accounting functions of the group
companies. From May 2009 to September 2009, Mr. Tsang was
employed by Luxworld Limited as a financial reporting managet,
responsible for financial reporting functions. From November 2009
to February 2014, Mr. Tsang served as chief financial officer in
Zuoan Fashion Limited, a company previously listed on the New
York Stock Exchange and was responsible for the finance and
accounting functions of the group companies.

From November 2013 to July 2021, Mr. Tsang had served as
an independent non-executive director of Xinhua News Media
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 309). From January 2017 to
August 2018, Mr. Tsang was a company secretary of Swee Seng
Holdings Limited. Since April 2021, Mr. Tsang was appointed
as the company secretary and financial controller of Micron
(International) Group Holdings Limited, and Mr. Tsang was
appointed as the company secretary of RENHENG Enterprise
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3628) since May 2022 and has
been mainly responsible for the company secretarial and related
matters.

Mr. Tsang graduated from The University of Hong Kong in
December 2009 with a Bachelor of Accounting and was admitted
as a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in April 2006.

*

For identification purpose only

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

NEME
BEELEE 50 ARBEME KB
20175 A22HEEEELNEIMNE » TEE
EAEENABMENMERER c 844
AEBLHMLEEE > EBI N
EHEE R 15F K o BAER1999F10
BMAXBEBLERFERABIETSE
5HET > BIETSRTSTED » WH20044E2
BBEREZAT] o Fi2004FE3H » B4
AHE (FA) Bt EEBRAREE
RREBNERAE > BIT2004F108E
AAEREEAE  aEEERBIEA
ENBETEXMH - BH2005F108#
—SEHAER ) RETEE—RYIbE
BP - EIRFIRBIEHSESETIAE o B
200743 B BER BRI R R B TS © FX2007
F5HF2008F7H » BEENAInPGRLEE
BRAR (FFMEESLZFABRAE
FREFTHRE) » BITEBRFFAEE
EEEEEANENMHEREAE © it
200958 F2009F 98 » BLAWRERE
EEERABEAMBRELKIE a8
TEMEREAEE o 72009 F11 B E201442
B BRECETALFRMBREAE (B
HIPAAE SR S LA E) B 7548
g aEEBRRAMNHBE NG AE ©

FR2013F11 B E2021F7H » B&4EZ
EEFERNAEIZERE R LB R
5% © 309) ZHILIEMITESE - FR2017HF
18 ZE20184F88 » B4k ASwee Seng
Holdings Limited I A B #ME - BLER
2021 FE4 B ER T AR (BR) B
BRERRBZ NBMENRMBEE c it
£ BE2022F 5B EEZEACIBEEXIER
BRAT (BRMSE : 3628) WATIME >
EEENIWENERER °

B EF2009F 128 BERTBAE >
BEEstE2LTEA ) HR2006F4BEFH
S A BN Al A E D SHED o

* (el



V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4 4

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

INTRODUCTION

The Board is pleased to submit its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of driving
training services through its operating subsidiaries, namely Shun
Da School, Kai Yuan School and Tong Tai School. Details of the
principal activities of the operating subsidiaries are set out in Note
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

As required under Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations, a review
on the business, an analysis on the financial performance of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out under
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from
pages 6 to 23 of this annual report. A description of the future
development in the business of the Group is set out in the section
headed “Chairman’s Statement” from pages 3 to 5 of this annual
report. Both of the above form part of this Report of Directors.

A description and analysis of the principal risks and uncertainties
faced by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2024
and the particulars of important events affecting the Group
since the end of the year ended 31 December 2024 are set
out respectively in the paragraphs headed “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties” and “Events after Reporting Period” below from
pages 124 to 126 and on page 129 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRS (A)

A discussion on the environmental policies and performance
of the Group and an account of the key relationships of the
Group with its stakeholders, including the employees, customers
and suppliers and others that have a significant impact on
the success of the Company, are set out respectively in the
paragraphs headed “Environmental Policies and Performance”
and “Relationship with Stakeholders” below on page 128 of this
annual report. Further details on the performance of the Group by
reference to the environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations are provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report from pages 48 to 97 of this annual report.

A discussion on the compliance of the Group with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group is
set out in the paragraph headed “Legal and Compliance” below
on page 127 of this annual report. A further discussion on the
corporate governance practices of the Group is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 24 to 47 of this annual
report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND SUMMARY

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 140 of this annual report.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 217 of this
annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend to
the Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
Nil).

On 27 March 2020, the Board has adopted a dividend policy,
pursuant to which, the Company may consider whether to
propose a dividend out of its distributable profits and reserves and
determine the amount of dividend. For further details, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Dividend Policy” under the Corporate
Governance report on page 43 of this annual report.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to approximately RMB5,000.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AND
DEBENTURES ISSUED

On 24 October 2019, the Shares were successfully listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange at the stock code
1871. The initial public offering comprised the public offering
of 50,000,000 new Shares and the placing of 50,000,000 new
Shares. For further details of the IPO, including, among other
things, the reasons for making the issue of and the issue price
of the Shares, please refer to the Prospectus published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and of the
Company (www.china-oriented.com).

On 20 March 2024, a total of 35,958,192 Rights Shares were
issued and allotted at HK$0.20 per Rights Share pursuant to the
Rights Issue. For further details of the Rights Issue, please refer to
Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed hereinabove, no other shares or debentures
were issued by the Company since the Listing Date and for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

Details of the movements in the total number of issued shares
of the Company during the year are set out in Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company did not have any treasury shares (as defined in
Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules) as at 31 December 2024.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares, or that requires the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19
September 2019. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Company to grant options to the employee, adviser,
consultant, service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-
venture partner of the Company or any subsidiary (including any
director of the Company or any subsidiary) who is in full-time or
part-time employment with or otherwise engaged by the Company
or any subsidiary at the time when an option is granted to such
employee, adviser, consultant, service provider, agent, customet,
partner or joint-venture partner or any person who, in the absolute
discretion of the Board has contributed or may contribute to the
Group (the “Eligible Participants”) as incentive or reward for their
contribution to the Group to subscribe for the Shares thereby
linking their interest with that of the Group. On and subject to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and all applicable statutory
requirements, the Board shall be entitled at any time within 10
years after the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme to
make an offer to any Eligible Participants as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select to subscribe for such number of Shares
as the Board may determine at the subscription price.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme
together with options which may be granted under any other
share option schemes for the time being of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed such number of Shares as equals 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Any further grant of
share options to any eligible participant in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and the
other schemes (if any) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) as
at 19 September 2019, being the date of passing the resolution
by the then Shareholders through written resolutions approving
and adopting the Share Option Scheme. The Company may seek
approval of its Shareholders in a general meeting to refresh the
Scheme Mandate Limit at any time in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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The limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group must not exceed 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Group if this will result in the limit being exceeded.

Unless approved by the Shareholders in the manner set out
below, the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
grantee (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
Where any further grant of options to an Eligible Participant would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant
representing in aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue, such
further grant must be separately approved by Shareholders in
general meeting with such Eligible Participant and his/her close
associates (or his/her associates if the Eligible Participant is a
connected person) abstaining from voting.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted by an Eligible
Participant concerned in respect of all Shares which are offered
to such Eligible Participant when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the Eligible Participant,
together with a non-refundable remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant
thereof is received by the Company within 21 days from the date
of offer or within such time as may be determined by the Board.
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Any offer may be accepted by an Eligible Participant in respect of
less than the total number of Shares which are offered provided
that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing in Shares
on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (i) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company (i) has not granted any share option
under the Share Option Scheme; and (i) does not have any share
options outstanding for issue under the Share Option Scheme.

USE OF PROCEEDS

On 24 October 2019, the Shares were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. The net proceeds from the IPO were
approximately HK$108.4 million after deducting the underwriting
fees, the Stock Exchange trading fee, Securities and Future
Commission transaction levy for the new shares in the Company
and the listing and other expenses in connection with the IPO.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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As at 31 December 2024, a total of approximately HK$45.0 752024F12831H » XEBERELUTFR

million had been utilised by the Group according to the allocation

set out hereinbelow:

HFHDECRBFAEHA45.088 BT !

Utilisation
during the
period from
the listing
date (i.e 24
October 2019) Unutilised
Net to amount as at Expected
% of net proceeds 31 December 31 December timeframe
proceeds from IPO 2024 2024  forintend use
BLmHH
(BN20196
BR0E  10BUB)E 1120245
FSmIE  REZFE 2024F12A31B  12B31HZ  BEREM
BE% RERE LLOEBRER RYRLE jELESER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TR THET
Acquisition of a parcel of land ngE— gt 457 49,547 - 49547 Bytheend of
December 2025
20255128
TR
Construction of training fields BRI 12.3 13,333 - 13,333 Bytheend of
December 2025
20255128
A
Purchase of training vehicles BEilg® 9.7 10,517 9,966 551 Bytheend of
December 2025
2025% 128
TR
Recruitment and training costs for 40~ BERIEHI4025E 96 10,408 10,408 - -
new driving instructors BHGNER
Repayment of bank loans BRIFTEN 127 13,769 13,769 - -
Working capital and general corporate 2B &E&M—R/AT 100 10,844 10,844 - -
pUrPOSES ik
Total st 100.0 108,418 44,987 63,431

The Board does not anticipate any changes to the intended use
of net proceeds as previously disclosed in the Prospectus of the

Company dated 11 October 2019.

EEETEST > LRI 2019F10B11HN
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Note: To increase our competitiveness, it is the Company’s current intention to

increase its training capacity by acquiring a parcel of land and constructing
training fields in accordance with the future plans and use of proceeds as
disclosed in the Prospectus. The Company believes that the new training
fields will provide additional operational capacity which will allow Tong
Tai School to offer desirable and flexible training hours for its trainees and
attract new trainees in the future, which may strengthen the market position
of Tong Tai School in the driving training industry. However, as a result of
COVID-19 pandemic, there was insufficient commercial land supply during
the years 2020 to 2024 and the Company had been unable to identify a
suitable land parcel. The Company will continue to actively locate a suitable
land parcel. While it is our current intention to acquire a parcel of land and
construct training fields, we will closely monitor the changing business
environment faced by the Company and will consider other alternative uses
if they would allow the Company to deploy its financial resources more
effectively and to achieve better business performance.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

The net proceeds from the Rights Issue amounted to

approximately HK$6.1 million. The below table sets out the
intended use of net proceeds and utilisation of the net proceeds as

at 31 December 2024

D RERERBHRFE S > KRB BRI AR

B BRERTIFEN R B KPS IER
B BB R A RIS AR5 ARG N
HIZIEESN o A AEIEIE » #FlfRBHE R
RIMNOBEEE S  BERERENAEZE
IRMHIPE A TR AR > WKL
28 SR EREREERE
TERTIBHL ° S8 » 2 COVID-19A/R1T
S 2020F E2024FE MR E M HER
B NATRENEISBEAIHIR o AT
BBEERBS A BEHE AR NEE
BINATTE W B — et R A iS40 > B
S -l b NI e N = ]
EIRIE > T EEREEMEBENEALNTTUE
BRMAREMBERNBRBTERRR
BEfhAER -

HEGFRSTRIERN AR

HARFFSRIRPERAMN6.1BEBIT o T&

FHHF2024F 12831 BFA 8 IEF 2B/

RERGUNFIMSRIREFENERER

Amount of the Balance of the Expected
net proceeds net proceeds  Timeline for
utilised as at  utilised as at utilising the

Intended use 31 December 31 December unutilised
of proceeds 2024 2024 proceeds

1520244 1520244
12B31H 12318 EREXEB
FIERIEsE CBRMER HXDEME FRfgsIEm
MRERE EIENEE FEPENGRE FRHRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET FET FET

Part repayment of the outstanding bank BEREED D

borrowings of the Group KEBBITHER 6,100 6,100 - -

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, reserves of approximately RMB41,569,000
(year ended 31 December 2023: RMB40,133,000) were available
for distribution to our shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong'
Ms. Zhao Yuxia®

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong®

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Siu Wah*

Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent®

Mr. Xu Jianpo®

! Mr. Qi Xiangzhong was appointed on 22 February 2017 and was
redesignated as an executive Director and was appointed as the Chairman
on 22 May 2017.

2 Ms. Zhao Yuxia was appointed on 22 May 2017 and was redesignated as
an executive Director and was appointed as the chief executive officer and
the chief financial officer of the Group on 22 May 2017.

g Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong was appointed on 8 June 2018 and was
redesignated as a non-executive Director on 19 September 2019.

& Mr. Chan Siu Wah was appointed on 19 September 2019.

J Mr. Wan Sau Fai Vincent was appointed on 1 March 2023.

& Mr. Xu Jianpo was appointed on 20 April 2023.
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Articles 84(1) of the Articles of Association provides that
notwithstanding any other provisions in the Articles of Association,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one- third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. Accordingly, Mr. Wan San Fai, Vincent and Mr. Xu Jianpo
shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves to undergo re-election at the AGM. For the
biographical details of the Directors who will undergo re-election,
please refer to the section headed “Details of Directors Proposed
for Re-election” in Appendix Il to the AGM Circular.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a letter of confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents
of such confirmation, the Nomination Committee considered and
the Board took the view that each and every independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

With effect from the Listing Date, service contracts were entered
into between the Company and each of the executive Directors.
Letters of appointment were also entered into between the
Company and each of the non-executive Director and the
independent non-executive Directors.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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For further details including, among other things, the principal
terms and the names of the Directors having material interest
in such service contracts and letters of appointment, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Service Contracts and Letters of
Appointment with Directors” under the Corporate Governance
Report from pages 24 to 47 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts by which any person undertook the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company existed or was entered into between the
Company and any person who is not a Director or not engaged
in the full-time employment of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director and
the Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly and indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2024 or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE BETWEEN
THE COMPANY AND THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (OR THEIR SUBSIDIARIES)

Furthermore, no contracts of significance between the Company
(or any of its subsidiaries) and a Controlling Shareholder (or any
of its subsidiaries), or contracts of significance for the provision
of services to the Company (or any of its subsidiaries) by a
Controlling Shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries) were entered
into as at 31 December 2024 or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S ZENRERES{TBABKIRG « 16
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN Rl @SSR RE
SHARES, UNDER LY ING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the 152024 12831H > EEHAR B RS
Directors or chief executive of the Company in Shares, underlying  {TEA BRI AR B S EEAAEEEE (F
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated % R85 M EFE KA HEXVER) BB ~ 18
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which BRI MEFFHEBIRIRE S LIS BKA)
was recorded by the Company in its register of directors’ and FE352EREBHARNEELENEEEN
chief executives’ interests and short position pursuant to Section —EE{TEA B#m ka8 E LMD &
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise should be notified to the K& > SBERFIZETRIR G AN T KB
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, RFTHI#ERASBIT -

were as follows:

() Long position in Shares (i) MRPIFE
Number of Shares Percentage of
Name Capacity/nature of interest held/interested shareholding
Fi¥s BB
2 S/ tEmitE DR E B¥RRESLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH7T FHET
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong Interest in a controlled 206,400,000 47.3%
corporation (Note 1)
TR E R EEE R 206,400,000 47.3%
(PfdEE1)
Note: et :
1. The Shares are registered in the name of Alpha Leap, the entire issued 1. ZERMLLUERZ BETE 0 MHEE

HERTRAE T AREERES o A
i > RSB R B AIEXVER - 77 5%
R BRI 2 BRI TS
i o

share capital of which is owned by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong. Accordingly,
Mr. Qi is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Alpha
Leap for the purposes of Part XV of the SFO.

(ii) Long position in the shares of associated corporation (i) FIEECSEZERGOIEE

Percentage of

Name of shareholding in

associated Capacity/nature Number of the associated

Name of director corporation of interest share(s) held corporation

iR PR

= R MR AT 5 #EmttE FrsiRin B RiRE DL

Mr. Qi Xiangzhong Alpha Leap Beneficial owner 1 100%
TTRARESE ) BREBA

BRERZRERAT 119
—E_mEER
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) will have interests or short positions in Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who will be directly or
indirectly interested in 10% or more of the issued shares of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of the Company or any of its subsidiaries:

() Long position in Shares

F 2RI R AR A 9 R Ry

EmikE

120245128318 » #IHESFH > 3
AT GEESEHARNBRETHAE) 5
B 17 AR RE AR (D BE B AR RS 25 M HR B 1651
EXV EFE2 &B8 DEZ IR BRIAANE K
RPN BRI R e ; WEET R
A SRR A R ERE R FTRARE K
HAEMRKBABKREAS ERENERLE
AR 2 BB TR EE 10%3 L _ERIAE

o0

)3

P2

B

(i) RRPFE

Number of

Capacity/nature Shares Percentage of

Name of interest held/interested shareholding
i EE RN

W, i B/ ERtE Rin&E Sl =P
Alpha Leap Beneficial owner 206,400,000 47.34%
BiE BEEBA 206,400,000 47.34%
Ms. Gao Dongju (Note 1) Spouse interest 206,400,000 47.34%
BEFE L (M) FoiBfEm 206,400,000 47.34%
Cosmic Hero Beneficial owner 39,600,000 9.08%
Eif BEEBA 39,600,000 9.08%
Mr. Ling Wai Leung (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 39,600,000 9.08%
BRI (HizF2) RREGEZER R 39,600,000 9.08%
Ms. Hui Ching Ping (Note 3) Spouse interest 39,600,000 9.08%
SRR L (H1EE3) FriBfEm 39,600,000 9.08%
Great Sino Beneficial owner 42,000,000 9.63%
B BHEBA 42,000,000 9.63%
Ample Star (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 42,000,000 9.63%
HE (Mi5E4) PEREEERER 42,000,000 9.63%
China Caston (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 42,000,000 9.63%
PEIEE (MEE4) RRIEGZE R 42,000,000 9.63%
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Notes:

1. Ms. Gao Dongju is the spouse of Mr. Qi Xiangzhong. She is deemed to be
interested in the Shares in which Mr. Qi is interested in under Part XV of the
SFO.

2. The Shares are registered in the name of Cosmic Hero, the entire issued
share capital of which is owned by Mr. Ling Wai Leung. Accordingly, Mr.
Ling is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Cosmic Hero for
the purposes of Part XV of the SFO.

3. Ms. Hui Ching Ping is the spouse of Mr. Ling Wai Leung. She is deemed to
be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Ling is interested in under Part XV
of the SFO.

4. The Shares are registered in the name of Greater Sino, the entire issued
share capital of which is owned by Ample Star, which is in turn owned by
China Caston. Accordingly, Ample Star and China Caston are deemed to
be interested in the Shares in which Greater Sino is interested under Part
XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as of the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interest or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO), or required to be recorded in the register of directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Neither the Company, its holding company, any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares in, or debentures of, the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries as at 31 December
2024 or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty,
in their offices (provided that such indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of such Directors).

Directors and officers insurance are currently in force and in place
to protect the Directors and/or the directors of its associated
company against potential costs and liabilities arising from claims
brought against the Directors. Permitted indemnity provisions are
set out in such liability insurance.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors has any interests in any business which,
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

The Directors has confirmed that other than business of the
Group, none of the Directors holds any interest in business which
directly or indirectly competes or is likely to compete with the
business of the Group.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emolument packages of each of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are decided by the Board with
reference to the recommendations given by the Remuneration
Committee, and having regard to, among other things, the
operating results of the Group, performance of individual Directors
and senior management and comparable market statistics.

For further details in respect of the policy on the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Policy on the Remuneration of Directors and
Senior Management” under the Corporate Governance Report on
page 39 of this annual report.

For further details on the emoluments of the Directors and the
five highest-paid individual of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2024, please refer to Note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed hereinabove, no other payments have been
made or are payable, during the year ended 31 December 2024,
by the Group to or on behalf of any of the Directors.

PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

The Group participates in a state-managed defined contribution
retirement scheme organised by the relevant local governmental
authority in the PRC. The Group is required to make monthly
contributions to the retirement scheme for the eligible employees
at specified percentage of the payroll and the local governmental
authority is responsible for the pension liabilities to these
employees upon their retirement.

No forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions)
were used to reduce the existing level of contributions and no
forfeited contribution was available as at 31 December 2024 and
2023 to reduce future years’ contributions.
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For further details, please refer to Note 4(0) to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The financial condition, results of operations, business and
prospects of the Group may be affected by various risks
and uncertainties. Hereinbelow is a list of principal risks and
uncertainties identified by the Board with the understanding that
the list is by no means exhaustive or comprehensive, and there
might be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to the Company or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

1.  Business risks: The revenue and profits of the Group are
greatly affected by the level of course enrollment and the
fees that the Group is able to charge. Throughout the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Group was under pressure
to downward adjust the course fees for our driving courses
of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles because of
keen competition following the overall deterioration in our
business performance affected by the decrease in the actual
number of training hours provided by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2024 due to the decrease
in the demand for driving courses, which had a significant
impact on the number of course enrollments of Large
Vehicles especially, due to the continuing deterioration of the
market conditions of the logistics industry as a result of the
continuous US-China trade tensions and the lower threshold
for existing Small Vehicles driving schools to enter into the
sector of driving training services offering Large Vehicles
driving courses. If the Group is unable to increase the level
of course enrollment and actual number of training hours in
the future, the gross profit margin for driving training services
business may continue to decrease.
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Operation risks: Operating risks refer to the risks resulting
from inadequate internal processes and the risks resulting
from human errors in internal operations or other reasons. In
order to manage these risks, the Company has established
an internal control system so as to minimise the adverse
effects of such risks on the Company. However, failure to
maintain an adequate internal control system may potentially
lead to financial loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

For further details in respect of the internal control and risk
management system of the Company, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Risk Management and Internal Control
System” under the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 40 to 42 of this annual report.

Legal and regulatory risks: All of our operations are
conducted in the PRC and are governed by the PRC
laws, regulations and rules. The PRC legal system is a
civil law system based on written statutes, and prior court
decisions can only be cited as reference and have limited
precedential value. As many of these laws, regulations and
rules are relatively new, and the published court decisions
are scarce and of non-binding nature, the interpretation
and enforcement of the laws, rules and regulations in the
PRC may involve uncertainties and may not be consistent
or predicable as in other more developed jurisdictions.
Furthermore, since the Shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date, more effort is incurred to
comply with the applicable laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, including but not limited to those relating to securities
transaction, listing, disclosure and corporate governance.
Any litigation or regulatory enforcement action in the PRC or
Hong Kong could result in substantial costs and diversion of
resources and management attention.

For further details in respect of the compliance with laws and
regulations and the corporate governance practices of the
Company, please refer to the paragraph headed “Legal and
Compliance” below on page 127 of this annual report, and
the Corporate Governance Report from pages 24 to 47 of
this annual report.
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4. Financial risks: The business and operation of the Group
are exposed to financial risks on foreign currency, credit,
liquidity and interest rate.

For further details, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 6 to
23 of this annual report, and Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In response to the aforesaid potential risks and uncertainties,
the Board will continue to implement and maintain internal
control and strategies to adapt itself to cope with such
risks and changes. The Board will also develop and review
strategies, policies and guidelines on risk control from time
to time to enable the Group to monitor closely and formulate
business strategies to respond to risk promptly and
effectively.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, approximately 16.3%
of the total purchase of the Group were attributable to the
largest supplier of the Group, and approximately 67.1% of the
total purchase of the Group were attributable to the five largest
suppliers of the Group.

Due to the nature of our business, there were no customers
accounted for more than 5% of the revenue of the Group and
the five largest customers of the Group did not account for more
than 30% of the revenue of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2024.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any of the Shareholders
holding more than 5% of the Shares have any interest in any of
the five largest suppliers of the Group.
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LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE

Legal proceedings

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group was not engaged in any litigation, arbitration, administrative
proceedings or claim of material importance pending or
threatened by or against the Group, which could have a material
adverse effect on the financial position and results of operations
of the Group.

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group is not
aware of any non-compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

Since the Listing Date, the Company has adopted the principles
and code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as
fundamental guidelines for the corporate governance practices of
the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code.

For further details of the corporate governance practice of the
Company, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 24 to 47 of this annual report.

Compliance with the Model Code
For details of compliance with the Model Code, please refer to the

paragraph headed “Directors’ Securities Transactions” under the
Corporate Governance Report on page 24 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Due to the nature of our business, our operational activities do not
directly generate industrial pollutants, and we did not directly incur
any cost of compliance with applicable environmental protection
rules and regulations.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group did not receive any complaints from any other parties
concerning any environmental protection issues, nor did the
Group experience any material environmental incidents arising
from its operations.

For the details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report from pages 48 to 97 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that a good relationship with its employees,
customers and business partners are keys to achieve its long-
term goals. The Group has been striving to establish and maintain
an effective communication channel with its employees, providing
quality services for its customers, collaborating with business
partners and supporting the community.

For further details in respect of the relationships of the Group
with the stakeholders and how the Group has been responding
to stakeholders’ concerns, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Responding to Stakeholders’ Concerns” under the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report from pages 54 to
56 of this annual report.
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DATE OF THE AGM AND BOOK CLOSURE
PERIOD

The AGM will be held on Friday, 27 June 2025. The notice of
the AGM, together with the AGM circular and the proxy form
will be published on the websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.china-oriented.com) and dispatched in due course in the
manner as required by the Listing Rules and the applicable laws
and regulations.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 20 June 2025 to Friday, 27 June 2025, both days
inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the Shareholders
who are entitled to attend the AGM, during which period no
transfers of Shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend the
AGM, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant Share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 19 June
2025.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

Shareholders who are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of
any rights in relation to, the Shares, are suggested to consult an
expert.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material events subsequent to 31 December
2024 which would materially affect the operating and financial
performance of the Group as of the date of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 on 27 March 2025, being the date on which the audited
annual results of the Group were published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

For further information in respect of, among other things, the
composition of and the work performed by the Audit Committee,
please refer to the paragraph headed “Board Committees — Audit
Committee” under the Corporate Governance Report from pages
32 to 34 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 have been audited by Moore CPA
Limited.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM for the re-
appointment of Moore CPA Limited as the independent auditor of
the Company.

There has been no change in auditors during the years ended 31
December 2022, 2023 and 2024.

On behalf of the Board

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Qi Xiangzhong

Chairman and Executive Director

27 March 2025
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To the Shareholders of China Oriented International
Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Oriented International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 140 to 216, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Recognition of revenue from driving training services

mER R BE I AR W e

Refer to Notes 4(k) and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
55 2B S S IR R MK A6
Key audit matter

RS EER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENEFNTHRAREFFRETEE

We identified the recognition of revenue from
driving training services as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the amount of revenue to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and the

Our procedures in relation to the recognition of revenue
from driving training services included:

EERRESR B ERUEHIARTS < Wm B2 P 845 -

large number of customers as the Group operates e

two driving schools in Zhumadian City, Henan
Province, the People’s Republic of China.

B SSEERFEARZENEIEEREESEDE
EMPTERERARZEX » BRIEIIRB WG

Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
revenue recognition policy (including forfeiture, and
refund) and key controls over revenue recognition;
T BEEMREESBR (BERBARIE)
MW FEEB I RS S

GEUBRRERBMESBEN  AtEEFERIE

SRS R A B R e 5T H1E o e Evaluating the accuracy of revenue recognised

based on the output method by checking their

computation on a sample basis;

s BBHMEREEHFRER  sHLERELIEES
AU R AYZERE M

e Inspecting to customers’ files, on a sample
basis, checking the corresponding supporting
documents, including but not limited to,
customers’ identification card, driving license,
agreements with customers, registration forms,
attendance records and payment receipts; and

s HRTHEFRER > MBECREINWEIEEN
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%~ EERWHE - BaRE ~ BEE R TR
Wi 5 &

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024



V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4 4

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBEHREE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued) FASEEETHIE (8B)

Recognition of revenue from driving training services

mER R BE A AR TS W e

Refer to Notes 4(k) and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
R A G RIS IRZ M 5T 4(K) &6

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RRETEE EENBEHNEIHRRE N SRETRIE

Revenue of the Group mainly comprises driving e Assessing the accuracy of the Group’s record of
training service income which is derived from training hours provided for customers during the
offering packaged driving courses for preparation year by matching them, on a sample basis, with
for driving tests to large number of customers and driving training records certified by the relevant
during the year ended 31 December 2024, the government body.

Group recognised approximately RMB32,297,000 o #& SHEEFRAEFREEEIFECHE:EE
of revenue from these driving training services. As A B AT 1 18 50 58 RV B8 P 3 3l e SR dh AR VT AL > LAGT
set out in Note 4(k) to the consolidated financial {HECERAVEEREME o

statements, the revenue recognition is based on
output method by measuring the training hours
provided to the customer relative to the total training
hours promised under the contract.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Impairment assessment on non-financial assets

IFERE EREE

k2= E NG

Refer to Notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial staterments

e 2 SIS IR RN 16/ 16
Key audit matter

RREFR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENEFNTHRAREFRETEE

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note
4(d), critical judgements and key estimates in note 5,
and relevant disclosures in Notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FE2RGR SV BRI ET4NEARGTECER - izt
SHE E i AR (5t LA MY 5E 1582 1 6BV AERA

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
RMB94,045,000 and RMB41,650,000 respectively.
1R2024F12831H » EXEDHEYE ~ KB
Nt MR EREEEARE94,045,000t 2 AR
41,650,0007tT °

The management of the Company had performed
an impairment review in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets in relation to these non-current
assets.
ERFIEEECREEBGsTERIE6REERE
M FIEREE EETRERST
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Our procedures in relation to the recognition of revenue
from driving training services included:

EERRERR B ERUEHIARTS < Wm B2 P 845 -

° Understanding the key internal controls and the
procedures on preparation of the discounted cash
flow forecasts and by assessing the future revenue
and operating results and by comparing with
historical performance and business development
plan;

s THRERNARRE NSRRI IES L2
F 0 AR AR AR M S R A A LE R R
SR EBERETE

° Obtaining and inspecting the valuation results
prepared by the management on which the
management’s assessments of impairment of non-
financial assets were based;

o HNEBIREHEEBRENGHEGR (BEERIL
HIFEMEEREETD) ;



KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Impairment assessment on non-financial assets
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBEHREE ()

k2= E NG

Refer to Notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial staterments

BRI B ANEE 15/ 16
Key audit matter

RSB EE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEENEFNATHRAREFREETEE

We identified the impairment assessment of these
non-current assets as a key audit matter due to
the required exercise of significant judgements and
high level of estimation uncertainty by management
concerning the estimated future cash flows and
other key inputs on the estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units of the driving
training business (“the CGU”).
EERZZIEREE ER R EF LA R 5 —IBREE
BtEE > HATEEEEMGIRERRENEN
EREIEBREELSA (REELEN) TR
Ol 2EfE st R E BB & A BURFH E X B
REmKFEFHEREE S o

As at 31 December 2024, the recoverable amount
of the CGU was determined by management and
based on value-in-use calculations using cash flow
projections.

R2024F 128318 » W ELBAMN A UW[EIEER
THEEBRARESAERAUEREESEEE
E o

Evaluating the methodology used in the
calculations of the value in use of the CGU,
challenging the key assumptions and critical
judgements made in the preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts prepared by
management by comparing key inputs with
historical performance, management’s budgets
and forecasts and other external available
information, and evaluating the discount rate
applied in the discounted cash flow forecasts by
assessing if the parameters adopted in calculating
the discount rate was within the range of the
relevant industry; and

MLt EREESBEUCRBEFRANG L B8
B ABIREBERE BEIEENREER
BRI EMINI IS ERETTILER » HEEE
HMAEMREESRERAFHNEARBERMAEE
FlER H B 5 > WiBATEst B RRFRARN
2HEEEEATEEER > SHLRRESRE
TERIFTERARRLIRE ; &

Evaluating the adequacy of disclosures in respect
of the impairment review in the consolidated
financial statements.

THMEfR e M BRRPEAAERTNIRERS R
4 o

mREEERERAT
T T EFR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BB RES (5)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

BIUZHBMEKSE (8)

ZEEMIL B R & MR R A IE
BT

EENER > EHGAMTRRERES
ARG HERMERNE AR
PRAERG S ERE > LER BT R
BR)HECREESERNZEEIRSE -
ZHBENRERIFE S HEHNZRBERRIE
e > NMEEMAR - EF LA ERE
ZABHEREMA L EEEASESNE
RAERIFERTS ©

BERE RS NKFHRE » BRERER
REBESHERETHES  BR—EX
SRR AR AR AE S TR o SEERMRALP] U
FREREFEEEERSIE » MRS EFAREER
HEEABERFIER B O BREAERE
R FIMAPTIEHBIETERTE » I B
BYSEERBRIM AT ARFER K o

HERBEEBESERETESNBERED
EHFERERNE > RIEEREREE -

AEER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BB RES (5)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a
basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matter communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine these matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin
Practising Certificate Number: P05035

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025

BIUZHBMEKSE (8)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
=) HitnEE W m =

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZE2024F12331 HIEFEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FIsE AR®FT AREEFTT
Revenue Yz 6 32,297 39,884
Cost of services rendered EARHARFE A A (28,367) (31,324)
Gross profit EF 3,930 8,560
Other income and losses, net HUR A X ESIE > $%8 8 1,204 1,430
Selling and marketing expenses THE NS HE A (1,721) (1,620)
Administrative expenses THER (13,829) (13,896)
Finance costs % ER 9 (3,279) (4,230)
Loss before income tax PRERISIRFIESIE 10 (13,695) (9,756)
Income tax credit FriSiRitse 11 5,335 1,313
Loss and total comprehensive EATEE ANELEERE
loss for the year attributable RE2mEEE4E%E
to the owners of the Company (8,360) (8,443)
Loss per share attributable to T TEE AELEREE (Restated)
the owners of the Company (E7)
- Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EBEANEE(ARED) 14 (1.94) (2.05)

140 China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024



V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4 4

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBIRIR

At 31 December 2024  152024512831H

2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfsE AR®FT AREFIT
Non-current assets ERBIEE
Property, plant and equipment YD ~ RS MER 1 15 94,045 83,072
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 41,650 45,159
Intangible assets mEEE 17 - —~
Prepayments for property, D ~ BB MRS
plant and equipment FONEINEOE 18 3,900 -
Prepayment for acquisition of BB B AR
a subsidiary T FIE 18 4,190 360
143,785 128,591
Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N EMEWEIE
and prepayments IS EINESEE] 18 1,628 7,402
Bank balances and cash IR TR IR E 19 120,913 152,359
122,541 159,761
Current liabilities it I =K
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMENIE
and accruals NEEstER 20(a) 15,647 15,374
Contract liabilities SHEE 20(b) 12,691 17,862
Tax liabilities RIBEE - 3,033
Lease liabilities HE&E 21 1,635 1,158
Borrowings EEN 22 45,230 45,230
75,203 82,657
Net current assets e EEREE 47,338 77,104
Total assets less current liabilities #2&E R REIAE 191,123 205,695

mREEERERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

mEMBRRIE (E)

At 31 December 2024 1520245128 31H

2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AER¥FT AEBETFIT
Non-current liabilities ERENAE
Lease liabilities HESE 21 1,798 2,317
Borrowings i 22 - 9,000
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE 23 2,507 4,809
4,305 16,126
Net assets BERE 186,818 189,569
EQUITY HEm
Equity attributable to owners of AT #EHE AFEL#ERE
the Company
Share capital i 24 3,939 3,608
Reserves Eai] 25 182,879 185,961
Total equity darERS 186,818 189,569

The consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 216 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

HNF140E216BNREMBREREES
GR2025F 3827 At A RIR A AL LLT

March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

EEARBEZBTUTIE

Qi Xiangzhong Zhao Yuxia
TEH HEE
Director Director
EBE EFE

142 China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

o A il 3L 42
GaEmEER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;FE2024F 12331 HIEFEE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

TATEE NElL
Share Share Capital Statutory  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings Total

A RHEE BXFEE  EERE  FERN 4Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARBTT AREFTT ARETT ARETR
(Note 24)  (Note 25)  (Note 25)  (Note 25)

(fyzt24)  (Ms£25)  (BsEos)  (HY5E25)

At 1 January 2023 K2023%F1A1H 3,608 105,636 22,000 11,000 55,768 198,012

Loss and total comprehensive EEEENEE
loss for the year B - - - - (8,443) (8,443)

At 31 December 2023 and  132023F12831HK

1 January 2024 20241818 3,608 105,636 22,000 11,000 47,325 189,569
Loss and total comprehensive EEEEBREH

loss for the year B - - - - (8,360) (8,360)
Issuance of shares under the  TRIE{EIR 31T D

Rights Issue (Note 24) (fizE24) 331 5,278 - - - 5,609
At 31 December 2024 112024128318 3,939 110,914 22,000 11,000 38,965 186,818

ARERERERAR 143
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FEIRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZE2024F12331HIEFEE

2024 2023
20244 2023%
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FIsE AREFT AREEFTT
Cash flows from operating activities & ;EEBIELEMNIRERE
Loss before income tax BRETISIRAIESIE (13,695) (9,756)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Interest income FEWA 8 (325) (425)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYZE ~ BB &
plant and equipment REE1E 8 20 206
Gain on bargain purchase of EEWE—ENE
a subsidiary NElz W 8,29iii) (138) -
Finance costs &R 9 3,279 4,230
Depreciation of property, M BEN
plant and equipment RERVITE 10 12,353 9,720
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEECITE 10 1,978 2,758
Operating cash flows before SEETEERKE
movements in working capital RER=E 3,472 6,733
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 NEMFEIFRIE K
receivables and prepayments FE(TFRIE (I80) R (847) 628
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 M EMERFRIENR
and accruals fESTE& RN 273 219
Decrease in contract liabilities aHaERD (5,171) (5,395)
Cash (used in)/generated from & (FRA) FriSIRE
operations (2,273) 2,185
Income tax refunded BIRIEFIEIR - 1,601
Net cash (used in)/generated from  4X&5E8h (FRA)
operating activities FriSIRE 358 (2,273) 3,786

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

GSERERER (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

2024 2023
20244 2023%
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BIEE AREFT ANE¥T T
Cash flows from investing activities R&;ZBIFTSIRERE
Payment for purchase of property, BEYZE  BENM
plant and equipment REBHFIE (18,265) (28,395)
Prepaid construction cost TEfT RS AA 18(b) (4,190) -
Net cash inflow on acquisition of WHE—REIRE AR
a subsidiary REMAHER 29(iii) (2,100) =
Prepayment for acquisition of WE—mM B A BN
a subsidiary TEFIE 18(b) (3,900) -
Refund of prepayment for purchase of  REIEESYE - M=
property, plant and equipment INE 3SR 6,900 -
Interest received =S 325 425
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYZE - BEM
plant and equipment REFTSIE 459 700
Net cash used in investing activities & &;EEIFTAIRE BEE (20,771) (27,270)
Cash flows from financing activities Fi&E;EZBIFTSIRERE
New borrowings raised MEEER 25,730 70,730
Repayment of borrowings BIRENR (34,730) (71,730)
Interest paid on borrowings EERFIE (3,142) (4,095)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares  FAfIRREE1TI&D
upon Rights Issue FiSTRIE 3% 5,609 -
Repayment of lease liabilities — principal EEHE&E— 4% (1,732) (1,258)
Repayment of lease liabilities — interest BiEfHE&E—F 8 (137) (135)
Net cash used in financing activities Fi& EBIFT ARSI F5E (8,402) (6,483)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERIREEEWRD
equivalents R (31,446) (29,967)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRERIREEEY
the beginning of the year 152,359 182,326
Cash and cash equivalents at FRREMIREEEY
the end of the year 120,913 152,359

B EEERERAT 145
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE M HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZE2024F12331HIEFEE

GENERAL

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 22 February
2017 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company is set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of the annual report issued by the
Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is
Alpha Leap Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is wholly-owned by Mr.
Qi Xiangzhong (“Mr. Qi"), who is also an executive director of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 29.
The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to
as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the currency of the primary
economic environment of all the group entities’ operations
(the functional currency of group entities).

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HKFRSs

(@) Application of amendments to HKFRSs effective (a)

PRI REETERME
HREEER
RAR2024%1 B 1HEBEX

from 1 January 2024

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA, which are relevant and mandatorily
effective for the period beginning on 1 January 2024 for
the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statement:

NEAMFERSEN ZETE
RAERE > ZEBCMBEA
SENGEMBREXEAER
SRS EMER
202441 81 HFRBIEREAERE
Ko 5a ) 4 B0 T B & B B S TR
HEREAMEETA -

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with BHEGHER (R E2 S Ik
Covenants BIR(EIER) &R
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BEGHEH| SENEARDH
Current or Non-current EALACHEN eI TEINNEEL
and related amendments to BARESET
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (20204F) 4B A
(2020) &3]
Amendments to Supplier finance BEGER| e E L
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 arrangements FIRNEBIE
REERFTE
(R

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback

The adoption of the above amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and position for the
current and prior periods and/or the disclosures set out
in theses consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331 HIEFEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new
or amendments to HKFRSs, which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2024 and which have
not been early adopted in these consolidated financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 21

SRR FE2158 (1B5]K)
Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

BAMGREEREONE B
R S AR B 75% (IBFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards

AV RS ER SR (B
517S)

HKFRS 18

EAEAMERELER]FH 1858
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

3. BAMINREETTEAMTE

HREEER (B)

(b) EEMERKREMRZHEIEE
IR SR R EE T
HEZSZOMBERREMA
B> ERGMATEEMH—
2O EE2024F12H831H
IEEFEEHRENBRZEGES
MM ER P RIZ R IRABIFT
S EAMBREER Y EEE]
o ZEHRUIELTAER
NEEBREZER o

Effective for annual
periods beginning

The effects of changes in foreign exchange
rate — Lack of Exchangeability

EXEFH s w2 - iR

Financial instruments: disclosures —
Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments

EMTH  FE-—SMTAESENFEN
(]

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11

EEUBREGENGAEANFENE—F
1%

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

IR IRRIET NI E

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BAUBREENF10XNES REEFHEMENTNGEEXZBNEE

Bt R 5285k (B5TA)
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HERA

on or after
HELA T BEAER
2B RAR

FEHRSHRER

1 January 2025
2025F181H
1 January 2026
20265F181H
1 January 2026
20265F181H
1 January 2027

2027F181H
To be determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

(b)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial adoption. Except for the
new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors of the
Company have concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on
presentation and disclosures in financial statements, will
replace HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial statements.
This new HKFRS Accounting Standard, while
carrying forward many of the requirements in HKAS
1, introduces new requirements to present specified
categories and defined subtotals in the statement of
profit or loss; provide disclosures on management-
defined performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements; and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in
the financial statements. In addition, some HKAS 1
paragraphs have been moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS
7. Minor amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash
Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2027, with early application permitted.
The application of the new standard is expected to
affect the presentation in the statement of profit or
loss and disclosures in the future financial statements.
The Group is in the process of assessing the detailed
impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & ZE2024F 12831 HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress) are stated at cost, less provisions for
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method,
based on the estimated economic useful life of the
individual assets, as follows:—

Over the shorter of lease
term or 5% per annum

Over the shorter of lease
term or 5% to 20% per
annum

20% per annum

20% per annum

20% to 33.33% per annum

12.5% per annum

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Equipment

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

Construction in progress represents building and
leasehold improvements under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

(d)

Intangible assets

Software acquired separately and with finite useful live
is carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

The Group’s intangible assets have finite useful lives. All
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of five years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than financial assets), the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the value in use of the asset or cash-
generating unit to which it belongs and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the consolidated profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.
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(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZE2024512531 HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation),
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is
credited to the consolidated profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include trade and other
receivables, bank balances and cash, all of which
are classified and accounted for as debt instruments.
Financial assets are recognised on the trade date.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS15.

All recognised financial assets of the Group are
measured at amortised cost on the basis of the
Group’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following condition
are subsequently measured at amortised cost: — the
financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cashflows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets expire
or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred or in which
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial assets.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
receivables and other receivables and bank balances).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment is done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZE2024512531 HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, and contract assets,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECL. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date. The Group has applied loss rates which
are reference to the default rates from international
crediting rating agencies, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

When estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls which is the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive.

The Group considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses on a
forward-looking basis whether financial assets carried
at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

(b) a breach of contract such as a default or past due
event; and

(c) it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331 HIEFEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables. Financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
write off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax
from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(9)

Leases

The Group as lessee

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicits in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index
or rate, initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date;

° the amount expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of purchase options, if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maMBHRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331 HIEFEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(g) Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method,
based on the estimated economic useful life of the
individual assets, as follows:—

Leasehold lands
Leased premise
Motor vehicles

2.50% to 20% per annum
17.91% per annum
12.50% per annum

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances
and cash and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZE2024512531 HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

@)

(k)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Provision of driving training service

Revenue from providing driving training services
is recognised in the accounting period in which
the services are rendered. Revenue is recognised
progressively over time using the output method, i.e.
based on the direct measurement of training hours
provided by the Group to the customers relative to
the total training hours promised under the contracts
because the Group has the right to be paid for work
done to date if the customer were to cancel the service
agreement before the driving training services was fully
completed. As a practical expedient, if the Group has
a right to consideration in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value of the Group’s performance
completed to date, driving training service contracts
in which the Group bills a fixed amount of service
provided, the Group recognises revenue in the amount
to which the Group has the right to invoice.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

4. ERGFEEREH (B)

)]

(k)

s
MREXEREEERNMBER
®Er o UZBRINEEBLUS
BET OMNE) FrETHR ST
B 5 E HWERESD - RR
HHIR - DUMNSSENERIR
BhEZ AN EREXENR
8 o DUMNEREL AT ER
FERBEBAFTENRE -

HEEEREEREMREE
WBIEEMELMNERZEZE > K
HESHBEGSRmES -

EREHWE

e ERIE RS

TR 2 B E I RS W R 1R it
¥z est BB AR o W
RAEL AR B RERR
RizAEBREHTE P vEI
R BRI 54 T ARG BIAB LS
A B EZSE > LR
ZREERIEINRS 2 805TA
RIBUHAR B ek 0 AEEHE
ERESHRILEBTEMRIMEZR
B o FRBERATRES X
fin A= B A R UEUE - AL
BTRELZSBIEREETHR
BRI R 5 Emi iR AR 5 5
[ 7 & 58 R 45 A9 2 B 1 Bl AR
BARMNEEERMER > Al
SEREEMALEEN SRR

sola



V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4 4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(k)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Provision of driving training service (continued)
Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress
toward completion are revised if circumstances
change. Any resulting increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or
loss in the period in which the circumstances that give
rise to the revision become known by management. the
customer pays the fixed amount based on a payment
schedule. If the services rendered by the Group exceed
the payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the
payments exceed the services rendered, a contract
liability is recognised.

Payments are typically received from customers in
advance of revenue recognition and they are presented
as contract liabilities under current liabilities. Customers
may not exercise all the contractual rights of the
prepaid driving course upon expiry of the service
period, and such unutilised portion are referred to as
breakage. If an entity expects to be entitled to the
breakage amount in a contract liability, the entity shall
recognise the expected breakage amount as revenue
in proportion to the pattern of rights exercised by the
customer. If an entity does not expect to be entitled
to a breakage amount, the entity shall recognise the
expected breakage amount as revenue when the
likelihood of the customer exercising its remaining rights
becomes remote. The Group considered the breakage
arising from the prepaid driving course is insignificant,
and the unutilised portion of the prepaid driving course
is recognised in the profit or loss upon expiry of the
service period.

A refund liability is recognised if the entity expects
to refund some or all of that consideration to the
customers, which is measured at the amount of
consideration received for which the entity does not
expect to be entitled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & ZE2024F 12831 HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

)

Income tax

Income tax represents the sum of current and deferred
tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
pUrposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

(i)  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and at the time of the transaction does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences; and

(i) in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

4. ERGFEEREH (B)

)

FRiS
FriSiis & M AR IERR TERY AR
o BB m LUSMNEST ZTEE
BB Z P81 i 18 o U5 B
=0 BREMEE W= EE
PREmFEST ©

EREEERER  HIRE
RESHAEEMBHEELE
mffz K (RRiE) > LER
AEBEEEFMERRBITNZ
BRER > HIRER R B R B
% U [B] =% A H 3% A B9 & R 5T

=
E=°

MEENRSRIREEERR
MBERSHREEZEARERS
HRHFTBERIEEE » A
BREAHIEERIAFLEME

FIERRRERITERIT R
SUBRIN

() HIEERBESERD
REBHLIFEHGHH
RENEEHNEEME
£ BRXSHHE GG
RN Em I ER 2
R Z R EEEHES
& SR A K B 41 R B B &=
LERNY

(i) WBMEARMBATNKESR
RARERIE B 1 = M
= HBLCIERTEREN
RrfEp] AR - B8 K%
ERAER RGN ARIAE
#[o] -



V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4 4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

0

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

()  When the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and at the time of the transaction does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences; and

(i) in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZE2024512531 HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to the lease liabilities, and
the related assets separately. The Group recognises
a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for
all taxable temporary differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(m) Borrowing costs

(n)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Any specific borrowings that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss in the year in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under other income and losses,
net.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331 HIEFEE

4,

5.

China

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(o) Other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) are required to participate in the central defined
contribution pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme as specified by
the local municipal government.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee long service payment

The provision for long service payment is provided
based on the employees’ basic salaries and their
respective length of service in accordance with the
applicable rules and regulations in their respective
countries of employment.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision
and future years if the revision affects both current and future
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The following is the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next twelve months.

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Estimated useful lives

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, generally from 3 to 20 years or over the shorter of
the lease terms (2023: 3 to 20 years or over the shorter of
the lease terms).

The leasehold lands and building recognised as right-of-
use assets are depreciated on straight-line basis over the
lease terms (2023: over the lease terms), whereas the motor
vehicles recognised as right-of-use assets that the Group
expects to exercise purchase options with minimal exercise
price and the related assets are depreciated over their useful
lives (i.e. 8 years (2023: 8 years)).

The estimated useful lives that the Group depreciates the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets reflect
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use of the assets.
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives.
Periodic review could result in a change in useful lives and
therefore depreciation and impairment losses in future years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331 HIEFEE

China

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(continued)

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, which in the case
of value in use, is the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the assets belong. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgement and estimates are required in
determining the amount of the provision for taxation and
the timing of payment of the related taxation. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax provisions and deferred tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination are made.
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REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the income from provision of driving training services and
is recognised on an over time basis. Revenue recognised

during the year is as follows:

Analysed by types of courses:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F 12331 HIEEE

Wz

Wit (A2 2 B IO 2EA8) 5 REBRIS
HIRFSFRIZIA > I BERS R RE TR
5B o A PIREEBRIMERIT T ¢

RERTREER M
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Driving training service income
Standard courses
Premium courses
Additional training fees

Analysed by types of vehicles:

FRECEHIBRTS A
R
iR
oM

20,300 2,824
11,059 36,659
938 401
32,297 39,884
R ERERAER T
2024 2023
20245 20234F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT AREETTT

Driving training service income
Large vehicles
Small vehicles

BRI AR WA
AREUESHH
INBUES B

22,322 29,588
9,975 10,296
32,297 39,884
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4= A
=]

RS A D)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331 HIEFEE

China

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in provision of driving
training services. For the purposes of assessing performance
and allocating resources, the Group’s operation is regarded
as one reportable and operating segment which is provision
of driving training services. The executive directors of the
Company review the profit or loss for the year of the Group as
a whole. Accordingly, no segmental analysis is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical segment information is presented as the
Group’s revenue is all derived from the PRC based on the
location of services provided and all of the Group’s non-
current assets are located in the PRC by physical location of
assets.

Information about major customers

The Group offers packaged driving courses for preparation
for driving tests to large number of individual customers. No
individual customer accounted for over 10% of the Group’s
total revenue during both years.

Oriented International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CaBmRMEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F 12331 HIEEE

OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES, NET HMUT A K E518 > 38
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AREFIT
Income from issuance of certificate BB RVHE =
of qualification validation FiUA - 392
Interest income FEUWA 325 425
Value-added tax refund BERERR 4 84
Income on expiry of driving courses 2 BEUHE BRI EHA
withdrawn by trainees ISIESION 231 450
Government subsidies (Note) AT AR (BEE) 436 39
Loss on disposal of property, HEZE ~ BENX
plant and equipment REEE (20) (206)
Exchange loss, net [ERESE > F4E (27) ()
Gain on bargain purchase of a EERE—BRBARZ
subsidiary (Note 29 (iii)) Wz (MEEE29i) 138 —
Others HAth 117 251
1,204 1,430
Note: Government subsidies were received from several local government MIEE @ BUSERL T R BEIE I R AN S [ e 3

75 A& BEBYE R B 5 T30 75 B BB P UK
HY o EURER) 73 SRR 30 R AR R AR PIEY

authorities for skills training and the Group’s contribution to local
economies, of which the entitlement was unconditional and under the

discretion of the relevant authorities. 15

FINANCE COSTS 9. BIFBEHR
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AEETFT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITREREF R 3,142 4,095
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 16) FAE&ERFE (FI5E16) 137 135
3,279 4,230

ARERERERAT 171
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maMBHRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331 HIEFEE

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax has been arrived at after charging:

10. BRRR1SHIRIESIR
FRFT SRR IR TR RS

2
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT ARETFIT
Directors’ remuneration (Note 12) EEHI FIsE12) FI5E@)
(Note (a)) 1,372 1,357
Other staff costs (Note (a)) HME T (M5 (@)
— Salaries and other allowances — ¥ M ELfhERRL 10,713 13,290
— Retirement benefit scheme —RIREH FTEMERR (3E(C)
contributions (Note (c)) 1,435 1,637
13,520 16,184
Auditor’s remuneration P2 S CIEZR ) 1,203 1,136
Depreciation (Note (b)) of: e (BIsE(o)) -
— Property, plant and equipment — W2 ~ RS Nk tE (B9EE15)
(Note 15) 12,353 9,720
— Right-of-use assets (Note 16) —fEREEE (MizF16) 1,978 2,758
Donations =l 5 40
Gasoline expenses FAUHMAX 4,884 7,431
Consulting fee EElERf=z= 1,108 1,222
Students’ meal fees BEEE 1,101 1,287
Taxes and surcharges i< Az Ffn 1,231 1,286
Notes: 5T
(@)  Total directors’ remuneration and other staff costs of approximately (@) Eﬁ§:2024£\51 2R 31 EUZ%E ) BRE
RMBS8,166,000 (2023: RMB10,529,000), RMB1,172,000 (2023: R AHBRTS PLA ﬁ%’%fg*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁau&
RMB1,287,000) and RMB4,182,000 (2023: RMB4,368,000) have TEEBNRNERTMERAMET
been charged to cost of services rendered, selling and marketing PR EE D BIF A AR 8,166,000
expenses and administrative expenses, respectively for the year 7t (20234 : AER¥10,529,0007T) *
ended 31 December 2024. AR#1,172,0007t (2023%F : AR
1,287,00070) & AR #84,182,0007C
(20234 : AR #54,368,0007T) °
(o) Total depreciation of approximately RMB12,423,000 (2023: (b) HE2024F12A31HILEE > BH
RMB10,933,000), RMB59,000 (2023: RMB41,000) and BRERBAAE - HEREHE A
RMB1,849,000 (2023: RMB1,504,000) have been charged to cost of LUK A7 B A 4T B B 4R 4T B8 90 B 49
services rendered, selling and marketing expenses and administrative %AE #5q 2,4283,0007¢ (2023¢ A
expenses, respectively for the year ended 31 December 2024. FE#10,933,0007T) ~ AR#59,000
75 (20234 © AR#41,0007T) &2 A
RU¥1,849,0007T (20234 : AR
1,504,0007T) ©
€  As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no forfeited contributions © 1R20245F12831H » AEEBGEAH

available to reduce its contributions to the retirement benefit schemes
in future years (2023: Nil).

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT

11. FIfSHIK%R

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ANE¥T T

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT”) PRI 2150 (T B ZFSH)
— Over-provision in prior years — BT EBEREE (3,033) -
Deferred tax (Note 23) IRIEFRIA (MI5E23) (2,302 (1,313)
(5,335) (1,313)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdiction in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operated.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income
tax under these jurisdictions during the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been recognised
in the consolidated financial statements during the year
ended 31 December 2024 as the Group does not have
income which arises in, or derived from, Hong Kong (2023:
Nil).

No provision for PRC EIT has been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 as the Group did not have any assessable
profits for the year (2023: Nil).

FEBERRBEREENELEEURE
KEBNE NR MM EERERA
& RSN BIRPTSIR ©

HE2024F12B31HILEEE » R
HERENRBRELHAENHRENE
B » REBBBETEZE DL EEHN
ERIFF1SHR (20234 @ ) o

HZE2024F12A31HLLEEE > X
AEBUTEELEEIREEF BN
A BUERE S IERR N BEEE B
B0 (20234 © 4E) o

B ZE2024F12831HILEEE » B
AEB P FERNW A EERRRT]
WiR S SRR EREER R 2R
B0 (20234 © 4E) o

mREEERERAT
T T EFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331 HIEFEE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

11. FRfGHRIE R (48)

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AREEFTT

Loss before income tax PRPTISHRBIESIE (13,695) (9,756)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 25%  ZERFRZE25% (20234 : 25%)

(2023: 25%) STERIRIE (3,424) (2,439)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible RIS AIFR 7522 £

for tax purpose 1,122 1,126

Over-provision in prior years BIEFFEBLREE (3,033) =

(5,335) (1,313)

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, 10% withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.
Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to retained earnings of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately RMB95,968,000 as at 31
December 2024 (2023: RMB102,647,000), as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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RIEFPEI2EPREHIE » B20084F1
B18#E » PR BB ERER S
METEIRBIAR B BHAM10%TBIR ©
7202412831 H » WEMERS
HIRFRA PR B AR RERFE
MR ZEEA AR 195,968,000
(20234 : AR5102,647,0007T) {E
HIRIEIR IR > TR AEEEEE
JEE IR O B R RERVBSRE > INE A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra MBwERME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F 12331 HIEEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EENERETHRAEMER
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID TaEaMEREE
EMPLOYEES

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EEMBSTHAEME
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the R BNRENIETEEANT
individuals as the directors and the chief executive of BEENESTHAENER A
the Company during the year are as follows: THBNEEFBENT -

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Directors’ fee b 900 882
Salaries and other allowances e S EMERRL 442 445

Retirement benefit scheme RIRENFTEIMHRR
contributions 30 30
1,372 1,357

ARERZERERAS 175
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maBEmRmEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EENRREITHAESMEN
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID haEaERES (48)
EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) ZEEREEITHAEME (@
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F128NHILEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Directors fee allowances  contributions Total
HER iRIRRER
EEfid Hit8E HEEE 4act

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRBTR ~ ARRTR  ARBTR  ARETR

Executive directors WTEE
Mr. Qi (Note i) AR (EE() 240 330 30 600
Ms. Zhao Yuxia HEEEYT 240 112 - 352
Non-executive director FHTER
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong BREAEL 120 - - 120
600 442 30 1,072
Independent non-executive drectors  BUFEHTES
Mr. Chan Siu Wah WLt 120 = = 120
Mr. Xu Jianpo RS 60 - - 60
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent BAELE 120 = = 120
300 - - 300
Total HeE 900 442 30 1,372

176 China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EENERETHRAEMER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F 12331 HIEEE

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a)

V 4V 4V V4V 4V 4 4V 4 4 4

A MBERRME (R)

hasEilEES (&)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EENMBRSITHAESMNE (4B)
(continued)
Year ended 31 December 2023
HE2020F12831HLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Directors fee allowances contributions Total
ek RITEH
TG i HEIS 45t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AEETT AEETT NREFT
Executive directors WTEE
Mr. Qi (Note () 7T 7 (RtsE() 240 318 30 588
Ms. Zhao Yuxia HEELT 240 127 - 367
Non-executive director FHTES
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong BREAEL 120 - - 120
600 445 30 1,075
Independent non-executive drectors  BUFEHTESR
Mr. Chan Siu Wah B E 120 = = 120
Mr. Cheng Chun Shing (Note (i) BER A (HEk() 20 - - 20
Mr. Xu Jianpo rERRE 42 - - 42
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent BAELE 100 = - 100
282 - - 282
Total 1Bt 882 445 30 1,357

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group while the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

EXFRRBRITESEIES A
REBEERNBANEERER
BRANARE N E > T _EXXPRR
BIFRITESZTRBIUIFATE
ENMERI R REFRERAF
EEHIPRFEINE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maBEmRmEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EENERETHRAEMER
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID hEEEMEREE (B)
EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) ZEEREEITHAEME (@
(continued)
Notes: F5E -
0] Mr. Qi is the chief executive of the Group. The emoluments 0] TREANEBNITHRARS -
shown above are also for his service as chief executive of the XA ETARIETAER
Group. TBHREPIBRFSBNE ©
(i) Mr. Cheng Chun Shing resigned as an independent non- (iy  EREARALEE2023FE3H1HELET
executive director with effect from 1 March 2023. B IEMITES ©
(b) Five highest paid employees (b) EHREEMEREE
The five highest paid individuals included two (2023: AABIN AL EREMEALE
two) directors of the Company whose emoluments EM% (20234 @ M%) EE
are included in the disclosure in (a) above. The HNEE R EX(@)IRE c 57 F
remuneration of the remaining three (2023: three) =% (2023%F : =%) A8
individuals was as follows: BT -
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR¥ETT

Salaries and other allowances e MEMERL 984 1,011
Retirement benefit scheme RIRERNFT IR
contributions 28 26
1,012 1,037
The number of individuals whose remuneration was A F LT EEBER AL
within the following band: FENT :
2024 2023
20244 20234
Nil to Hong Kong Dollar £ %1,000,00087T
(“HK$”) 1,000,000 (F&7Tl) 3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b) Five highest paid employees (continued)
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors of the Company or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals of the Group has waived any emoluments
during both years.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid/declared or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2024, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2023: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

12.

13.

14.

EENEEITHRASMER
hamaMERES (&)

(b) ELEEMESES (B)

R BEEERRE - AEEEER
EREATEZHABREZN
ALESATEAINE > FRINAZ
EEMAREBRRIVERISIF
FBERE o IXMEFERRE
BEAEEESHARERSHN
ATTREEFREN -

RE

B E2024F 12831 HIEFEETE
RS BIRZEZIRNT S BTN
A ERIREZIRE » BIREEARIU
RN R AT RI R B (20234

) o
BizRs18

TRBHEE NEBEERERBREHIR
BTRIEEEE

2024 2023
20244 20234
Loss E5i8
Loss for the year attributable to the ~ FAF st ESREAREEH
owners of the Company for the KABIHEE NELFE
purpose of basic loss per share 18 (AREFT)
(in RMB’000) (8,360) (8,443)
Number of shares it 4= (Restated)
€=l
Weighted average number of RstESREREEN
ordinary shares for the purpose EFEHEERHE
of basic loss per share 430,877,279 412,418,774

The basic loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 have been adjusted to reflect the bonus
element in rights issue of shares that took place on 20
March 2024.

There were no potential ordinary shares in issue for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

HE2024F 2023 F ILFEENS G
HEABEBELARMUKRMI20244F
38208 R AR FrFEE I ITER
? °

HE2024F12H31HILEEE » WiE
ERIEETEEZER (20234F :
%) °

mREEERERAT
T T EFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maMBHRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y25 ~ BRBE Kot

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor Construction
Buildings  improvements Equipment and fixtures equipment vehicles in progress Total
HER
¥ HE%E #f EeHE AR RE HEETE ot
RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEBTT NEEFT NEEFT NEETR NREFT NEEFR NEBTR NREFT
(Note a) (Note b)
g2 (Fito)
COST i
At1 January 2023 202351818 32,843 49,595 11,822 1177 2241 24,331 - 122,009
Addltions hE 757 - - 53 621 216 19,316 20,963
Disposals HE - - - - - (3.391) - (3.391)
Transfer £ 8976 10340 - - - - (19,316) 5
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 12023128318 %
02451818 42,576 59,936 11,622 1,230 2862 21,156 - 139,581
Addtions HE 265 = = 17 1,388 12 16,583 18,265
Acquistion of a subsidiary (Note 20(i)) S~ IR /AR (Hizt20(i) = 1557 = 158 2 32 = 2319
Disposals HE - - - - - (1,907) - (1,907)
Transfer from right-of-use assets FRREESE - - - - - 7352 - 7352
Transfer ap = 12810 & = 3773 = (16,583) =
At 31 December 2024 HK2024512R318 42,841 74,302 11,822 1,406 8275 26,965 - 165,610
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Fithe
At 1 January 2023 202351818 8408 17,010 7212 765 1,546 14,333 - 49274
Provided for the year (Note 10) EEEE (0 1798 4315 1369 i 152 1669 = 9720
Disposals HE - - - - - 2,489) - (2,485)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 12023128318 %
02451818 10,206 21,325 8,581 882 1,998 13517 - 56,509
Provided for the year (Note 10) EfE (10 2510 5445 1222 12 748 2,306 = 1235
Transfer from right-of-use assets EREEEER - - - = = 4131 = 4,131
Disposals e - - - - - (1,428) - (1428
At 31 December 2024 12024 12B31H 12,716 26,770 9,808 1,004 2,746 18,626 - 71,565
CARRYING VALUES KA
At 31 December 2024 120245128310 30,125 47,532 2,019 401 5,529 8,439 - 94,045
At 31 December 2023 12023512631 32,370 38,610 3,241 348 864 7,639 = 83,072
Notes: MI5E
(@ As at 31 December 2024, the Group has pledged certain (a) F52024%F12831H » ZEBEBE—K
buildings with carrying amount of approximately RMB23,227,000 IRTTEFIRmEN AR23,227,0007T
(2023: RMB22,587,000) to a bank to secure certain borrowings (20234 : AR 1%22,587,0007T) BWET
(Note 22(a)(ii)). BT UEEETFER FiEE22()i0) ©
(b)  The leasehold improvements relate to costs of construction of the (o) FEEERBEMAAE M B

driving training venue which is situated on leasehold lands.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

BSR4 ERE o



V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4 4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets belong to the
driving training business’s cash-generating unit (the “CGU”").
The recoverable amounts of the CGU has been determined
based on value-in-use calculations which use cashflow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
directors of the Company, covering a five-year period and
pre-tax discount rate.

When arriving at the key assumptions used in the value-
in-use calculations, management determined the earning
before income tax, finance cost, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA margin”) based on past performance
and its expectations regarding market development. The
terminal growth rate used does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the industry. The discount rate is
pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the CGU.

Based on the assessment, the management of the Group
assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU was higher
(2023: higher) than their carrying values as at 31 March
2024, hence no impairment loss was provided as at 31
December 2024 (2023: Nil).

15. ¥R ~ BRb5 Messfl (48)

HETRENS » ~EERYE - K
Bk hEREEEBRERE
JIXBHREELBRU(IREEEE
fii)) o IREEEEBNRYAIEITERTD
BEREREEAEAEE - AR
ERHEANR SR ERERFH
B2 M EFRE MR A AR IR AR &R
E78H °

FOERERBESE A AT ERERE
RXE > EEBRBAFTRRENE
TS ERNTEHE TSR
IR HHER - ITE NS
(TEBITDAFITEE ) o FREABIKA
wERWEBHTENRP YRR
K o QRIBRARINE] » IR E
S ENBRNERR °

REFH > AEBEEBTER
20243831 HIREEL BN
Cl&ZEE L (20234F | 51) HERE
& » AHt2024F 12831 H W E 5L
REEEFHEREME (20234 © &) ©

mREEERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

assets are under hire-purchase arrangement with purchase options.
The Group is reasonably certain to exercise the purchase options
and the exercise prices of purchase options, if any, were included in

lease liabilities.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. (FREEE
Leasehold Leased Motor
lands premise vehicles Total
HETH HEM= AE Hast
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEBT T NS NS ANREBTTT
(Note)
(M5)
CosT &
At 1 January 2023 1£2023F1B18 45,500 126 10,253 55,879
Additions e 836 - 143 979
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 152023128310 K
20241518 46,336 126 10,396 56,858
Additions e - - 1,690 1,690
Expiry of lease term HEmRFRER - (126) - (126)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment ~ #1% « R Rk GEE - - (7,352) (7,352)
At 31 December 2024 120245128318 46,336 - 4,734 51,070
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION R5HRE
At 1 January 2023 120231818 5,334 20 3517 8,941
Charges for the year (Note 10) FERS (W10 1,466 22 1,270 2,758
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 #52023% 128318 K
20241518 6,800 112 4,787 11,699
Charges for the year (Note 10) FERS (:H10) 1,480 14 484 1,978
Expiry of lease term REREEHER - (126) - (126)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment ~ ¥13 ~ TR Tush et - - (4,131) (4,131)
At 31 December 2024 120245128318 8,280 - 1,140 9,420
CARRYING VALUES IRE(E
At 31 December 2024 120245128318 38,056 - 3,504 41,650
At 31 December 2023 120235128318 39,536 14 5,609 45,159
Note: As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, all motor vehicles in right-of-use Mzt @ F20244FE 2023128318 » &8

REBERNNFTEARESNREEER
BEBZHEZ T - REBESERET
EERIBE R > MRBEEENTRE
BB sTAEERRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has pledged a
leasehold land with carrying amount of approximately
RMB36,766,000 (2023: RMB37,955,000) to a bank to
secure certain borrowings (Note 22(a)(ii)). The carrying
amount of the leasehold improvements on the leasehold
land is approximately RMB47,532,000 as at 31 December
2024 (2023: RMB38,610,000).

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss is as follows:

16. EAEEE (B)

f52024F12831H » ZXEBEBSE
HEAANR®E36,766,0007T (2023
F . ARM®37,955,0007T) WHEE+
IR FIRTTUEEE T ER (s
22(a)(ii)) ° X2024%F128318 > 7
ErHMEAEEEEREENAAR
47 532,0007T (20234 : AR#E
38,610,0007T) ©

BRGAEnESNEERRNER
IRESIT

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AR®ETT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EREEEZITE (R LX)

(as above) (Note 10) (FF5E10) 1,978 2,758
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9)  FAE&ERFE (I5E9) 137 135
Total amount recognised in KA S B MR RVARER

consolidated profit or loss 2,115 2,893
Properties and assets leased for own use HEFERNYEREE

The Group leases a number of land parcels and motor
vehicles to operate its driving school. The leases of land
parcels are made for fixed periods of five to thirteen years
(2023: five to thirteen years), the leases of motor vehicles
are made for fixed periods of eight years (2023: eight years).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain various different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants.

SEEEEET IR A SEMULEH
ER o MiIBHALNASE13FENEEH
(20234 : 5FE13%) » [REHELNA
J\ERE E AR (20234 : J\4F) » 7
B LUERERER » 888N
BIFMERAEM o FAE R EURE
I35 o

mREEERERAT
T T EFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maMBHRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZE20245F 12531 HIEEE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own use

In addition, the Group owns several buildings and is the
registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Upfront payments were made to
acquire these property interests, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land lease. The
leasehold lands were leased for 40 years for commercial use.
The leasehold land components of these owned properties
are presented separately because the payments made can

be allocated reliably.

The lease liabilities of the Group are arising from the right-
of-use assets, except for the leasehold lands in the PRC
with carrying amount of approximately RMB36,766,000 as
at 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB37,955,000) which the
lease payments had been fully prepaid upfront and have no

corresponding lease liabilities.

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. (EAEEE (F)

HeFE(E B IR T P ROFR A R
IEsh - AEEREE BB T A %%
Myt (BIEAERE B L ) 9B
AN © BXBAHEREZESY
ikt o BEERARIE IR BN
(BT o TS T HIETRAR40F
(e - EIEFUERE IS
D WL EBYENAE L
DIEEBET) o

AEBNEESE N ELBERAES
= HH2024F 12831 HEREEEY
A AR M836,766,0007T (20234 : A
R #37,955,0007T) BB E i
BRI HIEENREBLEHFEANE
WA ESE o

17. B EE

System
software
RIEY
RMB’000
AREEFIT
COST %
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, F2023F1H1H ~ 2023F12H31H
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 20241 B1HXM2024F 12831 H 540
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Hetty
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, 72023FE181H ~ 20235F12831H ~
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 2024F1H1H}%2024F12H31H 540
CARRYING VALUE IREE

At 31 December 2023 and 2024

The above intangible assets have finite useful life. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBwERNE (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F 12331 HIEEE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 18. B NHEthEWERIE R FE(T

PREPAYMENTS RIg
2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

PYEE ARBTT ARETT

Trade receivables B S RWERIE @) 67 39
Other receivables HMEWEIE 1,629 1,471
Less: allowance for expected B . FERRE EE1EEE

credit loss (1,428) (1,428)

Other receivables, net of expected HhEWFRIE

credit loss OBRTEHRE B/ 201 43
Prepayments Taf®IE (b) 9,450 7,680
9,718 7,762
Less: Prepayments classified as B DEAIERENEE
non-current assets BITETFRIE

— acquisition of a subsidiary — W EE—EM S (b)
N1 (3,900) -

— property, plant and equipment —¥E -~ BN (b)
i (4,190) (360)
Current portion BPEAER 1,628 7,402

BRERZERERAS 185
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 18. 85 N H {thfEkFh1E & Fa(d

186

PREPAYMENTS (continued) FRIE (48)
Notes: MisE :

(@  The Group’s payment methods with its customers for provision
of driving training services are mainly on cash and through online
payment platforms. Generally, the course emolument fees are billed
in advance with no credit period granted to customers. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables presented

@) AEEREHEREIRSTEEFH
R EEERRENBEBER LIRT
8 —RME ’» REWRLERKTE
WEETEREEH o AEESRUMER
HHEAKERRUGIERN B ETIUE S
AREERR - R EEEEHERE
B RR - AEE T EH E 5 EWGRE
BRI AEMIERRREMEERA

REZARZINE ZRIIERE

based on the invoice dates: T
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
0-30 days 0Z30% 67 39

The trade and other receivables are all denominated in the functional
currency of the respective entities in the Group.

(b) As at 31 December 2024, non-current portion of prepayments mainly
represents the consideration paid for acquisition of a subsidiary,
which is a driving school, of approximately RMB3,900,000 (2023:
Nil) and renovation fee of approximately RMB4,190,000 (2023:
Nil) prepaid for the renovation of the training ground and interior
decoration of the subsidiary to be acquired.

As at 31 December 2023, prepayments mainly represented
advanced payments to suppliers of RMB6,900,000 for purchasing
equipment. Related contracts were cancelled as at the end of 31
December 2023 and the prepayments had been refunded to the
Group on 18 March 2024, 19 March 2024 and 22 March 2024.

19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Cash and bank balances represent cash at banks and on
hand. Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rate. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2024, there was approximately
RMB120,836,000 (2023: RMB152,298,000) denominated
in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations in the PRC, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through authorised banks to
conduct foreign exchange business.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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PRE B 5 R EthEIIE L A EIAEME
BRERTIREEEEHE ©

(b)  HR2024F12831H » BANHENIER
HFROIEABE - ERHMNE
REIFFZIBIAEA AR 3,900,000
TL(2023%F I MIMNEEBEYARE
4,190,00075(2023%F © &) » FANEA(E
EIGH N ERE BRI B AN ENE
1& o

7220235 12831H » EARIBEEEE
AR EEANIRERENTRIBARKE
6,900,0007T ° HEEASABE1:2023F12
B31BEEVE MBI FIEEL2024F3
H18H ~ 2024938190 K&20235E3H
22HIRIBEFAEM o

19. R1T4EER R £

RENIRITRIERIT AT RRE -
IRTTHEEREN S ARITERRRIZF
BHXEFR o RITEFEHNEER
b AT AR S R SO ERBYERTT ©

Fi2024F 12831 H » H AR
120,836,0007T (20234 : AR#E
152,298,00070) U A RIEEHEN 17
FLREIRVERTT - AR BEAHRTIHR
AEMETE > AW > IRIFPRBISNE
BIREHI AL - EENTEEIER
T AEBEREEBEEREETINE
EBNIETHARERBRAHEME
m o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F 12331 HIEEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 20. 85 RE#MhESIEREST
ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(a)

Trade and other payables and accruals

ERAREHNEE
(a) BZMHEMEMRERETE
A
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREBTT

Trade payables (Note (i) B 5 rEIE (EE()
Construction costs payables EANFESSS DN

Accrued salaries and other staff cost FEst#re REME TR~
Accrued directors’ remuneration FEETE =B

Examination fees payables eI EHE
Other tax payables HAEIRIE

Other payables (Note (ii)) HAhFE(T FRIB (B (i)

Notes:

i) No credit period is granted by the trade creditors. Trade
payables are normally settled within 30 days from the invoice
date.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date:

1,158 981
3,104 3,125
2,675 2,625
2,756 2,186
1,139 1,384
1,167 1,263
3,648 3,910
15,647 15,374

B EEATBRREER - B
Z R FIE— AR 3 S HARHES0
RAMESR o

REZRHHZINEZEIIE
BOBRER DATINT :

2024 2023
2024 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AEETIT

0 - 60 days 0ZE60X 733 595
61— 90 days 610K 130 109
91 - 120 days 91ZE 120k 108 90
121 — 365 days 121E365K% - -
Over 365 days BiE365K 187 187
1,158 981

(ii) As at 31 December 2024, other payables mainly comprised
of accrued audit fee, accrued legal and professional fees and
refund liability amounting to approximately RMB1,203,000
(2023: RMB1,136,000), RMB892,000 (2023: RMB1,209,000)
and RMB663,000 (2023: RMB662,000) respectively.

(i)

752024128318 » HAhpE(t
RBETECERAEZER B
AN EEERNERRAEGS
B AR #E1,203,00073 (2023
F : AR1,136,0007T) * AR
#5892 0007 (20234 : ARIE
1,209,0007t) M A #663,0007T
(20234 : AR662,0007T) °

mREEERERAT
T T EFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maBEmRmEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 20. B3 RE#MFEMIEREST
ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES ERNGHAE )

(continued)

(b) Contract liabilities (b) EX&E
Contract liabilities represent advance payments of BREEIERLEMFERW
driving course fees from customers upon enrolment of AR P EMREERMNM

driving courses.

Movement of contract liabilities is as follows: BHEBEEEFNT
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 1818 17,862 23,257
Decrease in contract liabilities as FRIRES AW P EE Y

a result of being recognised as sHaERY

revenue during the year (12,839) (17,181)
Decrease in contract liabilites asa A& RHNERENEEHLD

result of refund to customers (1,420) (1,422)
Decrease in contract liabilites as a ~ HAZEIERINEREL

result of forfeiture due to expiry aER> (231) (450)
Increase in contract liabilities as a FARTEWEFRIEPTE

result of advance payments from BHBEEMN

customers during the year 9,319 13,658
At 31 December 128318 12,691 17,862

188 China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)

(b) Contract liabilities (continued)

During both years, the Group allows refund of the total
amount of the course fees to the customers before they
complete the driving skill written test, after deducting
the registration fees. Depending on the contract terms,
the Group allows refund of 51% to 58% of the total
amount of the course fees excluding the registration
fees, to customers after completion of the driving skill
written test but prior to provision of driving training
services. The Group does not allow refund of the
course fees to the customers after the commencement
of providing driving training services to them. The
Group recognises refund liability under “Trade and
other payables and accruals” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The following table shows unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from contracts with customers and
expected time to be recognised as revenue:

20. B 5 K Hth RS sRIE R fE 5t
BERAKGHREGE)

(b)

BHEEGEE)

mEERERRR » &NER A
EREPTEMEMNNAESEH AN
FEROKNBRREL ENVRRE
B4R o RIBSHERR » K&
EESRERFEESHAERER
HERIEIRER > IARS
BERREE (FOERLE) &
FEMS51%EE8% o ZNEE R
HFERBEEEIREERE
IRFEEREPRERREE - K
SRR EAERIAEEH
R ER T8 5 & EfhE
TIENEER] ©

TRINRERENEEZRE
TRAOSENEIKER S
mAYRER

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREBTT

Expected to be recognised TERRR RS A ER
as revenue
— Within one year ——FR
— After one year ——F&

9,264 13,039
3,427 4,823
12,691 17,862

mREEERERAT
T T EFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maMBHRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZE20245F 12531 HIEEE

21. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities are presented in the consolidated statement

21. HE&®E
AEaETeAMBRRET 25

of financial position as follows: T
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Lease liabilities payable: FLLA TR A FE RS
HEaE
— Within one year ——FR 1,854 1,466
— Within a period of more than one year ~ ——FEL HB BB
but not exceeding two years MEBIHARI A 932 1,292
— Within a period of more than two years ~ —iEL_EBREB
but not exceeding five years A FBHAER 909 1,037
— Over five years —RFEUE 197 368
3,892 4,163
Less: Future finance charges B ARRIFERS (459) (688)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaRRE 3,433 3,475
Less: Amounts due for settlement within & : B#REHIZREE121E 2
twelve months from the end of NEHEENEER
the reporting period (shown under EXTFEy =)
current liabilities) (1,635) (1,158)
Amounts due for settlement after twelve ~— BIREHIRIE12(E S %
months from the end of the reporting FHREE R ERE
period (shown under non-current (2AABIERSER)
liabilities) 1,798 2,317

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities range from 5.4% to 12.8% (2023: 5.4%
to 12.8%) per annum. All leases are entered at fixed prices.
The Group does not face significant liquidity risk with regard
to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the
Group’s treasury function.

As at 31 December 2024, lease liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB1,998,000 (2023: RMB1,793,000) in
relation to hire-purchase of motor vehicles which are secured
by corresponding motor vehicles and guaranteed by Mr. Qi.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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FEAREEaENINEFEIEEER
FRERNF5.4%FE12.8% (20234 :
5.4%%F12.8%) - FTEHAEHMUETE
BT - AEENEEAETER
BREAREERK - HES/HRA
EENEEHENTEERE o

7L2024F 1283110 » HiEESES
FENHEESENA ARTE1,998,000
70 (20234 : AR#81,793,0007T) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

22. BORROWINGS

A MBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREETIT
Bank borrowings, secured (Note (a)) IRITIER » BIER (izE@) 42,230 51,230
Bank borrowings, unsecured (Note (b)) IRITERR > B (Y5 () 3,000 3,000
45,230 54,230
The carrying amounts of the above ARV ERE(EZERT
borrowings are repayable: DUTERREMER -
— Within one year ——FR 45,230 45,230
— Within a period of more than one year ~ — B¥R&SHIGKESt—F
but not exceeding two years from M EERBEmE
the end of the reporting period HIHARE A - 9,000
45,230 54,230
Analysed into: paY I
— Current —mEh 45,230 45,230
— Non-current —3EmE - 9,000
45,230 54,230
Notes: MI5E
(@  Asat 31 December 2024, secured bank borrowings consisted of four (@) 1R2024F12H31H > BIRHBITENR

(2028: five) bank borrowings:

AP (20234 © ) THERTTEFRABAL

0} a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB17,730,000
(2023: RMB17,730,000) was secured by the operation right
of a subsidiary of the Company, Zhumadian Tongtai Large
Vehicles Driver Training Company Limited (“Tong Tai School”),
which operates the Tong Tai School and was guaranteed
by Mr. Qi, bearing a fixed interest rate at 6.4% (2023: 8.0%)
per annum and repayable in June 2025 (2023: June 2024).
The operation right will be obtained by the bank if the Group
defaults in repayments of the borrowing;

@M

w4 ARIK17,730,0007T (2023
F . AR#17,730,0007T) HISRIT
ERUSLNE - B AR FHS
ERRAKEBEENS A
RBAT(MBERER » ZABK
ERRER) PSS R EIR IR
TTHRERR > EEENER6.4%
(2023£F : 8.0%) M ZBHS202556
B (20234 : 2024468) EE
A EEBLAREEER L8
R RIRITE

mREEERERAT
T T EFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

22. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

(continued)

(i)

(i

()

a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB13,500,000
(2023: RMB13,500,000) was secured by the leasehold land
and building of Tong Tai School with carrying amount of
approximately RMB36,766,000 (2023: RMB37,955,000) and
RMB23,227,000 (2023: RMB17,053,000) respectively and
was guaranteed by Mr. Qi and his spouse, bearing a fixed
interest rate at 4.65% (2023: 4.65%) per annum and repayable
in December 2024. In December 2024, the repayment date
had been extended to March 2025 and other terms remained
the same;

a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB9,000,000
(2023: RMB9,000,000) was secured by the operation right of
a subsidiary of the Company, Suiping County Shunda Driver
Training Company Limited (“Shunda School”), which operates
the Shun Da School, bearing a fixed interest rate at 5.5%
(2023: 5.5%) per annum and repayable in July 2025 (2023:
July 2025). The operation right will be obtained by the bank if
the Group defaults in repayment of the borrowing; and

a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB2,000,000
(2023: RMB2,000,000) was guaranteed by Mr. Qi and his
spouse, bearing a fixed interest rate at 4.62% (2023: 4.62%)
per annum and repayable in June 2025 (2023: August 2024).

As at 31 December 2024, an unsecured bank borrowing with
principal amount of RMB3,000,000 (2023: RMB3,000,000) was
bearing a fixed interest rate at 4.15% (2023: 4.25%) per annum and
repayable in April 2025 (2023: May 2024).
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22, & (48)

MizE . (@)

(@)

(&

(i)

(i

(iv)

)

% AR13,500,0007T (2023
£ AR%13,500,0007T) K9
RITEFUEEESOAR
#36,766,0007T (20234 : A
R #37,955,0007T) K AR
23,227,0007T (20234 : AR
17,053,0007T) B9@ = E R B9
B T AR TR R T e
MEREBER > FETMNES
4.65% (20234 : 4.65%) A7ERL
2024F12 81848 © FR20245F12
B EERHRBEREE2025F3
B> MEMERAETRE ;

& AR M9,000,0007s (2023
£ 1 AR9,000,0007T) BIRIT
BRURRE—KRM B AR ZEF
HEEEsEEIERAT (NE
BEER  ZNRKEIBEER)
A S REEIRIR > EEEHME
#5.5% (20234 : 5.5%) M ZEHT
2025478 (20234 : 202547
B ERE o MAEBELREERS
o EEREBIRTRE ; &

& ARH2,000,0007T (2023
F 1 AR2,000,0007T) BIRIT
ERETERERERBERGR
FREEFNEKAE4.62% (20234 :
4.62%) A ZBHL2025F6 8 (2023
£ 1 202458 H) B8 o

2024%F12831H A2 AR
#3,000,0007C (20234 : ARHE
3,000,0007T) WEEIEIFIR TR F &
EREAAL15% (20234 : 4.25%) W 7E
#R2025%FE4 8 (20234 : 20244FE57) &
;§ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CaBmRMEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F 12331 HIEEE

22. BORROWINGS (continued) 22, & (8)
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings are as follows: REBRIEBIELEINT
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREBTT

Fixed-rate borrowings TEEMEM 45,230 54,230

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s NEELETVERHNXEBEUT
borrowings are as follows:

2024 2023
20244 20234
Effective interest rate per annum: BRERX
— Fixed-rate borrowings —EREN 4.15% 10 6.4%  4.25% t0 8.0%
The Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB which is AEFEHUARESHE » HAEH
same as the functional currency of the respective entities in AFES M INAE SRR o
the Group.

BRERZEEERAT 193
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maMBHRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS)

23, JBIEIRIAEE (EE)

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

MR AR ERESSN T ZRERIES
BAARRAEEE)

Temporary
difference on
depreciation Temporary
of property, difference
Right-of-use Lease plant and on interest Revenue Deductible
assets liabilities equipment  capitalisation recognition tax losses Total
& BER
RfEEN  RSEKN A
EREEE i EREE EREE WD B sz
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N NRBTT ANRETT ANRETT ANEETR ANRETFR ANRETR
At1 January 2023 K2023E1A18 a4 or4) 3498 1,748 2265 (1,389) 6,122
Charged!/crecited) to profit or mse/ GrA) B (1)
loss (Note 11) 134 (136) (734) (148) (207) (222) (1313
At 31 December 2023 and 120236128310 K
1 January 2024 2004E181H 408 (410) 2,764 1,600 2,058 (161) 4,809
Charged/(credited) to prof MR8/ GtA) B8 (k1)
orloss (Note 11) (76) 62 (2421) (148) 591 (310) (2302
At 31 December 2024 152024512A310 332 (348) 43 1,452 2,649 (1,921) 2,507

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately RMB7,679,000 (2023: RMB6,445,000)
available for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
operating subsidiaries in the PRC. Based on the business
plans of the Group, it is expected that the operating
subsidiaries in the PRC will generate sufficient future profits
to utilise these tax losses. Deferred tax assets in respect of
the cumulative tax losses of approximately RMB1,921,000
(2023: RMB1,611,000) was provided as at 31 December
2024. The tax losses will expire after 5 years from the year in
which the losses were incurred.
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Note:

On 16 January 2024, the Company proposed to conduct the Rights Issue
on the basis of one (1) Rights Share for every two (2) Shares held at the
subscription price of HK$0.2 per Rights Share, to raise gross proceeds of
up to approximately HK$40.0 million before expenses, by way of the Rights
Issue of up to 200,000,000 Rights Shares. On 20 March 2024, a total of
35,958,192 Rights Shares were issued and allotted at HK$0.20 per Rights
Share pursuant to the Rights Issue. Upon completion of the Rights Issue,
the issued share capital of the Company comprises 435,958,192 Shares
of HK$0.01 each and the total amount of paid-up share capital became
approximately HK$4,360,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB3,939,000).
The gross proceeds raised from the Rights Issue were approximately
HK$7,192,000 and the net proceeds from the Rights Issue after deducting
the relevant expenses are approximately HK$6,062,000, of which
approximately HK$5,702,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB5,278,000)
are credited to the Company’s equity under share premium.

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. g7
Number of Share
shares capital
Kir#E B
RMB’000
ARETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R0 BTHEER
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, 1202318 1H ~ 20235F12831H ~
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 2024F1B1HK%2024512831H 10,000,000,000 90,179
Issued and fully paid BETRARE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and ~ $:2023F181H ~ 20235F12831HK
1 January 2024 20241818 400,000,000 3,608
Issuance of shares upon the FEREBETRG ()
Rights Issue (Note) 35,958,192 331
At 31 December 2024 1520245128315 435,958,192 3,939

M5k -

H2024%1816H » NATEFRESEFEM )
BB HE B — (1) IR AR AR 1 = B IR S AR
B&B% 150,278 TRISREE [EHEITHR - UEBEH
82175 %200,000,0008& GRS I T2
EFFEAUIBEEERZ440.08 B8 T (FOFRE
2 H) o A20244E38 208 - REMAG - &
35,958,192 R AR A& (1% S ARH AR AR 15 0.2078
T BT REDS - MIERTME > QT B
21TIR A E1$5435,958,192 08 G AR E{E0.01 3
TORIRR » BARR A 4R%REE 494,360,000
7T (FRZE A AR #3,939,0007T) © HEEE
2 P8 R IE4AREXT 747,192,000 71 K A AZ AR
BEIEF 5 (GNMERRE X B) 496,062,000
HIT 0 HPA5,702,00058 7T S AREE
5,278,0007T) 5t A A B A1 HEE
—F o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZE20245F 12531 HIEEE

25.

China

RESERVES

The following describes the nature and purpose of each
reserve within owners’ equity.

Share premium

Share premium account of the Company represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents cash contributions from Mr. Qi in
previous years.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required
to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit after
tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the PRC to the statutory reserve until the balance of the
reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s registered capital.
The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses and may be capitalised as registered capital, provided
that the remaining balance of the statutory reserve fund after
such issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.

Oriented International Holdings Limited
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 19 September 2020, a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group.

The board of directors of the Company may, at its discretion,
offer to grant an option to subscribe for such number of
new shares as the board of directors of the Company may
determine at an subscription price at a price which shall
be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares
on the offer date of the option; (ii) the average closing
prices of the shares for the five consecutive business days
immediately preceding the offer date of the option; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share on the offer date of the option.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years from the date of the adoption of Share Option
Scheme and shall expire at the close of business on the
business day immediately preceding the 10th anniversary
thereof unless terminated earlier by the shareholders in
general meeting.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
21 days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made.
An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted when the
duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the offer is duly
signed, together with a non-refundable remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by the Company.

6. fBlatEstE

RIEF2020F 98 19H ERNATIEE
BERREE  BENERESTE
(TRERRHESTEL)) ©

BRESE SR R N
EHERMEUBETERMNEGERAL

FRBAEFGAHNERIEZRHEBR
o UERBEIRESERETE
WERHERHKRD » ZEREATS
B TIZREE © (\RIDKBRE
REBIRWHE ; ()ROINEERE
KiERE A A EEEE XA T
HUTHME 5 K(iiin i RERRER 2 H
HARVEE °

PRIEIRRISIRERAE LIRAITRLE > &
EB e 1E B BB AR ST B JE £k B HAE
SH1OEHIBDIARB R » WisH BHEeX
stEITBEZ ARRVERHE XK
AR ©

KHBkeEZIR2ANIRE E HEst
21HA (BEER) &M - MRS
RAFRIAEENEE » RAQFUE]
MUAE AT HRm AMERE HERER
AUE1.00BTTHI R PIRIZERET » R
RERSHRDERMR -
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26.

27.

28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Save as determined by the board of directors and provided
in the offer of the grant of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held or the
performance target which must be achieved before an
option can be exercised.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme established by the Company,
if any, is 40,000,000, representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company upon initial listing. The total
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme, if any, shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

No share options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, except for those
disclosed in Note 29, the Group did not have any significant
commitments.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group does not have any material related
party transactions in the normal course of its business.

Compensation to key management personnel

The directors of the Company were considered to be the
key management personnel of the Group. The remuneration
of the directors of the Company is set out in Note 12.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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29. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 are as

29. IXfIB ATIRNIRE
[R2024F12H31 HHM B A EEE

follows: W
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share Equity interests attributable Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/registered capital to the Company place of operation
AL BRTRBERE,/
MEARRE Rt R B &R FATRELRE TEEHRCEM
2024 2023
20245 2023
Directly held:
EEER!
Ample Best International Limited The BVI Authorised: US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
15 December 2016 Paid up capital: US$4
BEEEERAR HEEUHE JETE © 50,000%7T REER
20165125158 HEER  4ET
Indirectly held:
ke
Maxi Access Limited Hong Kong Paid up capital: HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 January 2016
HEBRAT B BRELR BT REER
2016515280
Wincox Limited Hong Kong Peid up capital: HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 December 2016
BHERAE B BRER 1ET REER
20165 12528H
Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural Media The PRC Registered: RMB200,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited* (Notes (i) and (ii)) 2 June 2016 Paid up capital: RMB73,400,000
SEERZULEEERAR (0ki) & s AR #200,000,0007% REER
2016%6H2H BEEA | ARHT3,400,0007T
Zhumadian Tongtai Large Vehicles Driver The PRC Registered: RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of driving training
Training Company Limited* (Note (i) 24 April 2014 Paid up capital: RMB20,000,000 courses in the PRC
HEERRALKBBRFEITIER HE = - AR#20,000,0007T TRHENR R RIEIRE
AF) () 2014645247 BRER : AR¥20,000,00078
Suiping County Shunda Driver Training The PRC Registered: RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of driving training
Company Limited* (Note (i) 25 December 2012 Paid up capital: RMB2,000,000 courses in the PRC
BTHIBERRREIERAR () HE aH : AK2,000,00070 KRB R R
20124125258 BEEA | ARH2,000,0007T
Suiping Tongtai Occupational Training The PRC Registered: RMB3,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of occupational
School Company Limited* (Note (i) 20 July 2020 Paid up capital: RMB3,000,000 training services in the PRC
BT RRBEE2RERAT () HE atfft : AE#3,000,0007% TR B AR 15 AR S
20206 7H20H BEEA : AR3,000,00070
Zhumadian City Kaiyuan Vehicle Driver Training The PRC Registered: RMB2,100,000 100% - Provision of driving training

Company Limited* (Notes (i) and ii)) 13 May 2016
HEETHREBERERSHIERAT  HE
(GEIM) 2016558138

*

names of the companies are in Chinese.

Paid up capital: RMB100,000
s : AER#2,100,0007%
BiREAR . AKH100,0007T

The English names are for identification purpose only and the official

courses in the PRC
TRHEMR R RIEHIRE

i EXLHEHBRZEFARDZEL %

MRS o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZE20245F 12531 HIEEE

29. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 29.

(continued)
Notes:

(i) Established as a limited liability company in the PRC.

(ii) The registered capital has not yet fully paid up during the year ended
31 December 2024. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had unpaid
share capital of RMB126,600,000 (2023: RMB29,000,000) for this
subsidiary.

(iii) Zhumadian City Kaiyuan Vehicle Driver Training Company (“Kaiyuan”)
was acquired during the year ended 31 December 2024. As
at 31 December 2024, the Group had unpaid share capital of
RMB2,000,000 (2023: Nil) for this subsidiary.

In order to expand market share, in November 2024, a directly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”) entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with independent third parties
(the “Vendor”). Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement,
the Group agreed to acquire 100% equity interest of Kaiyuan at a
consideration of RMB2,100,000 by cash (the “Acquisition”).

Kaiyuan is principally engaged in providing driving training services.

The acquisition of Kaiyuan has been accounted for as
acquisition of business, using acquisition accounting.
Influenced by the macro-economic environment, small
driving schools are accelerating their exit from the market,
the fair value of net identifiable assets exceeded the
purchase consideration, resulting in a gain on bargain
purchase. The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired of Kaiyuan as at the date of the Acquisition, 27
November 2024, are as follows:

B AT E (B)

MI5E
0] KRB BRATE °

iy EE2024FE12H31HILEEER > 5
MEREREE o F2024F 12531
B> XEERZRBLATFIEARE
126,600,0007T (20234 : 29,000,000
TT) ZAREE R o

iy BEEDRRKSEEFSEINEGR
RE)(TRRL) T B E2024F 128
B1HIEFERBA ° iK20245F 12831
B> A£EEMRZMNBLAEREARK
2,000,000 (ZEBEZ=4F : &) 2 K&
BRRAS o

AYERTIZMEE > 1R2024F 118 » &
NE—BEE2ENB AT ES LB
UE=ZH(EHDTUBERE - RiE
BEWE > AEERERERR100%
e IRERBEAAR®E2,100,0007T
(TWeBg==1E))

IR T IR (R B A AR -

WEEFIRERWEEESHAARS AU
X - REBKERIRERE /N
BRINRRETS > AR EEFE
NATEBBRENE  ERELER
BB E WD - MRRWEA#2024
FUR2THFBANH#NEERE
BRQFENT !

RMB’000

AREFT

Property, plant and equipment W2 ~ RS Nessift 2,319
Prepayments Taf=IE 113
Other payables HAFE(IFIE (194)
Net assets acquired FTEBAEEFE 2,238
Cash consideration RENRE 2,100
Gain on bargain purchase EEEEWE (138)
Net cash outflow arising on the Acquisition WEEEEEENIRS R EE 2,100
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

29. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

The gain on bargain purchase was recognised under other
income and losses net of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Impact of the Acquisition on the results of the Group

The Acquisition generated revenue of approximately
RMB55,000 and contributed a net loss of approximately
RMB15,000 for the period from 27 November 2024 to
31 December 2024. If the Acquisition had occurred on 1
January 2024, pro-forma consolidated loss of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2024 would have been
approximately RMB8,387,000.

The pro-forma information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the Acquisition occurred on 1 January 2024,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

29. ITMB LB E (B)

ZEREWmN AR Ba AR
W RAYE MU AR ESTE - P ERPHE

a8 ©

KRR SIEHAEREENTE
<2024 11 H27HE2024F 128
31TH  WESEEELEWRGEAOARKE
55,0007t A BSR4 A K 115,000
7T o (WUNBE B IEH2024FE1B1H%
B REEFHE2024F12831H1E
FENEEESBEBENAARE
8,387,0007T ©

HEERMEMRBZ A » ROFRTR
HUNEEEIFH2024F 1 81 B R A
EE BRI ERPIN R A LS
TNIES R IR ZELEITER ©

BENB AR RFERETEAESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. EAE[fEEIT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes lease liabilities and borrowings disclosed
in Notes 21 and 22, respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The Group’s adjusted net debt to capital ratio are as follows:

FEREEHE AR LRSS
SEESESE > FREBE(LET
RIBATE > ERREERBEALL o
EBEEREE AR
FAE o

FEENESEBEERES (B85
21 22D R BERNEERER
B HRRERIRESEYRAE
REER AL (BEEETR
KR MEH) - AEBEKHAEFEREE
AREERYNTF ¢

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTFT AREFIT
Current liabilities: mEaE

Lease liabilities HEaE 1,635 1,158
Borrowings EEN 45,230 45,230
46,865 46,388

Non-current liabilities: JEREIAEE
Lease liabilities HEAaE 1,798 2,317
Borrowings EE - 9,000
1,798 11,317
Total debt S=RE 48,663 57,705
Less: Cash and cash equivalents A IRENREEEY (120,913) (152,359)
Adjusted net debt RN = -
Total equity 4ERETR 186,818 189,569
Adjusted net debt to capital ratio RFFFEBEARLEE N/A N/A
RiER B

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

31.

(continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy- backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

30. EXRARERE (B)

31.

KRB EFEPRERLERE o 15 R
RS —E7 » ZRRNEFERE
TR NEBERRERER © RIE
TRBEFREE  AEERFBBN
IR~ BT R B 1 [l 8 LA K 2
THEHNELREER 0 £HEBE

BARGEEEIRTME o
ERTH
SRITEDE
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at amortised cost: IRi#ER AT ENESHEE .

Trade and other receivables B 5 MEMEWFIE

Bank balances and cash IRITAEER NIRRT

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: J#tEmMAstENSREE :

Trade and other payables B N EMENRIE
Lease liabilities HEEa®R
Borrowings EEN

268 82
120,913 152,359
121,181 152,441

9,647 9,406
3,433 3,475
45,230 54,230
58,310 67,111

BRERZEEERAS 203
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 £RAMSIEBENKE

204

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, lease liabilities and borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. There has
been no change to the Group’s exposure or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risk.

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from lease
liabilities, borrowings, and bank balances. Lease
liabilities, borrowings and bank balances at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group’s interest rate profile is monitored by
management.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net debts (being interest-bearing financial

2. xR EMEEBERER

(&)

(a)

IR E R (E
TRFHASEREFES RIS
TREBRBIRTERNIRE) R

liabilities less bank balance and cash) at the end of the HREHARBIF R ©
reporting period.
2024 2023
2024%F 20235
Interest Interest
rate per rate per
annum (%) Amounts annum (%) Amounts
FRE(%) FFIZE(%) FFIZE(%) &8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTR ANRETFTT
Fixed rate borrowings EEER
Lease liabilities HEER 5.4% to 12.8% (3,433)  5.4%t0 12.8% (3,475)
5.4%E12.8% 5.4%ZF12.8%
Borrowings B0 4.15% to 6.4% (45,230)  4.25% 10 8.0% (54,230)
4.15%%6.4% 4.25%%8.0%
—(48,663) 57,705
Variable rate deposits HFEER
Bank balances RITAER 0.1% 120,913 0.2% t0 0.3% 152,359
0.1% 0.2%%0.3%
Sensitivity analysis R T

At 31 December 2024, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10 basis points in saving interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s loss before
income tax and increased/decreased the Group’s
retained profits by approximately RMB121,000 (2023:
RMB152,000).

1K2024%F12831H » HER
FR4ERE FFRBR10E BT
FTEHEMMEBEHIFAE » AR
S ENRAITER A B
B IR EBNRE G
FEETHEIEM, RO H AR
121,0007% (20234 : AR#&
152,0007T) ©

mREEERERAT
T T EFR

205



206

A O O O O O O O O N\

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maMBHRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(b) Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value of
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

32. (%n)ﬂ G EEREBERMEER

(b)

a““ﬁ.’é)ﬁw

ERRIEEm T ARKRES
/)lLEB/J/Ay{EHTJ.ET#z@Jﬁ
/BZ@JE/JHB”” C

AEBLSMNESHENEREE

denominated monetary assets and liabilities are as MEeENREEWT
follows:
Liabilities Assets
af&\ &E
2024 2023 2024 2023
20244 20234 20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT AREETTT ARBETT AREETT
HK$ BIT (2,034) (2,609) 21 20
The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of KEEBFERTEHLE > K
the transactions denominated and settled in RMB. No PNEHBUANREENRGEHE °
currency risk has been identified for the financial assets AEBUTERUARESTED
and financial liabilities denominated in RMB, which is SREENMSREEREM
the functional currency of the subsidiaries in the PRC to EfEkm > AEWBABZER
which these transactions relate. The Group’s exposure SEBENTREMNBAS ZINEE
to foreign currency risk primarily arises from certain B o ZNEE E R IERYSNEE & B
financial instruments including bank balance and other I;l%:ﬂ/{%ﬂ:uﬂé By & B

payables which are denominated in HK$. During the
years, the Group did not have foreign currency hedging
policy but management continuously monitors the
foreign exchange exposure.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F 12331 HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. ¢ EGEEEERKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) =)
(b) Currency risk (continued) (b) EEREME )
Sensitivity analysis HRESHT
2024 2023
20245 20234
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign (Increase)/ in foreign (Decrease)/
exchange decrease exchange increase
rate pre-tax loss rate  pre-tax profit
BEEX  IRRAIEE X FRIREDRA
A (FBR)  (GEm), AL A (FE)  CEAY,/38m
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBBTT AREBTT AR®TT ARETT
HKS$ AT 5% (101) 5% (117)
HK$ ABIT (5%) 101 (5%) 117

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

(c)

S8R SRR BT S
72024%F12831H » &~&EBEFR
mHERSEERBEERAE
BRARGHFRERBITEEM
EXMBER > JWREESH
BRI B FE B FE S0 & Al
BENRMEE °

mREEERERAT
—TNFEFR

207



208

A O O O O O O O O N\

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. £ EAEEEEERKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group regularly
monitors the external credit ratings of the financial
institutions based on available information at each
reporting date for its bank balances which are placed in
these financial institutions. The credit rating information
is supplied by independent rating agencies where
available and, if not available, the credit management
team uses other publicly available financial information.
The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.

For trade and other receivables, the Group determines
the ECL on these items individually by estimation
based on historical credit loss experience of the debtor,
general economic conditions of the industry and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The Group has concentration of credit risk arising from
bank balances as there was a bank which individually
contributed 84.5% (2023: 81.9%) of the Group’s bank
balances as at 31 December 2024. The management
considers that the credit risk on liquid funds is low
as counterparties are financial institutions with good
reputation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F 12331 HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. ¢ EGEEEERKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

(&)

(c) EERME

BTG ()

TREMEINEERBSHEE
EEREAE > THEKTER

assessment: EEEEM -

Internal Trade Other financial

credit rating Description receivables assets

AEBEE TR A EE TR BRRWE BRRWE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and  Lifetime ECL - not 12-month ECL
does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired

LRk REHFEORREE  BUREAREE 2HEHEES 12{8R B EEE

B-BEEHE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays in full after due dates  Lifetime ECL - not 12-month ECL
but usually settles in full credit-impaired

BRRLE BEACERAREETHEREERRE LHEREES 12{8 R RHE EEE
SN B-EEERE

Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL not credit-  Lifetime ECL not credit-
credit risk since initial recognition through impaired impaired
information developed internally or external
resources

Rk BEBNSHEENERINSERNSRET 0  2HEREES SHRIEER
EEREmEELM B-®EERE B-REEERE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- ~ Lifetime ECL credit- Lifetime ECL credit-
impaired impaired impaired

B8 BREBERPZEEGAGEAE LHRIEEE LHRIREEE

B-EEHE B-EEHE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in - Amount is written off Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

s B SEF%EEHMEW\BEJ\EEE#%%%E$$ MEERIE MEERIE

B E BRI R

mREEERERAT
T NFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maBEmRmEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. 2ftRAMGEEHERKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)
(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) EERMEREETEE)
(continued)

Internal 12m or
credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
A 128R%2H
EET& FHEERR RE4AE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mzt ANRBTT ANEETT
Financial assets at amortised costs
BB ENERNEE
Trade receivables 18 Lowrisk Lifetime ECL 67 39
B ARITIE BER SHEREESRE
Other receivables 18 Lowrisk 12m ECL 201 43
HitEEIE EEk 12{8AEREEESE
Other receivables 18 Loss Lifetime ECL 1,428 1,428
(credit-impaired)
HiteWE B8 SHFREESE
(EEHE)
Bank balances and cash 19 Low risk 12m ECL 120,913 152,359
TERLIRE BER 12{BAEREERSE
The following table shows loss allowance that has been TRET S E 4T FE U 2 IarE SR
recognised for other receivables: BB I BE
Loss
allowance
ESERE
RMB’000
ANRETT
As at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, $:2023%F1818 ~ 2023%F12831H »
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 202451818 %2024%F12H31H 1,428
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Annual Report 2024



V 4V 4V V4V 4V 4 4V 4 4 4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F 12331 HIEEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the

2. xR EMEEBERER
(&)

(d)

MENE & E R
REERBEZREBE » £&
EERKEREEES D EN
BIRE MRS EBYIKF - KU
BMAEENESETRERE
MENEBNTE -

TRV TEEEZRAERNER
TEMNEHE - TRIHRER
SEAERZNTYHNRTF BB
ERaERMREEAER
e TREEMEAFTERE
MRE - MAERERFEF
o HIRMRESBEEARS

undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at HREHARAIF= o
the end of the reporting period.
Weighted
average Over 1 year Total
interest rate Within but within Over  undiscounted Carrying
per annum On demand 1year 5years 5years cash flows amounts
g FRER
TR ED 1EMR 1555 Bi#sE  RENEEH e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETR NEETR NEETT ANE®TT ANEETT NRETT
Asat31 December 2024 2024127318
Trade and other payables ~ ER R EMERZE N/A FER 9,647 - - - 9,647 9,647
Lease liblties EEE 8.7% - 1,854 1,841 197 3,892 3433
Borrowings &
- Fived rate —BEAE 5.5% - 46,251 - - 46,251 45,230
9,647 48,105 1,841 197 59,790 58,310
Weighted
average Over 1 year Total
interest rate Within but within Over  undiscounted Carying
per annum On demand 1year 5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
g KR
THEAE HEX 12LIR 1558 BiEsE  RENBLE I
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETT NEETT NEETT NEHT T ANE¥FT NEETR
Asat 31 December 2023 120235128318
Trade and other payables B REMERTE NARER 9,406 - - - 9,406 9,406
Lease liabiities HEAR 10.5% - 1465 2,330 368 4,163 3475
Borrowings a3
- Fived rate ~EERE 6.2% - 47304 9,286 - 56,610 54230
9,406 48,789 11,616 368 70,179 67,111

mREEERERAT
T T EFR

2.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fra M B wRME (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. £ EAEEEEERKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (48)

(e) Fair value (e) AFE
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities ETHEENEMEBENATE
are determined in accordance with generally accepted BARBEEBRN  UATHERE
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis FIMmERZERINEEAE
using prices or rates from observable current market ABETHRREEREDNE
transactions as inputs. iE °
The management of the Group considers that the FEEEEERAEEENAX
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial ARNEMEEREHEER
liabilities recorded at amortised cost approximate their HEAFRENRRSHERLAFEE
fair values at the end of the reporting period. M o

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 33. & ZEIFIES GENEHER
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFMAEEMEBEZBFIEEERE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and N&EE) > BiFRENIFIREEE - M
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities BRFMESBBEABISNEAER
are those for which cash flows were or future cash flows will FAERESRERNDEAMEEHAME
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash RERENBEREXRKIRER
flows as cash flows from financing activities. 2o

212 China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ARE MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 33. & ZEFrELX S EMNEHER

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (48)
(continued)
Lease
liabilities Borrowings
HEaHE =6
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT  AREFR

At 1 January 2023 H52023F181H 3,749 55,230
Changes from finance cash flows: REIRESREED) .

— Proceeds from borrowings %?’KFE?%?’K - 70,730

— Repayment of borrowings —EIRER - (71,730)

— Interest paid on borrowings —BAEFFE - (4,095)

— Repayment of lease liabilities principal ~—{EEHE&EEAS (1,258) -

— Repayment of lease liabilities interest —(EEHEEENR (135) -

Total changes from financing cash flows — BIEIR &M E S EN4ERE (1,388) (5,095)
Other changes: Hihgs) .

— Addition in lease liability —hEHEaRE 979 —~

— Interest expenses (Note 9) —FE R (H5E9) 135 4,095

1,114 4,095

At 31 December 2023 and 752023F12831H &

1 January 2024 2024%F181H 3,475 54,230
Changes from finance cash flows: MERSRESED) .

— Proceeds from borrowings — & RPR1S=IE - 25,730

— Repayment of borrowings —ERENR - (34,730)

— Interest paid on borrowings —BffE a T}ﬁ'J,% S (3,142)

— Repayment of lease liabilities principal ~ —(BiRfEE&ELRE (1,732) -

— Repayment of lease liabilities interest —BIREEaENR (137) -
Total changes from financing cash flows — BEEIRE MEEEFLEEE (1,869) (12,142)
Other changes: Hth&s) .

— Addition in lease liability =A== 1,690 -

— Interest expenses (Note 9) —F) S (13F9) 137 3,142

1,827 3,142

At 31 December 2024 2024F12H31H 3,433 45,230

BRERZEEERAT 213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maBEmRmEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 34. TEFRERS
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had HE2024F12831HIEFE » &
entered into new lease agreements for motor vehicles (2023: EAMEBLHTAE (20234 -
leasehold lands and motor vehicles) under hire-purchase ME T ASE) ST MBEERE °
arrangements. As a result, the Group recognised addition At > AEBEEDDNAO/ARTE
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at approximately 1,690,000t M2 A R #1,690,0007T
RMB1,690,000 and RMB1,690,000 (2023: RMB979,000 (20234 : AE#979,000t M AR
and RMB979,000) respectively. #979,0007T) RYRESME FRIE & AE e 7E
EafE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A MBERRME (R)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 & E2024F 12831 HIEFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35. A B BIEIRRR

2024 2023
20245 20235
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KRB ABNKRE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW B A RIFIE 62,918 60,508
62,918 60,508
Current assets mEEE
Bank balances IR1T4EER 17 3
17 &
Current liabilities nEaE
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 NEMENRIERESER 4,938 4,795
Amount due to a subsidiary E—RERBARRE 12,489 11,975
17,427 16,770
Net current liabilities MEEEFE (17,410) (16,767)
Net assets BERE 45,508 43,741
Capital and reserves IR R
Share capital e 3,939 3,608
Reserves (Eai] 41,569 40,133
Total equity iatEm 45,508 43,741
The Company’s statement of financial position was RABMBARARLCEEG 2025
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors FEIR27T A EMIREL KU TES
on 27 March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by: REREEFTLUTIEE -
Qi Xiangzhong Zhao Yuxia
FTREA HESE
Director Director
EF EE

mREEERERAT

“EMFEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

maMBHRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #;ZFE2024F12331HIEFEE

36. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

36. A TE){#IE

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R fiaE RETE5E #ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ~ ABMTR  ARETR
At 1 January 2023 7520231818 105,636 (61,596) 44,040
Loss and total comprehensive  FERE BN 2 EESE4E5E
loss for the year - (3,907) (3,907)
At 31 December 2023 and $:2023F12831B &
1 January 2024 2024F1851H 105,636 (65,503) 40,133
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEREIENZ EE1ELAEE
loss for the year - (3,842) (3,842)
Issuance of shares under the 1BIEHAZEEITIGM)
Rights Issue (Note 24) (Mi5E24) 5,278 - 5,278
At 31 December 2024 1:2024F12H31H 110,914 (69,345) 41,569

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements, is set out below. The summary does

V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4V 4 4

FINANCIAL RESULT AND SUMMARY

M RE R E

AEBEREELEMBFEREEBEEZ
MHBRRZBEAMEE EEHEENE
HIUT o ZBEI IFB RS E X T

not form part of the audited financial statements. RZ2—E5D ©
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20244 2023 20226 20214 20205
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTR AEETT ARETT AREFRT AR®ETT
RESULTS E |
Revenue WA 32,297 39,884 47,734 67,151 67,963
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRATISRA (518) /
gl (13,695) (9,756) (10,246) 1,613 9,644
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisiigs,/ (BM) 5,335 1,313 1,579 (5,063) (2,819)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable <A Z#EH AFE(S
to the owners of the Company FE (518) /57 (8,360) (8,443) (8,667) (3,450) 6,825
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BENER
Non-current assets FRBBEE 143,785 128,591 122,132 131,576 140,147
Current assets REEE 122,541 159,761 183,096 178,239 175,367
Current liabilities it II=] (75,203) (82,657) (98,475) (84,448) (99,411)
Non-current liabilities | EII=kE (4,305) (16,126) (8,741) (18,688) (5,974)
Net assets attributable to the iUN=IE7Z=PN
owners of the Company ML EEFE 186,818 189,569 198,012 206,679 210,129

mREEERERAT
T T EFR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

=Y NE SN

DEFINITIONS e

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the RAERA > BRXZEBBFIIEIN 0 LT
following expressions shall have the following meaning: SERENTHE -

“AGM” the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at on Friday, 27

MRERBEXRE

“AGM Circular”

AREREFE RSB |

“Alpha Leap”

=F

“Ample Star”

a2,

“Articles of Association”

MM ET2 4R

“Audit Committee”

rEZEE8)

“Board”

EEg)

“Board Committees”

EXZ8YE)

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

June 2025 at 11:00 a.m. at Rooms 1903-1906, Alexandra House, 18
Chater Road, Hong Kong, or any adjournment thereof;
KAB)ERIN2025F6H27H (B f) EF+—RBRESETIREITE
18R LLAE 19121903 E 1906 ER TR BT AR HIMES ;

the circular dated 29 April 2025 published by the Company in respect
The proposals involving (1) general mandates to issue Shares and to
repurchase Shares; (2) re-election of Directors; and (3) notice of AGM,;
KRB EITRN REBRIRD 2 —fiiEE ; QFEESE ; MOKRE
FREBESTIEZ BHAS2025F 48298 28K ;

Alpha Leap Holdings Limited (BRB#ZERERAE), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 5 May
2016, whose entire issued share capital is owned by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong;
BEREREGRAT » 1R2016F5858NEB R L EFMMIINER
NE) > AR e ETRABTARSLELES ;

Ample Star Global Limited (8 2IRERE R/A7)), a company incorporated
in the BVI with limited liability on 21 March 2014, whose entire issued
share capital is owned by China Caston;

RERIRERAE » 1K2014FE3A21 BN EBE R ESF MR NER
nE) > AR EBRETRAHFREERES ;

the articles of association of the Company;

IRBEMEIZMER

The audit committee of the Company, which was established on
19 September 2019 pursuant to the resolutions of the Board on 19
September 2019;

KATINBZEZER » HIRIBESE12019F98 198 AVRZENT2019F
981985 ;

the board of directors of the Company;

KRBEFE ;

The board committees of the Company, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee;
TABIEEELEG  IBZEEE  FNEEGNEREZES ;



“China Caston”

ThEER)

“close associate(s)”

MERBHRAL

“Company”

P /N

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

MERZARER]

“core connected person(s)”
Mz BEAL

“Corporate Governance Code”
MEEERTHN

“Cosmic Hero”

FE

“Director(s)”

=

“Greater Sino”

ez
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)
BELEmAR (8)

China Caston 81 Finance Company Limited (T EEE81£RARAT)
(formerly known as China Internet Investment Finance Holdings Limited
(PEHEBMERETRHEBRBRLSB)) (Stock code: 810), a company
continued into Bermuda with limited liability and the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange;
PEERS1EMER AR RIBHEEHEREEMERTRAR) (B
SR © 810) » MEBREREKSENBREEATE » ERMKHRME
RET;

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules;
BB FHiRAIPE T 2R

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (B EIFR ARG R A E),
an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange;
RFERZERERAT > KHASEEIMNIINEREERAR » HiX
AR EAR £ S

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and unless the
context requires otherwise, refers to Mr. Qi Xiangzhong and Alpha Leap;
BB MR T2 RE > (RXESEFREI  IErmpiERE
B

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules;
BB EHRAIFE Y 2B ;

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules;
EHRAIMESRCIPREBEEASTR ;

Cosmic Hero Investments Limited (ZEREBRE AT, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 6 June
2016, the entire issued share capital of which is owned by Mr. Ling Wai
Leung;

BHRERRAT > 1K2016F6 A6 HNEBR R STMMINER
NE > HEHEETRAREZRRTEES ;

director(s) of the Company;
KABESE ;

Greater Sino Ventures Limited (BZEAI&BR A ), a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability on 13 June 2014, the entire
issued share capital of which is directly owned by Ample Star;
BEAIRBRAE > R2014F6 B 13HEEBR A ESFMAIINER
NE > AR HEEITRARKEEEES ;

mREEERERAT
T T EFR

221
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)

BEhikiiAEE (&)

“Group”

TA5EE )

1] H K$”
r#7t)

“Hong Kong”
r&#)

“IPO”
MERAREE)

“Kai Yuan School”

RTREERR

“Listing Date”
T Em B
“Listing Rules”
FEmRA

“Main Board”

TEHR]

“Ministry of Public Security”
TAZER]

“Model Code”

MELESFRI

“Nomination Committee”

NHRHZEEE)

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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the Company and its subsidiaries;

TREREWBAT ;

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;

BBEEERETT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;
PEEBRRITEHE ;

the initial public offering of the Shares, further details of which are set out
in the Prospectus;
ROBVERAREE » HE—PHBEHRIIBRER ;

Zhumadian City Kaiyuan Vehicles Driver Training Company Limited* (§f
EETRRIEBEERSEIIBRAT), a company established in the
PRC with limited liability on 13 May 2016 and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company;

BERETRRRBEERSHEIIBEAT > )R20165F5813HEFEAL
YZBRRAE > BRELBEEEEMNBAT ;

24 QOctober 2019, the date on which the Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange;
AR PR P EMR =R HER » BD20195F108248

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, as amended from time to time;
BAEMARZMBERATFES L hmRA EREHEST) ;

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel to GEM of
the Stock Exchange;

AR PTEENR SR Z T (RN EIERRETIS) » B FTGEM B E
HI{TE ;

Ministry of Public Security of the PRC (1 A R HFBE AL ER) ;
hEE A\ RHEMBEALER ;

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules;
FHRBIMYERCFTE E BT AESEITRE S R ZNIEESTH ;

the nomination committee of the Company;
KABHRBEETR ;



“PRC” or “China”

TH ]

“Prospectus”
MERETRR]

“Record Date”

EGE 4=

“Remuneration Committee”

M= EE

“Rights Issue”

TR )

“Rights Share(s)”

TAR AR 1)

HRMB”
TAR¥)

“SFO”

85 MARE15EA

“Shareholder(s)”
TREER
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The People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this report and
for geographical reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau Special
Administrative Region and Taiwan;

REARIMNE > EMARSE MABEMS - FEESE ~ BFIEH
THENEE ;

the prospectus of the Company dated 11 October 2019;
AT HEAA20195108 11 HVARETRR ;

Monday, 19 February 2024, the record date for the determination of the
entitlements under the Rights Issue;
202428190 (28—) > BT HRREE 2 5Cix B ;

the remuneration committee of the Company;
TABFMEES ;

the proposed issue by way of rights of one (1) Rights Share for every two
(2) Shares in issue and held on the Record Date at the subscription price
of HK$0.20 per Rights Share on the terms and subject to the conditions
to be set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 February
2024;

EEBBEHNANEIHEA2024F2H208 2 B2 2GR NEEEHR
R UERMERRND0.20B B ERI R BIASHEMQKRE
BTN — ()RR 2 B LR B TUETET ;

up to 200,000,000 new share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company to be allotted and issued pursuant to the Rights Issue,
assuming no change in the number of Shares in issue on or before the
Record Date;

R EETRNDEMBI G HRS e R LS E) » RIS E
N BT 2 RN B RA A HB48200,000,0008 & IR EIE0.01 B T 2 #AR
7

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC;
FEEEEBEARE ;

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented and/or otherwise modified from time
to time;

EEAPIESTIED S RIPERE > BAERHES] « Bk HBITE
25

holders of the Shares;

ROFEAN

mREEERERAT
T T EFR
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)

BEhikiiAEE (&)

“Shares”

TRg1% 1

“Shun Da School”

NEZEER

“Stock Exchange”
TEk3ZF

“substantial shareholder(s)”

TR

“Takeovers Code”

M =T Il

“Tongtai Cultural”

BLE 4l

“Tong Tai School”

NBSRER

li%”

% ]
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ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of our Company, which are traded in Hong Kong dollars and
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange;
RABIRAFEREEC.01ETHE B » LB TTEE MK E
R

Suiping County Shunda Driver Training Company Limited* (3 84/[E5E=
EEEIBRAR), a company established in the PRC with limited
liability on 25 December 2012 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company;

T HIEEERSEINERAT » 1R2012F128258BEFREIKIIZE
[BAE] > AXAEEZEEERBAR ;

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;
BRMERZMERAT ;

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules;
BAE EHRAIFRE T 28

The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong, as amended,
supplemented and/or otherwise modified from time to time;
ERAFANPEEHERZEGRMNATWE « SHRKRAEIEST
Al » BABRHES] ~ e, HBI1TEN ;

Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural Media Company Limited* (B E/E@EZ%
XALEEBRAT]), a company established in the PRC with limited
liability on 2 June 2016 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company;

BEEERLEEBRAE » 112016FE682HEFEMILZBREA
8] > ARAEEEE2ENBAT ;

Zhumadian Tongtai Large Vehicles Driver Training Company Limited*
(EEEEERAEEHEERFSEIIBR AR, a company established
in the PRC with limited liability on 24 April 2014 and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company; and
BEREBR AR ERREIFIIFRAF > 12014F4824B7EFE
I ZBRAT > /ENTEREEERBAT ; &

per cent.
BAtE o
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GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS 5 ULk

This glossary contains explanations of certain terms used in this A& fiTE S & A S ERFTIFAE BRI R
annual report in connection with us and our business. These FFIEBEHNETAE - ZEFAENEESE
terminologies and their given meanings may not correspond to  FRMEAEfTEATERZT S E— ©
those standard meanings and usage adopted in the industry.

“A1 Vehicles”

TA15EER SR

“A2 Vehicles”

TA2XEER )

“A3 Vehicles”

TASXREE )

“B1 Vehicles”
TB1EEHH)

“B2 Vehicles”

TB2RE

“C1 Vehicles”

FC1¥aE ]

“C2 Vehicles”

FC2¥aE

“C6 Vehicles”

TCeXaE i

large passenger vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the
Ministry of Public Security;
REEE > fl—BAREE DR EBEHEER] ;

large trailer vehicles with a total mass equal to or more than 4.5 metric
tonnes, being a type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public
Security;

MBEFNHARNTLSAMWMHN KIS » fl—BRAZHEDHEWME
Ll

vehicles for carrying 10 or more passengers as city buses, being a type
of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public Security;

TR AR B 104U L RENE - Bl—B AL EE| D RIEHR
&5 ;

medium passenger vehicles with a capacity for 10-19 passengers, being
a type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public Security;

HEEDIOE1OAWTREE » A—BRARZHEIDHIEEER ;

large and medium sized trucks and large and medium sized working
vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public
Security;

RPEREBRAPIERE » BI—BALESDEHER ;

small manual vehicles, light-goods manual vehicles and light-duty
manual working vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the
Ministry of Public Security;

NERFHE - KAFHEBNEUFHERE > f—BAZHEHHE
wER 5

small automatic vehicles, light-goods automatic vehicles and light-duty
automatic working vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the
Ministry of Public Security;

NEEEE - KR EHEBE N EHERE > B—REAZHE HHE
wEER 5

trailer vehicles with a total mass of less than 4.5 metric tonnes, being a
type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public Security;
RES/\K4SRMERME » Bl —RB AR EE R EEER ;

B EEERERAT
TETNEER

025
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BEhikiiAEE (&)

“Large Vehicles”

TREIEH)

“qualified level | driving school”

rEER—RER

“qualified level Il driving school”

rE&EE _RERI

“Small Vehicles”

M \BUESER )
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A1 Vehicles, A2 Vehicles, A3 Vehicles, B1 Vehicles and B2 Vehicles,
which are generally used as commercial vehicles;

A1SBERHN « A2BEHf - ASKEEH - B1iEEHNB2IEHE » B1EAE B
B

a driving school possessing, among others, more than 80 training
vehicles, and is qualified under the Qualifications of Motor Vehicle Driving
Training Institutions (1451 55 28 & 5 1231 B E A& &) to provide driving
training services in the PRC;

A (AR aE) soml LallfReE i & BERIREHEN B R SIEIIEE
AR T R BRI B BLIE AR TRV AR

a driving school possessing, among others, more than 40 driving
vehicles, and is qualified under the Qualifications of Motor Vehicle Driving
Training Institutions (1481 55 28 5 5 12311 B E A& &) to provide driving
training services in the PRC; and

%E (HPaiE) 408U - BB Bl & ERIRRE B B R R S5 IiE
ERRAERERHERIENRFSER 5 &

C1 Vehicles, C2 Vehicles and C6 Vehicles, which are generally used as
private and/or commercial vehicles.

C14BEH  CAEE /X COEEH > BIERATKK,HEAE o
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